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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are a latestage clinical biotechnology company focused ondlseovery, development and commercialization ofehqroteir
immunotherapy programs for the potential treatmatliseases that involve amyloid or cell adhesife are developing antibodyase!
product candidates that target a number of pofeimtitcations including AL amyloidosis (NEODOO1)afinsons disease and other rele
synucleinopathies (PRX002) and psoriasis and atifflemmatory diseases (PRX003).

We are conducting The VITAL Amyloidosis Study, aaBl 3 global registrational trial, and a concurfimase 1/2 trial for our le
antibody, NEODOQOL1, for the potential treatment afignts with AL amyloidosis. NEODOO1 received Fastck designation from the U.S. Fc
and Drug Administration (the "FDA") in December 201

In collaboration with Roche, we are developing PRX@or the treatment of Parkinsendisease and other related synucleinopa
During 2014, we advanced PRX002 into clinical depetent with the initiation of two Phase 1 studi@esults for the first Phase 1 stud
single ascending dose trial in healthy voluntears, expected in March 2015. We continue to enraliepts with Parkinson's disease in
second Phase 1 multiple ascending dose study restlits expected in first half of 2016.

For PRX003, we expect to initiate a Phase 1 siagleending dose study in healthy volunteers dutimgfirst half of 2015, with
multiple ascending dose study in patients with sis beginning in 2016 to establish potentialichh proof-ofbiology in Phase 1. Beyo
psoriasis, we may further develop PRX003 for thieptial treatment of orphan and/or other inflammattiseases.

We are a public limited company formed under theslaf Ireland. On December 20, 2012, we separatad Elan Corporation, p
(“Elan™). Our ordinary shares began trading on Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “PRTé&{ December 21, 2012 and curre
trade on The Nasdaq Global Select Market.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to be a leading biotechnology compasgu$ed on the discovery, development and commizaii@n of novel protei
immunotherapy programs for the treatment of dise#zat involve amyloid or cell adhesion. Key eletseasf our strategy to achieve this ¢
are to:

. Continue to discover antibodies directed againswabtargets related to amyloid or cell adhesit

We leverage our core scientific expertise and petgny technology to develop innovative antibdmhsed therapeutics for the poter
treatment of major unmet medical needs. Once wadtate a novel hypothesis or approach to a knowgetawe generate antibodies age
that target. Specific and selective antibodieschigacterized in vitro, then used to test thedhltiypothesis in vivo using animal model
disease. We often rely on the use of animal matielshave been extensively developed by exterbal&dories, as we have already done
our programs for AL amyloidosis, Parkinson’s digeand psoriasis.

. Quickly translate our research discoveries intoritial development

Once we establish in vivo proof of concept for antibody candidates, we use animal models to ifyepttential clinical candidat
and to rapidly advance these candidates into matufag and preclinical testing. In 2012, we filad Investigational New Drug Applicati
("IND") with the FDA for NEODOO1 for AL and AA amyldosis and less than two years later, in Decergbé4, we initiated The VITA
Amyloidosis Study, a Phase 3 global registratiafiaical trial in patients with AL amyloidosis amérdiac dysfunction.

. Establish early clinical proof of concept with ouherapeutic antibodies

We leverage our insight of disease pathology rdlabeamyloid or cell adhesion to employ biomarked@oints as a way to det
signals of biological activity early in the clinicdevelopment process. We may elect to start dirtiesting of our antibodies in indications
have wellestablished endpoints in order to demonstrate ppbabncept as a basis for further investment imieadl trials, by us or potenti
partners.




. Focus ondiseases that lack effective therapi

We focus on the development and commercializatfaiherapies for serious and/or lifereatening diseases that lack effective there
NEODOO1 received Fast Track designation in Decer@bdd, and has received orphan drug designatidootih the U.S. and Europe for
treatment of AL amyloidosis. We have initiated THETAL Amyloidosis Study, aPhase 3 clinical trial for NEODOOL for the treatrmef
newly-diagnosed, treatmentive patients with AL amyloidosis and cardiac dpstion. To date, there are no approved therameshi
treatment of AL amyloidosis.

In collaboration with Roche, we are developing PRX@s a potential disease-modifying treatment akiRson’s disease and ott
related synucleinopathies. During 2014, we advarmi@¥002 into clinical development with the initi@ti of two Phase 1 studies. Results
the first Phase 1 study, a single ascending daskeirtr healthy volunteers, are expected in March30We continue to enroll patients w
Parkinson's disease in the second Phase 1 mudiolending dose study, with results expected irfitbiehalf of 2016. To date, all appro\
therapies for patients with Parkinson's diseasedon the alleviation of disease symptoms.

We expect to initiate a Phase 1 single ascendirsg dtudy for PRX003 in healthy volunteers in thstfhalf of 2015, with a multip
ascending dose trial enrolling patients with psisian 2016. While therapies exist today that tgsadriasis and other inflammatory disord
we believe our antibody has the potential to imprthe outcome for patients who do not receive aakegenefit from existing therapies.

Moving forward, we intend to advance new discov&igge monoclonal antibody therapeutics that shawmjze in orphan disee
indications.

. Strategically collaborate or otlicense select program

Our robust discovery engine generates monoclontibaies that may be useful in treating unmet madiceeds. For therapet
antibody programs targeting broad patient popubgtithat may require large clinical trials and depeient investment, we may seel
collaborate or license these potential antibodyrapeutics to biotechnology or pharmaceutical corgsarfor development and.
commercialization. In line with our strategy, in denber 2013, we entered into the License, Developared Commercialization Agreem
with Roche (described below), to develop and coreiakze certain antibodies that target algyaruclein, including PRX002 for the poten
treatment of Parkinson’s disease and other reltedcleinopathies.

. Highly leverage external talent and resource

Although we plan to maintain strong talent intelp&laving expertise in our core areas of focus andieeded to execute efficiently
our clinical development and business objectives, will leverage external resources to meet our afperal and business needs w
maintaining flexibility as those needs may changerdime. We plan to continue to rely on the vexjeasive experience of our manager
team to execute on our objectives.

. Collaborate with scientific and clinical experts idisease areas of intere:

We collaborate with highly regarded scientists hgvexpertise in our disease areas of interestsibaled characterize our poter
therapeutic antibody candidates. We also collabonath leading clinical experts in our disease arefinterest for feedback and guidanc:
our programs. In addition, we engage a humber n$albants having specific functional and/or disems®a expertise to help us execute or
preclinical and clinical development programs.

. Evaluate commercialization strategies in order t@rimize the value of our product candidates or fuéupotential products

As we move our drug candidates through developnmmard regulatory approval, we will evaluate selverations for each dr
candidates commercialization strategy. These options inclogiéding our own internal sales force; enteringia joint marketing partnerst
with another pharmaceutical or biotechnology conypavhereby we jointly sell and market the prodwegjional licensing for markets whi
we do not have expertise or infrastructure; andlioahsing our product, whereby another pharmaceutic biotechnology company sells i
markets our product and pays us a royalty on ssesevaluate options for each product based omebeu of factors including commerc
synergies and expertise, capital necessary to execueach option, size of the market to be adddeand terms of potential offers from of
pharmaceutical and biotechnology




companies.

Research and Development Pipeline

Our research and development pipeline includesetlinerapeutic antibody programs that we intenddeaace: NEODOQOL for ti
potential treatment of AL amyloidosis; PRX002 iflaboration with Roche, for the potential treatmehParkinsors disease and other rele
synucleinopathies; and PRX003 for the potentialttreent of psoriasis and other inflammatory diseases

The following table summarizes the status of oseagch and development pipeline for our lead progra

Preclinical Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Commercial Rights

\AL Amyloidosis - The VITAL Amyloidosis Study, a Global Phase 3 Registrational Trial |
NEODO001 Prothena
AL Amyloidosis - Phase 1/2 Study |

‘Parkinson's Disease - Phase 1 MAD ‘ Prothena
PRX002
\Parkinson's Disease - Phase 1 SAD \ Roche
\fnﬂammatory Diseases
PRX003 Prothena

D Proprietary programs

D Partnered programs

Our Lead Programs
NEODOO01 for AL Amyloidosis

Our most advanced product development program, NEXQPtargets AL amyloidosis. Systemic amyloidosesluding AL, AA anc
ATTR amyloidosis, are a complex group of diseasassed by tissue deposition of amyloid proteins thatlt in progressive organ dams
The most common type, AL amyloidosis or primarytegsc amyloidosis, results from hematological dikorinvolving abnormal plasr
cells. Plasma cells normally produce light chahmt pair with heavy chains to make functional ardibs. But in AL amyloidosis, somethi
goes awry the cause remains unknown. A subset of plasma keliin overproducing a single light chain in grabtindance. These li¢
chains then misfold in blood and eventually aggtegato tissues, such as heart and kidneys, caesitegsive organ damage and fatigue.

AL amyloidosis is a grievous disease and therenarapproved treatments that directly target thectiorms of the AL protein that bui
up in the organs. AL amyloidosis is a rare disordé@&h about 15,000 patients in the U.S. and Eurdpayever, we believe this diseas
significantly underdiagnosed. Both the cause aigine of AL amyloidosis remain poorly understood.

Current treatment for patients with AL amyloidogislude organ transplants or the administrationféflabel chemotherapeutic anc
oncologic therapies targeted at killing plasmascétl decrease the production of light chain cirtgpin the blood, called the hematolc
burden. These chemotherapeutic and/or oncologietagee associated with a known adverse eventi@ianiid patients often become refrac
to their hematologic effect and/or relapse. In &ddj the target of these therapies remains thenpdacells responsible for production of i
chain, rather than the toxic light chain in cirdida or built up in the organs. There remains anificant unmet need to directly target
remove the insoluble amyloid deposited on organsnprove organ function and mortality, withoutieasing adverse events.

NEODOO1 is a humanized monoclonal antibody thatifipally targets the circulating misfolded solublight chain and deposit
insoluble amyloid that accumulates in AL amyloidodNEODOO1 received Fast Track designation fromRB& in December 2014. T
purpose of the Fast Track designation is to makgomant new drugs available to patients earliere Hast Track program also provide
company with the ability to submit sections of Bielogics License Applications ("BLA") for reviewdfore the company submits the comg.
BLA. This enables the FDA to review sections of BleA as they are received, rather than waiting luetiery section of the application
completed, and also allows for Priority Review, efhtan shorten the standard review of the final BoAix months. A drug program with F
Track designation permits the company to have




early and frequent communications with the FDAhe tlevelopment and review of the product candidadeentially leading to faster dr
approval.

In addition, NEODOO1 was granted orphan drug degign for the treatment of AL and AA amyloidosis tye FDA in 2012 and for tl
treatment of AL amyloidosis by the European Medisigency (the "EMA") in 2013.

The VITAL Amyloidosis StudyPhase 3 Clinical Trial

In December 2014, we initiated The VITAL Amyloidesstudy, a Phase 3 clinical trial for NEODOOL1 inigrats with AL amyloidosit
The trial is designed to support global regulatapprovals. We intend to enroll approximately 23Wiyediagnosed, treatmemaive patien
with AL amyloidosis and cardiac dysfunction. Patgewill be randomized on a 1:1 basis to receivenijlkg of NEODOO1 or placebo
intravenous infusion every 28 days, with both gotgreiving concurrent standard of care therapy.

The composite primary endpoint is event-based, \alticause mortality or cardiac hospitalizations as ifyiafj events. Seconds
endpoints of the study include evaluation of thedizer biomarker NT-proBNP, renal biomarker proteiausix-minute walk test, and multig
quality of life evaluations including the Short FeB6 and the Kansas City Cardiomyopathy Questionn&irethena designed the study \
90% power to detect a 30% change in the eventoeti®een the treatment and placebo groups with sstded alpha of 0.05. The trial allo
for an interim analysis to assess the primary eimdfor efficacy and futility.

Cardiac and Renal Biomarker Responses in Phas&tLi@y

The VITAL Amyloidosis Study, a Phase 3 clinicalfriwas initiated following report of positive ddtathe ongoing Phase 1/2 clini
trial. In December 2014, we reported results fréva dngoing Phase 1/2 study that showed 7 of 14amaedaluable patients (50%) trea
with NEODOO1 demonstrated a cardiac response, e¢fis more than 30% and 300 pg/mL decrease irsle¢®TproBNP from baseline
validated cardiac biomarker associated with mdyalCardiac responders, on average, showed morprNBNP decline with added montl
NEODOO1 infusions. The 50% cardiac response ratepeoes favorably with the expected results of &%6cardiac response rate fr
historical data in patients treated solely witmsad of care that is not approved specificallyAbramyloidosis (Comenzo, et al., Leuker
2012;26:2317-2325). As noted in numerous peer-weikepublications, increasing levels of MfeBNP predicts higher mortality rates
patients with AL amyloidosis. Conversely, decregdevels of NT-proBNP predicts lower mortality raite

In a best response analysis of renal-evaluablematireated with NEODOQO1, 6 of 14 reeahluable patients (42.9%) demonstrat
response, defined as more than 30% decrease gimproa in the absence of greater than 25% worgesiirestimated glomerular filtration ri
("eGFR"). The 42.9% renal response rate companazdhaly with the expected results of an approxitya®®% renal response rate fr
historical data in patients treated solely witmsfard of care that is not approved specificallyAaramyloidosis (Palladini, et al., Blood. 2(
124: 23252332). Increased levels of proteinuria and decrbasBFR predicts faster progression to dialysis whigecreased levels
proteinuria and increased eGFR predicts delayee tindialysis.

Safety, Tolerability, Pharmacokinetics and Immunogjéy

Data from the Phase 1/2 study also continued toodstrate that chronic monthly infusions of NEODGO#® safe and wetblerated il
patients with AL amyloidosis and persistent orggefdnction. A database analysis as of Septembe2@D4 showed a total of 27 patient
seven dosing cohorts received 209 infusions, vattheatient treated on average for approximateglgtenonths. No hypersensitivity reacti
or drug-related serious adverse events were repamel no antNEODOOL1 antibodies were detected. NEODOO1 demdssitraxceller
pharmacokinetic properties, supporting a dose lef/24 mg/kg every 28 days. The most frequentlyreg adverse events (more than 10'
subjects) were fatigue, cough, dyspnea, diarrhgpemrespiratory infection, anemia, headache, hgemia, nausea and edema. All adv
events were mild to moderate and no dose limitingcities have been observed. As of September @D4,219 patients continued on ther
(eight patients discontinued). No patient discamgioh due to drugelated adverse events. Following selection of 2yfkan as the Phase
recommended dose, in consultation with their trgaphysician, all 14 eligible patients continuimgthe dose escalation portion of the P
1/2 study have chosen to escalate to 24 mg/kg.

Expansion Portion of Phase 1/2 Study
Concurrent with The VITAL Amyloidosis Study, a Pka8 clinical trial, we are enrolling up to an aduial 25 patients, with A
amyloidosis and selected persistent organ dysfomcin an openabel expansion portion of the Phase 1/2 study.pléie to enroll 10 patier

with cardiac dysfunction, 10 patients with renasfiyction and five patients with peripheral neutbga
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all of whom will receive 24 mg/kg intravenously eye28 days. The expansion phase will continue talate safety, tolerabilit
pharmacokinetics and immunogenicity of NEODOO1 afl &s the specific clinical activity against calirenal and neuropathy endpoints.

PRX002 for Parkinso’'s Disease

In December 2013, we entered into a License, Degwdémt, and Commercialization Agreement (the "LieeAgreement”)with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche Inollgzctively, “Roche”)to develop and commercialize certain antibodies$ thege
alpha-synuclein, including PRX002. Together, we Rodhe aim to develop PRX002 as a disease-moditygagment for Parkinsos'diseas
and potentially other synucleinopathies. For maferimation on the License Agreement, see the inébion below.

Alpha-synuclein is found extensively in neurons and isnajor component of pathological inclusions that rehterize sever
neurodegenerative disorders, including Parkinsalisease, dementia with Lewy bodies, and mulggktem atrophy, which collectively i
termed synucleinopathies. While the normal functidrsynuclein is not well understood, the proteormally occurs in a soluble form.
synucleinopathies, the synuclein protein can mistmhd aggregate to form soluble aggregates andubisofibrils that contribute to ti
pathology of the disease.

There is genetic evidence for a causal role of elgiu in Parkinson’s disease. In rare cases oflfahforms of Parkinsors diseas:
there are mutations in the synuclein gene, or dafitin and triplications of the gene that may casisaiclein protein to form amyloilike
fibrils that contribute to the disease. There modhcreasing evidence that this diseeaasing synuclein can be propagated and transi
from neuron to neuron, resulting in an infectitke spread of neuronal death. Recent studies linlae and animal models suggest that
spread of synuclein-associated neurodegeneratiobeadisrupted by targeting aberrant forms of siginc

Parkinsons$ disease is a degenerative disorder of the cergrabus system that affects one in 100 people ager60. Current treatme
for Parkinsons disease are only effective at managing the eadtor symptoms of the disease, mainly through tbe af levodopa al
dopamine agonists. As the disease progresses gadltergic neurons continue to be lost, these dewgsitually become less effective
treating the symptoms. The goal of our approadb sow down the progressive neurodegenerativeerprences of disease, a current ul
need. PRX002 targets alpbgauclein and may slow or reduce the neurodegdaorrassociated with synuclein misfolding and/onsmaissior

During 2014, we and Roche advanced PRX002 intacelimlevelopment with the initiation of two Phasstadies. The first study, a
Phase 1 double-blind, placebo-controlled, singéeading dose trial, enrolled 40 healthy volunteallspf which were randomized 3:1 into five
escalating dose cohorts to receive PRX002 or ptaegbry 28-days. Results for this trial are expetateMarch 2015.

In addition, we are enrolling patients with Parkins disease in a Phase 1 multiple ascending dosg. sthe Phase 1 randomiz
double-blind, placebaentrolled, multiple ascending dose study of PRXB02xpected to enroll up to 60 patients with Ras&in's disease
multiple centers across the U.S. and is designeslv&tuate the safety, tolerability, pharmacokiretnd immunogenicity of PRX002. 1
multiple ascending dose study will also evaluatdtipia clinical and exploratory biomarker endpoinBatients will be enrolled in escalat
dose cohorts of PRX002 or placebo and will be alezkfor up to 6 months.

Prior to initiating clinical trials, we tested tledficacy of PRX002 in various cellular and animabdels of synucleimelated disease.
transgenic mouse models of Parkingodisease, passive immunization with 9E4, the reuviersion of PRX002, reduced the appearan
synuclein pathology, protected synapses and imprpegformance by the mice in behavioral testing.

License, Development, and Commercialization Agreémih Roche

In December 2013, we entered into the License Ages¢ with Roche to develop and commercialize ceatibodies that target alpha-
synuclein, including PRX002, which are referredntohis report collectively as “Licensed ProductBtie License Agreement became effec
following the expiration of the applicable Hart-8Bodino waiting period on January 17, 2014, whiélgered an upfront payment to us
$30.0 million from Roche, which we received in Redny 2014.

Pursuant to the License Agreement, we and Rochecdleborating to research and develop antibodgyets targeting alphsynuclein
Roche is providing funding for a research collatiorabetween us and Roche focused on optimizinty eéage antibodies targeting alpha
synuclein, potentially including incorporation ob&he’s proprietary Brain Shuttle™ technology
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to increase delivery of therapeutic antibodieshi® lirain. Roche is primarily responsible for depeig, obtaining and maintaining regulat
approval for, and commercializing Licensed Produgtder the collaboration including PRX002. Roché also become responsible for
clinical and commercial manufacture and supply isEhsed Products within a defined time period fellg the effective date of the Licer
Agreement.

In addition to the $30.0 million upfront paymentdaa clinical milestone payment of $15.0 millionghé 2014, Roche is also obliga
to pay:

* up to $380.0 million upon the achievement of depalent, regulatory and various first commercial satélestone:
* up to an additional $175.0 million in &x-S. commercial sales milestones;
« tiered, high single-digit to high double-digityadties in the teens on éX%-S. annual net sales, subject to certain adjuds

In the U.S., the parties will share all developmamd commercialization costs, as well as profitspfawhich will be allocated 70%
Roche and 30% to us, for PRX002 in the Parkinsaoiisease indication, as well as any other Licefseducts and/or indications for which
opt in to co-develop and co-fund. We may opt outhef co-development and cost and profit sharingquoncodeveloped Licensed Produ
and instead receive U.S. commercial sales milesttotaling up to $155.0 million and tiered, sindigit to high doubledigit royalties in th
teens based on U.S. annual net sales, subjecttaincadjustments, with respect to the applicabzhsed Product. In addition, we have
option under the License Agreement to co-promotX®R in the U.S. in the Parkinsandisease indication. If we exercise such optios
may also elect to co-promote additional LicensendBcts in the U.S. approved for Parkinsodisease. Outside the U.S., Roche will |
responsibility for developing and commercializitg t_icensed Products.

Under the License Agreement with Roche, we gratddRioche an exclusive, worldwide license to devetogke, have made, use, sell,
offer to sell, import and export the Licensed PriduThe License Agreement continues on a countrgetintry basis until the expiration of
all payment obligations thereunder. The Licenseegrent may also be terminated (i) by Roche ataftdr the first anniversary of the
effective date of the License Agreement, eithatsirentirety or on a Licensed Product-by-LicenseatBct basis, upon 90 days’ prior written
notice to us prior to first commercial sale and #8§s’ prior written notice to us after first commial sale, (ii) by either party, either in its
entirety or on a Licensed Product-by-Licensed Pcbduregion-by-region basis, upon written notise&odnnection with a material breach
uncured 90 days after initial written notice, aiiil By either party, in its entirety, upon insohey of the other party. The License Agreement
may be terminated by either party on a patent-ligfiand country-by-country basis if the other paltallenges a given patent in a given
country. Our rights to co-develop Licensed Produciger the License Agreement will terminate if veenenence certain studies for certain
types of competitive products. Our rights to comote Licensed Products under the License Agreemidirterminate if we commence a
Phase 3 study for such competitive products.

PRX003 for Psoriasis and Other Inflammatory Disease

We are developing PRX003, a monoclonal antibodyetiing melanoma cell adhesion molecule ("MCAM") floe potential treatment
psoriasis and other inflammatory diseases, andogxpeinitiate a Phase 1 single ascending doseysitudhe first half of 2015. Beyol
psoriasis, we may further develop this antibodytiier potential treatment of orphan and/or othdamfmatory diseases.

Within the immune system, white blood cells playimaportant role. Teells are a subset of white blood cells that exprther CD
glycoprotein (CD4+) or CD8 glycoprotein (CD8+) oheir surface. CD4+ T-cells are called “helpeglls as they do not neutralize
infection, but rather initiate the body’s respotsénfections. Th-17 cells are a subset of CD4+¢€llsccharacterized by the production of IL-
17, and are known to be key participants in inflaatory reactions and various autoimmune diseases.

MCAM is a cell adhesion molecule that allows certaells traveling in the blood stream to leave tireulation and enter tissu
MCAM is expressed on pathogenic TR-immune cells. These immune cells are believedntaerlie many inflammatory diseases. MC
functions like VELCRO™ hook-antbop fasteners, allowing these cells to stick te khood vessel wall, so that they can migrate tht
surrounding tissues to initiate and/or maintainrthathogenic process.

Our research in the area of cell adhesion has wnedwnique insights into MCAM function, allowing to develop specific and no
antibodies that block MCAM’s VELCRO" -like function and may serve as therapeutics togmedisease causing cells from spreading
tissue.




Anti-MCAM antibodies may be useful for treating a varief inflammatory diseases such as psoriasis, @asorarthritis, rheumato
arthritis, multiple sclerosis, sarcoidosis, uveiasnd Behcet's disease. Autoimmune and/or auteimflatory diseases arise from the bady’
inappropriate immune response against substandessanes normally present in the body. In otherdspthe immune system mistakes s
part of the body as a foreign pathogen and attaskawvn cells. A substantial portion of the popidatsuffers from these diseases, whict
often chronic, debilitating, and life-threatening.

Current treatment for many types of inflammatoryegdises may entail the use of broad acting immuipossgive agents that weaken
body’s ability to fight infection. Only 3 to 5% &@D4+ T-ells in the circulation express MCAM, yet thesiscappear to be disproportionat
involved in the propagation of inflammatory diseaddence, anti-MCAM based therapy may provide aenspecific way to target the disease
causing immune cells while not interfering with mad function of the majority of the immune system.

We have generated monoclonal antibodies that sedgctblock MCAM-mediated cell adhesion and have been shown to delays:
and severity of relapse in a mouse model of autaimeinflammation.

We expect to initiate a Phase 1 single ascendisg tidal of PRX003 in the first half of 2015, withmultiple ascending dose st
beginning in 2016. Our clinical strategy is to pegsoriasis initially to allow for potential rapfdedback on the biological activity of
therapeutic agent and establish a solid clinicahéation to inform our decisions as we exploreftiiedevelopment potential of this antibody
psoriasis and other inflammatory indications. Weyrakect to license or partner PRX003 for diseasasathat would require larger clini
trials and investment.

Our Discovery Programs

Our pipeline also includes several late discovaage programs for which we are testing the efficd@antibodies in preclinical mods
of diseases related to amyloid or cell adhesioprdmising, we expect that these antibodies willeete to preclinical development. New ta
discovery will focus on the potential treatmentogbhan indications involving amyloidosis or catthesion where we can bring these ther:
to patients expeditiously through our internal efpe and resources. Existing late discovery-s@@ograms with norerphan indications mi
be partnered or out-licensed.

Regulation

We anticipate that if we commercialize any produtlie U.S. market will be our most important markeir this reason, the laws ¢
regulations discussed below focus on the requirésragplicable to biologic products in the U.S.

Government Regulation

Governmental authorities, including the FDA and panable regulatory authorities in other countriegulate the design, developm
testing, manufacturing, safety, efficacy, labelistprage, recorleeping, advertising, promotion and marketing oanpmaceutical produc
including biologics, under the Federal Food, Draigd Cosmetic Act and its implementing regulatiarg] the Public Health Service Act :
its implementing regulations. Narempliance with applicable requirements can raauines and other judicially imposed sanctiong]uaing
product seizures, import restrictions, injunctivéi@ns and criminal prosecutions of both compaaias individuals. In addition, administrat
remedies can involve requests to recall violatirepcts; the refusal of the government to enter supply contracts; or the refusal to app
pending product approval applications until mantufeng or other alleged deficiencies are broughe ibompliance. The FDA also has
authority to cause the withdrawal of approval ofiarketed product or to impose labeling restrictions

The pricing of pharmaceutical products is regulatechany countries and the mechanism of price ed@gn varies. In the U.S., wh
there are limited indirect federal government pdoetrols over private sector purchases of drugs,riot possible to predict future regulat
action on the pricing of pharmaceutical products.

Product Approval

United Statesln the U.S., our drug candidates are regulatedadsdic pharmaceuticals, or biologics. The FDA rieges biologics und
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetics Act, PublialtHeSafety Act and its implementing regulationsol&gics are also subject to ot
federal, state and local statutes and regulatidhe.process required by the FDA before biologiodprt candidates may be marketed ir
U.S. generally involves the following:

e submission to the FDA of an IND, which must becaffective before human clinical trials may begim anust b
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updated annually;

« completion of extensive preclinical laboratoegts and preclinical animal studies, all perforrimedccordance with the FDA'Goo
Laboratory Practice ("GLP") regulations;

« performance of adequate and washtrolled human clinical trials to establish tlaéesy and efficacy of the product for each prop:
indication, all performed in accordance with FDA&lgrent good clinical practices ("cGCP") regulasipn

e submission to the FDA of a BLA for a new biologadter completion of all pivotal clinical tria

» satisfactory completion of an FDA papproval inspection of the manufacturing facilitegswvhich the product is produced and te
to assess compliance with current good manufagiymiactices ("cGMP") regulations; and

» FDA review and approval of a BLA for a new biologirior to any commercial marketing or sale of piheduct in the U.¢

Preclinical tests assess the potential safety #iwmhey of a product candidate in animal modelse Thsults of these studies mus
submitted to the FDA as part of an IND before hurtemting may proceed. An IND is a request for atitlation from the FDA to administ
an investigational drug or biologic product to hurnaThe central focus of an IND submission is andkneral investigational plan and
protocol(s) for human studies. The IND also includesults of animal studies or other human studiesppropriate, as well as manufactt
information, analytical data and any availableickh data or literature to support the use of thestigational new drug. An IND must becc
effective before human clinical trials may begim IND will automatically become effective 30 dayfteareceipt by the FDA, unless bef
that time the FDA raises concerns or questionse@lt the proposed clinical trials. In such a c#s® IND may be placed on clinical hold :
the IND sponsor and the FDA must resolve any onthitey concerns or questions before clinical tr@a begin. Accordingly, submission
an IND may or may not result in the FDA allowingnatal trials to commence.

Clinical trials involve the administration of theviestigational product to human subjects undesthpervision of qualified investigatc
in accordance with cGCPs, which include the requinet that all research subjects provide their mft consent for their participation in :
clinical trial. Clinical trials are conducted undg®otocols detailing, among other things, the dibjes of the study, the parameters to be us
monitoring safety, and the efficacy criteria toda@luated. A protocol for each clinical trial antyasubsequent protocol amendments mu
submitted to the FDA as part of the IND. Additidgabpproval must also be obtained from each dinidal site’s Institutional Review Boa
("IRB") before the trials may be initiated, and tf®B must monitor the study until completed. Thare also requirements governing
reporting of ongoing clinical trials and clinicala results to public registries.

The clinical investigation of a pharmaceutical,liming a biologic, is generally divided into threbases. Although the phases
usually conducted sequentially, they may overlabeocombined. The three phases of an investigatiems follows:

e Phase 1Phase 1 includes the initial introduction of anastigational product into humans. Phase 1 clinitals are typically close
monitored and may be conducted in patients withtdhget disease or condition or in healthy volurge€hese studies are designe
evaluate the safety, dosage tolerance, metabolishplharmacologic actions of the investigationaldpici in humans, the side effe
associated with increasing doses, and if posstblgain early evidence on effectiveness. Duringseha clinical trials, sufficie
information about the investigational prodscharmacokinetics and pharmacological effects beagbtained to permit the desigr
well-controlled and scientifically valid Phase 2 cliditréals. The total number of participants includadPhase 1 clinical trials varis
but is generally in the range of 20 to 80;

e« Phase 2.Phase 2 includes controlled clinical trials conddctto preliminarily or further evaluate the effeetiess of tr
investigational product for a particular indicatjghin patients with the disease or condition unsierdy, to determine dose
tolerance and optimal dosage, and to identify bssidverse side effects and safety risks assdopéth the product. Phase 2 clini
trials are typically welkontrolled, closely monitored, and conducted imn@téd patient population, usually involving no radihal
several hundred participants; and

 Phase 3.Phase 3 clinical trials are generally controllethichl trials conducted in an expanded patient jpatmn generally ¢
geographically dispersed clinical trial sites. Tlag performed after preliminary evidence sugggstifiectiveness of the product
been obtained, and are intended to further evaldasage, clinical effectiveness and safety, tobdista the overall benefitisk
relationship of the investigational product, angbtovide an adequate basis
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for product approval. Phase 3 clinical trials ubuilvolve several hundred to several thousand@pénts.

The clinical trial process can take three to tearyeor more to complete, and there can be no agxsuthat the data collected \
support FDA approval of the product. The FDA masgcgl clinical trials on hold at any point in thisopess if, among other reason:
concludes that clinical subjects are being expdeeh unacceptable health risk. Trials may alstebminated by IRBs, which must revi
and approve all research involving human subj&ite effects or adverse events that are reportddgdalinical trials can delay, impede
prevent marketing authorization.

The results of the preclinical and clinical testimong with information regarding the manufactgriof the product and propos
product labeling, are evaluated and, if determiagpropriate, submitted to the FDA through a BLAe®pplication includes all relevant ¢
available from pertinent preclinical and clinicaiats, including negative or ambiguous results adl ws positive findings, together w
detailed information relating to the prodwcthemistry, manufacturing, controls and proposéeling, among other things. Data can c
from companysponsored clinical trials intended to test the tyaéand effectiveness of a use of a product, or feomumber of alternati
sources, including studies initiated by investigato

Once the BLA submission has been accepted fogfiline FDAS standard goal is to review applications withim meonths of the filin
date or, in the case of Priority Review, six morftiosn the filing date. The review process is ofsggnificantly extended by FDA requests
additional information or clarification. The FDAviews the BLA to determine, among other things, thbethe proposed product is safe, |
and potent, which includes determining whethersiteffective for its intended use, and whether thedpct is being manufactured
accordance with cGMP, to assure and preserve tidupt's identity, strength, quality, potency and purithe FDA may refer the applicati
to an advisory committee for review, evaluation amcbmmendation as to whether the application shbelapproved. The FDA is not bol
by the recommendation of an advisory committeejtitypically follows such recommendations.

The FDA has four program designations - Fast Tr&8ckakthrough Therapy, Accelerated Approval andmy Review -to facilitate
and expedite development and review of new drugsltbress unmet medical needs in the treatmentrioiuseor lifethreatening condition
The Fast Track designation provides pharmaceutiealufacturers with opportunities for frequent iattions with FDA reviewers during t
products development and the ability for the manufactioedo a rolling submission of the BLA. A rolling lsmission allows complet
portions of the application to be submitted andewed by the FDA on an ongoing basis. The BreakiinoTherapy designation provic
manufacturers with all of the features of the Fasick designation as well as intensive guidancéngsiementing an efficient developm
program for the product and a commitment by the R®Avolve senior managers and experienced restaff in the review. The Acceleras
Approval designation allows the FDA to approve aduct based on an effect on a surrogate or intdateedndpoint that is reasonably lik
to predict a product’s clinical benefit and genlgregquires the manufacturer to conduct requirest-ppproval confirmatory trials to verify t
clinical benefit. The Priority Review designatioreams that the FDA'goal is to take action on the BLA within six miasit compared to t
months under standard review.

After the FDA evaluates the BLA and conducts insipes of manufacturing facilities where the cantédaroduct and/or its API will t
produced, it may issue an approval letter or a GetefResponse Letter. An approval letter authorceamercial marketing of the biolo
with specific prescribing information for specifitdications. A Complete Response Letter indicates the review cycle of the applicatiol
complete and the application is not ready for apaltoA Complete Response Letter may require aduifielinical data and/or an additio
pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial(s), and/or othemsifigant, expensive and timesnsuming requirements related to clinical tripigclinical studie
or manufacturing. Even if such additional informatiis submitted, the FDA may ultimately decide ttiegt BLA does not satisfy the crite
for approval. The FDA could approve the BLA wittRé&k Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy ("REMS"gplto mitigate risks, which cot
include medication guides, physician communicajiens, or elements to assure safe use, such agtegbtdistribution methods, patit
registries and other risk minimization tools. ThBA-also may condition approval on, among other dhjnchanges to proposed label
development of adequate controls and specificatimna commitment to conduct one or more post-ntatalies or clinical trials. Such post-
market testing may include Phase 4 clinical traatsl surveillance to further assess and monitoptbducts safety and effectiveness a
commercialization.

There can be no marketing in the U.S. of a biolagitl a BLA has been submitted and approved byRB&. Until an application
actually approved, there can be no assurancehtbatformation requested and submitted will be mered adequate by the FDA.

European Union In Europe, there are several tracks for marketipgroval, depending on the type of product forahhapproval i
sought. Under the centralized procedure, a compahbgnits a single application to the EMA. The marigapplication is similar to the NC
in the U.S. and is evaluated by the Committee fedMinal Products for Human Use (the "CHMP"), thxpeaxt scientific committee of tl
EMA. If the CHMP determines that the marketing &mtion fulfills the
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requirements for quality, safety, and efficacyyill submit a favorable opinion to the European Quission (the "EC"). The CHMP opinion
not binding, but is typically adopted by the ECmAarketing application approved by the EC is vatiéii member states.

In addition to the centralized procedure, the E€bdlas: (i) a nationalized procedure, which reguaieseparate application to .
approval determination by each country; (ii) a diadized procedure, whereby applicants submittidehapplications to several count
and receive simultaneous approval; and (iii) a mlutacognition procedure, where applicants submiaplication to one country for revi
and other countries may accept or reject the Indgaision. Regardless of the approval process @yegdl various parties share responsibil
for the monitoring, detection, and evaluation overde events posipproval, including national authorities, the EMike EC, and tf
marketing authorization holder.

Post-Approval Requirements

Any products manufactured or distributed by us mroar behalf pursuant to FDA approvals are suligciontinuing regulation by tl
FDA, including requirements for recokeeping, reporting of adverse experiences with llwogic, and submitting biological prodi
deviation reports to notify the FDA of unanticipditehanges in distributed products. Additionallyy aignificant change in the appro
product or in how it is manufactured, including rbes in formulation or the site of manufacture,egatly require prior FDA approval. T
packaging and labeling of all products developed$wpre also subject to FDA approval and ongoigglegion.

Manufacturers are required to register their féesi with the FDA and certain state agencies, ardsabject to periodic unannoun
inspections by the FDA and certain state agenoiesdmpliance with cGMP standards, which impos¢ageiquality processes, manufactu
controls and documentation requirements upon usoanthirdparty manufacturers in order to ensure that theyzbis safe, has the iden
and strength, and meets the quality, purity aneémmt characteristics that it purports to have. &erstates also impose requirement
manufacturers and distributors to establish thegped of product in the chain of distribution, iading some states that require manufact
and others to adopt new technology capable of imgcind tracing product as it moves through théridigtion chain. Noncompliance w
cGMP or other requirements can result in issuafigegaming letters, civil and criminal penaltiesjzges, and injunctive action.

FDA regulations also require investigation and eotion of any deviations from cGMP and impose répgrand documentatis
requirements upon us and any thirarty manufacturers that we may decide to use. wliegly, manufacturers must continue to expend |
money and effort in the area of production and igiabntrol to maintain compliance with cGMP anéi@t aspects of regulatory compliance.

The FDA and other federal and state agencies gloegllate the labeling, marketing and promotiomiefgs. While doctors are free
prescribe any product approved by the FDA for as®, @ company can only make claims relating totgafed efficacy of a product that .
consistent with FDA approval, and the company lisvatd to market a drug only for the particular asel treatment approved by the FDA
addition, any claims we make for our products ineatising or promotion must be appropriately baéthavith important safety informati
and otherwise be adequately substantiated. Faducemply with these requirements can result ineask publicity, warning letters, correcl
advertising, injunctions, potential civil and crimal penalties, criminal prosecution, and agreemaittsgovernmental agencies that mater|
restrict the manner in which a company promotedigiributes drug products. Government regulaterduding the Department of Justice
the Office of the Inspector General of the Departtref Health and Human Services, as well as statteoaities, recently have increased t
scrutiny of the promotion and marketing of drugs.

The FDA also enforces the requirements of the Ppgmn Drug Marketing Act, which, among other thf) imposes variol
requirements in connection with the distributionppbduct samples to physicians. Sales, marketingsarentific/educational grant progra
must comply with the Federal Ariflickback Statute, the False Claims Act, and sinsi@te laws. Pricing and rebate programs must of
with the Medicaid rebate requirements of the OmsilBudget Reconciliation Act of 1990, as amended. Mé&y also be subject to !
Physician Payment Sunshine Act ("Sunshine Act")clwhiegulates disclosure of payments to healthaarfegsionals and providers.

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPAINd U.K. Bribery Act prohibit companies and thedpresentatives from offerir
promising, authorizing or making payments to foredfficials (and certain private individuals undilee U.K. Bribery Act) for the purpose
obtaining or retaining business abroad. In manyntres, the healthcare professionals we interatt wiay meet the definition of a fore
government official for purposes of the FCPA. Falto comply with domestic or foreign laws couldukt in various adverse consequen
including possible delay in approval or refusabfiprove a product, recalls, seizures, withdrawarofpproved product from the market,
imposition of civil or criminal sanctions and theopecution of executives overseeing our internatioperations.
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Orphan Drugs

Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may grant orpdarg designation to drugs intended to treat a daease or condition, which
generally defined as a disease or condition tHattsf fewer than 200,000 individuals in the U.Spl@m drug designation must be reque
before submitting a BLA. In the U.S., orphan drwgsidnation entitles a party to financial incentisesh as opportunities for grant func
towards clinical trial costs, tax advantages, asetrfee waivers. After the FDA grants orphan drug deaiipn, the generic identity of the d
and its potential orphan use are disclosed pubbglythe FDA. Orphan drug designation does not cprargy advantage in, or shorten
duration of, the regulatory review and approvalcess. The first BLA applicant to receive FDA apiofor a particular active ingredient
treat a particular disease with FDA orphan druggiedion is entitled to a sevemar exclusive marketing period in the U.S. fort fhi@duct
for that indication. During the sevemar exclusivity period, the FDA may not approve ather applications to market the same drug fe
same orphan indication, except in limited circumsés, such as a showing of clinical superiorityhi® product with orphan exclusivity ol
FDA finds that the holder of the orphan drug exdlitsg has not shown that it can assure the avditghof sufficient quantities of the orph
drug to meet the needs of patients with the diseaseondition for which the drug was designated. &Asesult, even if one of our di
candidates receives orphan exclusivity, the FDAgtdhapprove other drugs that have a differentvadngredient for use in treating the s
indication or disease. Furthermore, the FDA carvevarphan exclusivity if we are unable to manufeetufficient supply of our product.

Pharmaceutical Coverage, Pricing and Reimbursement

Sales of our products will depend, in part, ongkent to which our products will be covered bydkparty payors, such as federal, si
and foreign government health care programs, cowialeinsurance and managed healthcare organizatiimsse thirdparty payors al
increasingly reducing reimbursements for medicatlpcts, drugs and services. In addition, the UoSegiment, state legislatures and for
governments have continued implementing cost comtent programs, including price controls, resiigé on reimbursement &
requirements for substitution of generic produéigoption of price controls and costentainment measures, and adoption of more régé
policies in jurisdictions with existing controls garmeasures, could further limit our net revenue aeslilts. Decreases in thipdity
reimbursement for our drug candidates or a deciBioa thirdparty payor to not cover our drug candidates coettlice physician usage
our products once approved and have a materiarseledfect on our sales, results of operationsfimagcial condition.

Other Healthcare Laws

Although we currently do not have any productstanmarket, if our drug candidates are approvedwamtlegin commercialization, \
may be subject to additional healthcare regulatind enforcement by the federal government and Hiyodties in the states and fore
jurisdictions in which we conduct our business. ISlaws include, without limitation, state and femlesintikickback, fraud and abuse, fe
claims, privacy and security and physician sunskimes and regulations. If our operations are fotmbe in violation of any of such laws
any other governmental regulations that apply toaessmay be subject to penalties, including, withouitation, civil and criminal penaltie
damages, fines, the curtailment or restructurin@wf operations, exclusion from participation inldeal and state healthcare programs
imprisonment, any of which could adversely affeat ability to operate our business and our findrreisults.

Intellectual Property

We seek to protect our proprietary technology atietrointellectual property that we believe is impat to our business, including
seeking, maintaining and defending patents. We rallsoon trade secrets and kndwow to protect our business. We seek licenses &ibrar:
as appropriate to enhance or maintain our competitosition.

Our intellectual property is primarily directed immunological approaches to the treatment of dedkat involve amyloid or ¢
adhesion, and other proprietary technologies aadgsses related to our lead product developmedidzes.

We own or hold exclusive licenses to a number sfiésl U.S. patents and pending U.S. patent applitgtas well as issued fore
patents and pending Patent Corporation Treaty egijins and foreign counterparts. As of February2®15, our patent portfolio included
following patents or patent applications that wenaw have exclusively licensed from other parties:

* Approximately 57 patent and patent applicationatesl to AL or AA amyloidosis, including our NEODOPlogram
* Approximately 133 patents and patent applicatictated to Parkinsosidisease and other synucleinopat
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including our PRX002 program;

« Approximately 20 patents and patent applicationated to psoriasis and other inflammatory diseasediding our PRX00
program; and

- Approximately 77 patents and patent applicatiotested to other potential targets of intervent

The term of individual patents depends upon thalleggm of the patents in the countries in whiakytAre obtained. In most count
in which we file, the patent term is 20 years frtime date of filing the non-provisional applicatidn. the U.S., a paterg’term may t
lengthened by patent term adjustment, which congiessa patentee for administrative delays by ti& Batent and Trademark Office
granting a patent, or may be shortened if a pagelerminally disclaimed over an earlier-filed pate

The term of a patent that covers an FBgproved drug may also be eligible for patent textension, which permits patent te
restoration of a U.S. patent as compensation fergdtent term lost during the FDA regulatory revipmcess. The HatcWaxman Ac
permits a patent term extension of up to five ydangond the expiration of the patent. The lengtthefpatent term extension is related tc
length of time the drug is under regulatory revidwpatent term extension cannot extend the remgitérm of a patent beyond a total of
years from the date of product approval and onky patent applicable to an approved drug may bendgte Moreover, a patent can only
extended once, and thus, if a single patent isiGadge to multiple products, it can only be extathtbased on one product. Similar provisi
are available in Europe and other foreign jurisditt to extend the term of a patent that coverapproved drug. When possible, depen
upon the length of clinical trials and other fastamvolved in the filing of a BLA, we expect to dpgor patent term extensions for pate
covering our product candidates and their methédse.

The patents referenced above have expiration datggng from 2020 through 2036 (excluding any ald# patent term extensions).

University of Tennessee License Agreemidntler a License Agreement with the University ohifessee Research Foundation, we
exclusively licensed from the University of Tenresséts joint ownership interest in certain patgaitstly owned with us. Those patents re
to our program targeting amyloidosis. Under thdilisensable, worldwide license, we are requiregdy to the University of Tennessee
amount equal to 1% of net sales of any product reavéy any licensed patent, plus certain additigragiments in the event that all ¢
portion of the license is sublicensed. To date haee not paid or incurred any royalties to the @rsity of Tennessee under our agreer
The agreement is effective on a countrydmymtry basis for the longer of (i) a period of hiye years from the date of execution of
agreement, or (ii) in each country in which a valigim for any licensed patent or patent applicagaists, expiration of such valid claim. -
agreement will terminate prior to the end of itgrtéf we become insolvent unless the Universityfehnessee elects to allow the agreeme
remain in effect. The University of Tennessee neagntnate the agreement prior to the end of its tgpon our failure to make payment ur
the agreement within 120 days of notice of sucluffaior upon our material breach of the agreemehich breach has not been cured wi
60 days of written notice of such breach. We mamirate the agreement prior to the end of its térwe have paid all amounts due to
University of Tennessee through the effective dditthe termination and provide three monthsitten notice to the University of Tennes
or upon material breach of the agreement by theéssity of Tennessee, which breach has not beexdawithin 60 days of written notice
such breach.

University of California License Agreemetunder a License Agreement with The Regents of theséssity of California, we hay
exclusively licensed from the University of Califida its joint ownership interest in certain patgotatly owned with us. Those patents re
to our program targeting alplsgnuclein. Under that sublicensable, worldwiderg® we are required to pay to the University dff@aia ar
amount equal to 1% of net sales of any product by any licensed patent, plus certain additigrgiments for milestones achieved
sublicense revenue. To date, we have not paidooiried any royalties to the University of Califaninder our agreement. The agreeme
effective until the expiration date of the lasteixpire licensed patent. The obligation to pay rogsalcontinues on a country-fwpuntry basi
until the expiration of the last to expire pateahwining a valid claim covering the applicablequct. The agreement will terminate prio
the end of its term without prior written notice(if we, or third parties on our behalf or at ouitten urging, file a claim including an asser
that any portion of the licensed patents is invalidinenforceable, or (ii) upon the filing of aifien for relief under the U.S. Bankruptcy C¢
by or against us as a debtor or alleged debtor.Urieersity of California may terminate the agreatnprior to the end of its term upon
default, if we fail to cure the default within 6@y of written notice of such default. We may teraté the agreement prior to the end ¢
term upon a 90 day written notice to the UniversityCalifornia.

Elan License Agreementinder an Amended and Restated Intellectual Profgdagnse and Contribution Agreement with Elan
certain of its affiliates, we have exclusively lsed from Elan and those affiliates certain patants patent applications owned by them,
exclusively sublicensed from Elan and those affiacertain patents and patent applications ownedahssen Alzheimer Immunothere
Those licenses are worldwide, fully paid, royaltgef, perpetual and irrevocable,
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and relate to our program targeting alpha-synuclein
Competition

The pharmaceutical industry is highly competiti@ur principal competitors consist of major intefoaal companies, all of which ¢
larger and have greater financial resources, teahstaff, manufacturing, R&D and marketing cap#ibs than we have. We also comy
with smaller research companies and generic drddoasimilar manufacturers. The degree of cometitiaries for each of our programs.

A drug may be subject to competition from alterwvattherapies during the period of patent protectiomegulatory exclusivity ar
thereafter it may be subject to further competitfoom generic products or biosimilars. Governmerdatl other pressures toward
dispensing of generic products or biosimilars mayidly and significantly reduce, slow or reverse growth, sales and profitability of ¢
product not protected by patents or regulatory westeity, and may adversely affect our future resudind financial condition. If v
successfully discover, develop and commercializemonducts, the launch of competitive productsludimg generic or biosimilar versions
any such products, may have a material adverseteffeour revenues and results of operations.

Our competitive position depends in part upon dilitg to discover and develop innovative and ceffective new products. If we fi
to discover and develop new products, our busirigss)cial condition and results of operations Wil materially and adversely affected.

Product Supply

While supplies of raw materials and clinical supplbf our main product candidate are generallylaiai in quantities adequate to rr
the needs of our business, we are dependent onriBgeh Ingelheim to manufacture our clinical supplifor certain of our therapet
antibody programs. An inability to obtain produapply could have a material adverse effect on asiress, financial condition or result:
operations.

Research and Development

Our research and development expenses totaled 88fidn , $26.1 million and $34.1 milliom 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
more information, see “"Management’s Discussion Aandlysis of Financial Condition and Results of CGyiems.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we had 46 employees,hafimv29were engaged in research and development actidtidsthe remaind
were working in general and administrative areas.

Information about Segment and Geographic Revenue
Information about segment and geographic revensetiforth in Note 2 to the Consolidated FinanSi@tements included in this report.
Available information

Our principal executive office is at Alexandra Hep3he Sweepstakes, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Irelamdi our telephone number at
address is 011-353-1-9B519. We are subject to the information and peciodporting requirements of the Securities Exchahcfeof 1934
as amended, and, in accordance therewith, fileogierireports, proxy statements and other infornmatidth the Securities and Exchal
Commission (the “SEC”). Such periodic reports, grexatements and other information are availabtérfgpection and copying at the SEC’
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE., WashindC 20549 or may be obtained by calling the SEC-800-SE@330. In addition, tt
SEC maintains a website at www.sec.gov that costaports, proxy statements and other informatamarding issuers that file electronici
with the SEC. We also post on the Investors pageunfwebsite, www.prothena.com, a link to our fijgnwith the SEC, our Corpor:
Governance Guidelines and Code of Conduct, whighiegpto all directors and employees, and the emaf our Audit, Compensation, ¢
Nominating and Corporate Governance CommitteesuofBwoard of Directors. Our filings with the SEC grested on our website and
available free of charge as soon as reasonablyigahafter they are filed electronically with t&&C. Please note that information containe
our website is not incorporated by reference ingamsidered to be a part of, this report. You dan abtain copies of these documents fre
charge by writing or telephoning us at: ProthenapGration plc, Alexandra House, The SweepstakebstBalge, Dublin 4, Ireland, 011-353-
1-902-3519, or through the Investors page of oursite.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks describedblw, together with all of the other informationcinded in this Form 16, in
considering our business and prospects. Set fartbwband elsewhere in this report and in other dems we file with the SEC ¢
descriptions of certain risks, uncertainties arfteofactors that could cause our actual resultiffer materially from those anticipated. If ¢
of the following risks, other unknown risks or rsthat we think are immaterial occur, our businéegncial condition, results of operatio
cash flows or growth prospects could be adversepaict, which could result in a complete loss onryouestment.

Risks Relating to Our Financial Position, Our Needor Additional Capital and Our Business

We anticipate that we will incur losses for the &geeable future and we may never sustain profitiynil

We may not generate the cash that is necessairyatack our operations in the foreseeable futureintigrred net losses of $7.2 million
$41.0 million and $41.4 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?|, 264pectively. We expect to continue to incurssaihtia
losses for the foreseeable future as we:

conduct our Phase 3 and Phase 1/2 clinical troalSiEODO001, conduct our Phase 1 clinical trialsR&X002, and initiate additior
clinical trials for these and other programs;

develop and commercialize our product candidatesiding NEODO001, PRX002 and PRX0
complete preclinical development of other produtdidates and initiate clinical trials, if suppartey positive preclinical data; a

pursue our early stage research and seek to igewtifitional drug candidates and potentially acggughts from third parties to dr
candidates through licenses, acquisitions or atieans.

We must generate significant revenue to achieve mathtain profitability. Even if we succeed in disering, developing ai
commercializing one or more drug candidates, we nwybe able to generate sufficient revenue anthax never be able to achieve or sus
profitability.

We will require additional capital to fund our opations, and if we are unable to obtain such capijtave will be unable to successfu
develop and commercialize drug candidates.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had cash and caskaquots of $293.6 million Although we believe, based on our current busipdsns
that our existing cash and cash equivalents wilslifficient to meet our obligations for at least thext twelve months, we anticipate that
will require additional capital in the future indar to continue the research and development, aadt@ally commercialization, of our dr
candidates. Our future capital requirements wiletel on many factors that are currently unknowmstancluding, without limitation:

the timing of initiation, progress, results and tsosf our clinical trials, including our Phase 3daRhase 1/2 clinical trials 1
NEODOO01, our Phase 1 clinical trials for PRX002] aar contemplated Phase 1 clinical trial for PRX(

the timing, initiation, progress, results and costshese and our other research, development aminercialization activitie
including in connection with PRX002 under our LiserAgreement with Roche;

the results of our research and preclinical sty
the costs of clinical manufacturing and of estdiitig commercial manufacturing arrangements andr athh@mercialization neec

the costs of preparing, filing and prosecutiradept applications and maintaining, enforcing aefedding intellectual property-
related claims;

our ability to establish research collaborationstsgic collaborations, licensing or other arrangats
the costs to satisfy our obligations under potéfire collaborations; ar

the timing, receipt, and amount of revenues orlt@s if any, from any approved drug candidz:

We have based our expectations relating to liquiditd capital resources on assumptions that mayepgmwbe wrong, and we could 1
our available capital resources sooner than wesntlyrexpect. Because of the numerous risks andrtainties
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associated with the development and commerciatizadf our product candidates, we are unable tonasi the amounts of increased ca
outlays and operating expenses associated withletingpthe development of our current product cdatés.

In the pharmaceutical industry, the research anéldpment process is lengthy and involves a higireke of risk and uncertainty. T
process is conducted in various stages and, dednj stage, there is a substantial risk that ptathradidates in our research and develop
pipeline will experience difficulties, delays oiiltaes. This makes it difficult to estimate theabtosts to complete our ongoing clinical tr
and to estimate anticipated completion dates with degree of accuracy, which raises concerns ti@mpats to quantify costs and prov
estimates of timing may be misleading by implyingraater degree of certainty than actually exists.

In order to develop and obtain regulatory apprdeabur product candidates we will need to raisessantial additional funds. We exp
to raise any such additional funds through publiprivate equity or debt financings, collaboratagreements with corporate partners or ¢
arrangements. We cannot assure you that additfands will be available when we need them on tetina¢ are acceptable to us, or at
General market conditions may make it very diffidal us to seek or obtain financing from the calpiharkets. If we raise additional funds
issuing equity securities, substantial dilutioretasting shareholders would result. If we raiseigaigal funds by incurring debt financing, -
terms of the debt may involve significant cash pagtrobligations as well as covenants and spedifantial ratios that may restrict our abi
to operate our business. We may be required toqukh rights to our technologies or drug candslategrant licenses on terms that are
favorable to us in order to raise additional futit®ugh strategic alliances, joint ventures orrdgiag arrangements.

If adequate funds are not available on a timelyshage may be required to:

e terminate or delay clinical trials or other deveatemt for one or more of our drug candide

« delay arrangements for activities that may be resrgso commercialize our drug candidz

« curtail or eliminate our drug research and develepnprograms that are designed to identify new darglidates; «
e cease operatior

In addition, if we do not meet our payment obligas to third parties as they come due, we may bjsito litigation claims. Even if v
are successful in defending against these claitigatlon could result in substantial costs andrdid management, and may have unfavo
results that could further adversely impact ouafficial condition.

Our historical financial information is not necessdy representative of the results we would havehayved as a separate, publicly trac
company and may not be a reliable indicator of duture results.

Prior to our separation from Elan on December 20,22 our financial results previously were includeithin the consolidated results
Elan; however, we were not directly subject to iéygorting and other requirements of the ExchangeuAt! our separation from Elan, wh
we refer to in this Form 10-K as the “Separatiod @istribution.” The historical financial information we have inchetor incorporated |
reference in this report may not reflect what dnerficial condition, results of operations and cfistvs would have been had we beer
independent, publicly traded company during théoglsrpresented or what our results of operatidnantial position and cash flows will be
the future. This is primarily because:

e our historical financial information reflects albt@ns for services historically provided to us Bkan, which allocations may r
reflect the costs we will incur for similar servici the future as an independent company;

* subsequent to the completion of the Separatiomasitibution, the cost of capital for our businéss been and may continue tc
higher than Elan’s cost of capital prior to the &apion and Distribution because Ekost of debt was lower than ours has
and will likely continue to be; and

e our historical financial information does not retiehanges that we have incurred as a result o$dparation of our business fr
Elan, including changes in the cost structure, ggarel needs, financing and operations of the douieid business as a result of
separation from Elan and from reduced economissale.

We are also responsible for the additional coste@ated with being an independent, public compamjuding costs related to corpor
governance and compliance with the rules of TheddasStock Market ("Nasdaq") and the SEC. In addjtiwe incur costs and expen:
including professional fees, to comply with Iristrpgorate and tax laws and financial reporting regaents and costs and expenses incurt
connection with holding the meetings of our boafdlicectors, or our Board, in Ireland. Prior to tSeparation and Distribution, our busir
was operated by Elan as part of its broader cotpanganization, rather than as an independent aoypklan or one of its affiliates perforn
various corporate functions for us, including, but
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not limited to, legal, treasury, accounting, audjti risk management, information technology, humesources, corporate affairs,
administration, certain governance functions antreral reporting. Our historical financial resuitelude allocations of corporate exper
from Elan for these and similar functions. Thedecaltions of cash and narash expenses are less than the comparable expeedesv:
incurred thus far as a separate publicly tradedpaom. Therefore, our consolidated Financial Stateaseay not be indicative of our futi
performance as an independent company.

Our future success depends on our ability to ret&i@y personnel and to attract, retain and motivapgalified personnel.

We are highly dependent on key personnel, inclu@ngDale B. Schenk, our President and Chief ExeeuDfficer. There can be
assurance that we will be able to retain Dr. Sctamény of our key personnel. The loss of the sexviof Dr. Schenk or any other persol
which we become highly dependent might impede ttide@ement of our research and development obgstiRecruiting and retaini
qualified scientific personnel will also be critida our success. We may not be able to attractratain these personnel on acceptable t
given the competition among numerous pharmaceuialbiotechnology companies for similar personvad. also experience competition
the hiring of scientific personnel from universitiand research institutions.

We announced on December 2, 2014 that Dr. Scheskban diagnosed with pancreatic cancer. He isrgauhg treatment for th
cancer.

Our collaborators, prospective collaborators andpgliers may need assurances that our financial rastes and stability on a standlone
basis are sufficient to satisfy their requiremerfte doing or continuing to do business with us.

Some of our collaborators, prospective collabosatomd suppliers may need assurances that our faharesources and stability or
standalone basis are sufficient to satisfy their requieats for doing or continuing to do business wish Ildi our collaborators, prospect
collaborators or suppliers are not satisfied with financial resources and stability, it could havenaterial adverse effect on our abilit
develop our drug candidates, enter into licenseghmr agreements and on our business, finanamlitton or results of operations.

The agreements we have entered into with Elan imeotonflicts of interest and therefore may have eddlly disadvantageous terms to us.

We have entered into certain agreements with Elaszohnection with the Separation and Distributi@hjch set forth the main terms
the separation and provide a framework for ouridhitelationship with Elan. These agreements mayehterms that are materie
disadvantageous to us or are otherwise not asdbiemas those that might be negotiated betweerfiliatafl third parties. In December 20
Elan was acquired by Perrigo Company plc ("Perjigahd in February 2014 Perrigo caused Elan toadebf its shares of Prothena in
underwritten offering. As a result of the acquitiof Elan by Perrigo and the subsequent salel aff éils shares of Prothena, Perrigo ma
less willing to collaborate with us in connectioitmthe agreements to which we and Elan are a paudyother matters.

Risks Related to the Discovery, Development and Relgtory Approval of Drug Candidates

Our success is largely dependent on the successuofresearch and development programs. Our drug daates are in various stages
development and we may not be able to successfiidigover, develop, obtain regulatory approval farammmercialize any drug candidates.

The success of our business depends substantily aur ability to discover, develop, obtain regatg approval for and commercial
our drug candidates successfully. Our researctdamdlopment programs are prone to the significadtliéely risks of failure inherent in dr
development. We intend to continue to invest mbsiuo time and financial resources in our researmth development programs.

Although we have ongoing Phase 3 and Phase 1/i2allimials for NEODOO1 and Phase 1 clinical trifds PRX002, there is no assura
that these clinical trials will support further ddepment of these drug candidates. In additioncureently do not, and may never, have
other drug candidates in clinical trials and weéhawt identified drug candidates for many of owesrch programs.

Before obtaining regulatory approvals for the conuizé sale of any drug candidate for a target iatian, we must demonstrate w
substantial evidence gathered in adequate andcamettolled clinical trials, and, with respect topapval in the U.S., to the satisfaction of
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") orithvrespect to approval in other countries, simitgulatory authorities in those countr
that the drug candidate is safe and effective far for that target indication. Satisfaction of thesd other regulatory requirements is cc
time consuming, uncertain, and subject to unardteip delays. Despite our efforts, our drug candilaiay not:
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» offer improvement over existing, comparable prod|
e be proven safe and effective in clinical trials
* meet applicable regulatory standa

Positive results in preclinical studies of a driamndidate may not be predictive of similar resuttshumans during clinical trials, a
promising results from early clinical trials of eud candidate may not be replicated in later céihtgals. Interim results of a clinical trial dot
necessarily predict final results. A number of camips in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology itnéhsshave suffered significant setback
late-stage clinical trials even after achievingmiging results in earlgtage development. Accordingly, the results frormgleted preclinici
studies and clinical trials for our drug candidateay not be predictive of the results we may obfaidater stage trials or studies. (
preclinical studies or clinical trials may produtegative or inconclusive results, and we may deadeegulators may require us, to cont
additional preclinical studies or clinical triats, to discontinue clinical trials altogether.

Furthermore, we have not marketed, distributedott any products. Our success will, in additiorirte factors discussed above, dey
on the successful commercialization of our drugdadates, which may require:

e obtaining and maintaining commercial manufaciyiarrangements with thingarty manufacturer
« collaborating with pharmaceutical companies or @mritsales organizations to market and sell anyoseg drug; ¢
e acceptance of any approved drug in the med@alncunity and by patients and thiparty payor:

Many of these factors are beyond our control. Waaloexpect any of our drug candidates to be comialgr available for several ye:
and some or all may never become commercially aigl Accordingly, we may never generate revenuesigh the sale of products.

If clinical trials of our drug candidates are prologed, delayed, suspended or terminated, we may retble to commercialize our drt
candidates on a timely basis, which would require 10 incur additional costs and delay our receigtany revenue from potential produ
sales.

We cannot predict whether we will encounter protdemith our Phase 3 or Phase 1/2 clinical trialsN&ODO0O01, our Phase 1 clini
trials for PRX002, or any future clinical trialsathwill cause us or any regulatory authority toaglebr suspend those clinical trials or delay
analysis of data derived from them. A number ofréseincluding any of the following, could delayethompletion of our planned clinical tri
and negatively impact our ability to obtain regatstapproval for, and to market and sell, a paldicdrug candidate:

« conditions imposed on us by the FDA or any forewgulatory authority regarding the scope or desigour clinical trials

< delays in obtaining, or our inability to obtaingtered approvals from institutional review board&®Bs") or other reviewing entitit
at clinical sites selected for participation in @linical trials;

» insufficient supply or deficient quality of our dywandidates or other materials necessary to comduclinical trials
< delays in obtaining regulatory agency agreementhferconduct of our clinical tria

« lower than anticipated enrollment and retentiom rmaft subjects in clinical trials for a variety adasons, including size of pati
population, nature of trial protocol, the avail#ilof other treatments for the relevant diseasg emmpetition from other clinic
trial programs for similar indications;

e serious and unexpected dmedated side effects experienced by patients mazl trials; o
« failure of our thirdparty contractors to meet their contractual obiayet to us in a timely mann
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Clinical trials may also be delayed or terminatsdaaesult of ambiguous or negative interim resifisaddition, a clinical trial may |
suspended or terminated by us, the FDA, the IRBiseasites where the IRBs are overseeing a tnia, data safety monitoring board ("DSM
overseeing the clinical trial at issue, or othgulatory authorities due to a number of factorsluding:

« failure to conduct the clinical trial in accordangith regulatory requirements or our clinical prodds;

* inspection of the clinical trial operations or triites by the FDA or other regulatory authoritresulting in the imposition of
clinical hold,;

e varying interpretation of data by the FDA or othegulatory authoritie

* requirement by the FDA or other regulatory authesito perform additional studi

- failure to achieve primary or secondary endpointstber failure to demonstrate effica
e unforeseen safety issues

« lack of adequate funding to continue the clinicill!

Additionally, changes in regulatory requirementsl guidance may occur and we may need to amendalitial protocols to refle
these changes. Amendments may require us to resobmélinical trial protocols to regulatory autitags and IRBs for reexamination, wh
may impact the cost, timing or successful comptetiba clinical trial.

We do not know whether our clinical trials will benducted as planned, will need to be restructarealill be completed on schedule
at all. Delays in our clinical trials will resulhiincreased development costs for our drug careidét addition, if we experience delays in
completion of, or if we terminate, any of our ctial trials, the commercial prospects for our dragdidates may be harmed and our abili
generate product revenues will be jeopardized.heantore, many of the factors that cause, or leaditdelay in the commencemen
completion of clinical trials may also ultimatelyad to the denial of regulatory approval of a dragdidate.

The regulatory approval processes of the FDA andngmarable foreign authorities are lengthy, time camming and inherenth
unpredictable, and if we are ultimately unable tdtain regulatory approval for our drug candidatesur business will be substantia
harmed.

The time required to obtain approval by the FDA anthparable foreign authorities is inherently udprtble but typically takes ma
years following the commencement of clinical triatsd depends upon numerous factors, including ubstantial discretion of the regulat
authorities. In addition, approval policies, regidas, or the type and amount of clinical data seaey to gain approval may change during
course of a drug candidasetlinical development and may vary among jurisditd. We have not obtained regulatory approvalafoy drug
candidate and it is possible that none of our &xjstirug candidates or any drug candidates we real £ develop in the future will e
obtain regulatory approval.

Our drug candidates could fail to receive regulatipproval for many reasons, including the follogvin
« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay disagree with the design or implementatioounfclinical trials

e we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfacfitihe FDA or comparable foreign regulatory auities that a drug candidate
safe and effective for its proposed indication;

« the results of clinical trials may not meet thedlesf statistical significance required by the FDAcomparable foreign regulat:
authorities for approval;

« we may be unable to demonstrate that a drugidates clinical and other benefits outweigh its safésks;

« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authasitieay disagree with our interpretation of data fymeclinical studies or clinic
trials;

» the data collected from clinical trials of our drogndidates may not be sufficient to support tHargssion of a Biologics Licen
Application ("BLA") or other submission or to ohtaiegulatory approval in the U.S. or elsewhere;

- the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory auttiesi may fail to approve the manufacturing processefacilities of thirdparty
manufacturers with which we contract for clinicadacommercial supplies; or
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» the approval policies or regulations of the FDAcomparable foreign regulatory authorities may digantly change in a manr
rendering our clinical data insufficient for appabv

This lengthy approval process as well as the ungtaguallity of future clinical trial results may rel in our failing to obtain regulato
approval to market our drug candidates, which waigdificantly harm our business, results of opgera and prospects. In addition, even i
were to obtain approval, regulatory authorities rapprove any of our drug candidates for fewer orenimited indications than we requ
may not approve the price we intend to charge forpyoducts, may grant approval contingent on thégomance of costly postarketing
clinical trials, or may approve a drug candidat¢hva label that does not include the labeling ctaimacessary or desirable for the succe
commercialization of that drug candidate. Any o€ tforegoing scenarios could materially harm the oential prospects for our dr
candidates.

We rely on obtaining and maintaining orphan drug ekusivity for NEODOO1, if approved, but cannot enguthat we will enjoy marke
exclusivity in a particular market.

NEODOO1 has been granted orphan drug designatiothdoyrDA for the treatment of AL and AA amyloidosiad by the Europe
Medicines Agency (the "EMA") for the treatment of Aamyloidosis. Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDAyrdesignate a product as
orphan drug if it is intended to treat a rare dsgear condition, defined as a disease or conditiahaffects a patient population of fewer 1
200,000 in the U.S., or a patient population gretitan 200,000 in the U.S. where there is no remtsierexpectation that the cost of develo
the drug will be recovered from sales in the UrStHe European Union (the "EU"), the EMACommittee for Orphan Medicinal Prodt
grants orphan drug designation to promote the dewetnt of products that are intended for the diagngrevention, or treatment of a life-
threatening or chronically debilitating conditioffezting not more than five in 10,000 persons ia BU. Additionally, designation is gran
for products intended for the diagnosis, preventmmtreatment of a liféhreatening, seriously debilitating or serious @hdonic conditio
when, without incentives, it is unlikely that sat#fsthe drug in the EU would be sufficient to jiigtihe necessary investment in developing
drug or biological product or where there is nas$attory method of diagnosis, prevention, or tmeait, or, if such a method exists,
medicine must be of significant benefit to thodeetkd by the condition.

In the U.S., orphan drug designation entitles ayp@r financial incentives such as opportunities deant funding towards clinical tr
costs, tax advantages, and uter-waivers. In addition, if a product receives tingt FDA approval for the indication for which litas orpha
designation, the product is entitled to orphan dmagusivity, which means the FDA may not appromg ather application to market the s¢
drug for the same indication for a period of seyears, except in limited circumstances, such asoaving of clinical superiority over tl
product with orphan exclusivity or where the matidieger is unable to assure sufficient product gtyanin the EU, orphan drug designat
entitles a party to financial incentives such atuotion of fees or fee waivers and ten years ofketagxclusivity following drug or biologic
product approval. This period may be reduced to/eexs if the orphan drudesignation criteria are no longer met, includirtzeve it is show
that the product is sufficiently profitable notjtstify maintenance of market exclusivity.

Even though we have obtained orphan drug design&dioNEODOOL1 in the U.S. and the EU, we may notHgefirst to obtain marketir
approval for any particular orphan indication daete uncertainties associated with developing mphaeutical products. Further, even if
obtain orphan drug designation for a product, &xatusivity may not effectively protect the prodéirm competition from different drugs w
different active moieties which may be approved tfte same condition. Orphan drug designation neshertens the development time
regulatory review time of a drug nor gives the dany advantage in the regulatory review or apprg@racess. Even if one of our di
candidates receives orphan exclusivity, the FDA stdlyapprove other drugs that have a differettivacdngredient for use in treating the st
indication or disease, or may approve an applinatiitomarket the same drug for the same indicatiah $hows clinical superiority over «
product. Furthermore, the FDA may waive orphansielty if we are unable to manufacture sufficisapply of our product.

Even if our drug candidates receive regulatory appal in the United States, we may never receiverapgl or commercialize our produc
outside of the United States.

In order to market any products outside of the Ua®. must establish and comply with numerous amging regulatory requirements
other countries regarding safety and efficacy. Appt procedures vary among countries and can ieveldditional product testing &
additional administrative review periods. The tiregquired to obtain approval in other countries ridjffer from that required to obtain FL
approval. The regulatory approval process in otloemtries may include all of the risks detailed\abeegarding FDA approval in the U.S
well as other risks. Regulatory approval in onentpudoes not ensure regulatory approval in anothet a failure or delay in obtaini
regulatory approval in one country may have a riega&ffect on the regulatory process in othersluFaito obtain regulatory approval in ot
countries or any delay or setback in obtaining amroval would impair our ability to develop fayaimarkets for our drug candidates.
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Both before and after marketing approval, our drutpndidates are subject to ongoing regulatory rearitents and continued regulatc
review, and if we fail to comply with these contimg requirements, we could be subject to a varieysanctions and the sale of a
approved products could be suspended.

Both before and after regulatory approval to makketarticular drug candidate, the manufacturingeliag, packaging, adverse ev
reporting, storage, advertising, promotion, disttibn and record keeping related to the productsalgect to extensive, ongoing regula
requirements. These requirements include submissidrsafety and other postarketing information and reports, registration,vasl as
continued compliance with current good manufacturpractice ("cGMP") requirements and current godidiacal practice ("cGCP'
requirements for any clinical trials that we condpastapproval. Any regulatory approvals that we recéoreour drug candidates may alsc
subject to limitations on the approved indicatedsufor which the product may be marketed or toadbeditions of approval, or cont:
requirements for potentially costly pasiarketing testing, including Phase 4 clinical gjand surveillance to monitor the safety and adfico
the drug candidate. Later discovery of previoushknown problems with a product, including adversengs of unanticipated severity
frequency, or with our thirgharty manufacturers or manufacturing processefiloire to comply with the regulatory requirementshe FDA
and other applicable U.S. and foreign regulatompatities could subject us to administrative origimlly imposed sanctions, including:

e restrictions on the marketing of our products @irtmanufacturing process
e warning letters

e civil or criminal penalties

o fines

e injunctions

e product seizures or detentio

e import or export ban

« voluntary or mandatory product recalls and relgtellicity requirement:

e suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approy

« total or partial suspension of production;

« refusal to approve pending applications for marigetipproval of new products or supplements to aggar@pplication:

The FDA's policies may change and additional governmentlatigns may be enacted that could prevent, limidelay regulator
approval of our drug candidates. If we are slowmable to adapt to changes in existing requirementee adoption of new requirement:
policies, or if we are not able to maintain regofgtcompliance, we may lose any marketing apprtvat we may have obtained, which wc
adversely affect our business, prospects andwbiliachieve or sustain profitability.

If side effects are identified during the time oulrug candidates are in development or after they @pproved and on the market, we n
choose to or be required to perform lengthy additéb clinical trials, discontinue development of thaffected drug candidate, change 1
labeling of any such products, or withdraw any suphoducts from the market, any of which would hinder preclude our ability to genera
revenues.

Undesirable side effects caused by our drug cateidasould cause us or regulatory authorities &riapt, delay or halt clinical trials a
could result in a more restrictive label or theagebr denial of regulatory approval by the FDA ¢ihey comparable foreign authorities.
drug+elated side effects could affect patient recruittner the ability of enrolled patients to compléie trial or result in potential prod
liability claims. Any of these occurrences may haoor business, financial condition and prospeasiicantly. Even if any of our dr
candidates receives marketing approval, as greatmbers of patients use a drug following its apploan increase in the incidence of :
effects or the incidence of other post-approvabfgmms that were not seen or anticipated duringap@-oval clinical trials could result ir
number of potentially significant negative consetes, including:

< regulatory authorities may withdraw their approefithe produc

* regulatory authorities may require the additiomatieling statements, such as warnings or contreations

20




* we may be required to change the way the produatlisinistered, conduct additional clinical trialsalmange the labeling of t
product;

e we could be sued and held liable for harm causeatients; an
e our reputation may suffe

Any of these events could substantially increagedbsts and expenses of developing, commercialiaimy marketing any such di
candidates or could harm or prevent sales of apyosed products.

We deal with hazardous materials and must complytwénvironmental laws and regulations, which can k&pensive and restrict how we
business.

Some of our research and development activitieslvievthe controlled storage, use, and disposabpéitdous materials. We are subje
federal, state, local and international laws arglli@ions governing the use, manufacture, storhgadling, and disposal of these hazar
materials. Although we believe that our safety paes for the handling and disposing of these niadégecomply with the standards prescri
by these laws and regulations, we cannot elimitia¢erisk of accidental contamination or injury fradimese materials. In the event of
accident, state or federal authorities may cudail use of these materials, and we could be litdslany civil damages that result, which r
exceed our financial resources and may seriousiy lvair business. Because we believe that our latrgrand materials handling policies i
practices sufficiently mitigate the likelihood ofaterials liability or thirdparty claims, we currently carry no insurance cimgesuch claims. A
accident could damage, or force us to shut downgparations.

Risks Related to the Commercialization of Our DrugCandidates

Even if any of our drug candidates receives reguat approval, if such approved product does not este broad market acceptance,
revenues that we generate from sales of the produititbe limited.

Even if any drug candidates we may develop or aequi the future obtain regulatory approval, thegymot gain broad mark
acceptance among physicians, healthcare payoisnfgand the medical community. The degree of atamkceptance for any approved ¢
candidate will depend on a number of factors, idicig:

e the indication and label for the product and th@rg of introduction of competitive produc

« demonstration of clinical safety and efficacy conagbto other product

e prevalence and severity of adverse side eff

< availability of coverage and adequate reimbuesgnfrom managed care plans and other thady payors
e convenience and ease of administrat

» costeffectivenes:

« other potential advantages of alternative treatnmeethods; ar

« the effectiveness of marketing and distributiongarpof the produc

Consequently, even if we discover, develop and ceroialize a product, the product may fail to ackibvoad market acceptance anc
may not be able to generate significant revenuma fitee product.

The success of PRX002 in the United States is depah upon the strength and performance of our cditzration with Roche. If we fail t
maintain our existing collaboration with Roche, shaermination would likely have a material adverséfect on our ability to commerciali:
PRX002 and our business. Furthermore, if we opt aiftprofit and loss sharing with Roche, our reversifom PRX002 will be reduces

The success of sales of PRX002 in the U.S. willlgendent on the ability of Roche to successfudlyetbp in collaboration with us, a
launch and commercialize PRX002, if approved by ¥, pursuant to the License Agreement we entéméml in December 2013. C
collaboration with Roche is complex, particularlitwespect to future U.S. commercialization of RIRX, with respect to financial provisio
allocations of responsibilities, cost estimates #redrespective rights of the parties in decisiakimg. Accordingly, significant aspects of
commercialization of PRX002 require Roche to exedts responsibilities under the arrangement, quire Roches agreement or approv
prior to implementation, which could cause sigrifit delays that may materially impact the potengiatcess of PRX002 in the U.S
addition, Roche may under some circumstances imdigpely
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develop products that compete with PRX002, or Ravlag decide to not commit sufficient resourcesh®e inmarketing and distribution
PRX002. If we are not able to collaborate effedsiweith Roche on plans and efforts to develop amchimercialize PRX002, our business ct
be materially adversely affected.

Furthermore, the terms of the License Agreementigeothat Roche has the ability to terminate sucargement for any reason after
first anniversary of the License Agreement at ametupon 90 days’ notice (if prior to first commialcsale) or 180 daysiotice (if after firs
commercial sale). For example, Roche may deterrtiine the outcomes of clinical trials have made P&X@ less attractive commert
product and terminate our collaboration. If thedrise Agreement is terminated, our business andhility to generate revenue from sale
PRX002 could be substantially harmed as we willrbguired to develop our own sales and marketin@rimgtion or enter into anott
strategic collaboration in order to commercialiZX®02 in the U.S. Such efforts may not be succéssfd, even if successful, would req
substantial time and resources to carry out.

The manner in which Roche launches PRX002, inctyuttie timing of launch and potential pricing, withve a significant impact on 1
ultimate success of PRX002 in the U.S, and theesscof the overall commercial arrangement with Rot¢hlaunch of commercial sales
PRX002 in the U.S. by Roche is delayed or preverdadrevenue will suffer and our stock price maglahe. Further, if launch and result
sales by Roche are not deemed successful, ourdsgsimould be harmed and our stock price may dedling lesser effort by Roche in
PRX002 sales and marketing efforts may result imelorevenue and thus lower profits with respecth® U.S. The outcome of Rocke’
commercialization efforts in the U.S. could alseoda negative effect on investoperception of potential sales of PRX002 outsidthefU.S.
which could also cause a decline in our stock price

Furthermore, pursuant to the License Agreementaneaesponsible for 30% of all development and censialization costs for PRXO0!
for the treatment of Parkinson’s disease in the l48d for any future Licensed Products and/orcatitons that we opt to adevelop, in eac
case unless we elect to opt out of profit and steming. If we elect to opt out of profit and ladmring, we will instead receive sales milest
and royalties, and our revenue, if any, from PRX@@Rbe reduced.

Our right to codevelop PRX002 and other Licensed Products undekittense Agreement will terminate if we commenedain studie
for a competitive product that treats Parkinson&edse or other indications that we opted to cceligyv In addition, our right to cpromote
PRX002 and other Licensed Products will terminfitege commence a Phase 3 study for a competitivdymtathat treats Parkinson’s disease.

Moreover, under the terms of the License Agreemeertrely on Roche to provide us estimates of thests, revenue and reve
adjustments and royalties, which estimates we ngeréparing our quarterly and annual financial repdf the underlying assumptions
which Roche$ estimates were based prove to be incorrect, laetsialts or revised estimates supplied by Rocla¢ dne materially differe
from the original estimates could require us taiatljhe estimates included in our reported findnmeisults. If material, these adjustments ¢
require us to restate previously reported finan@aults, which could have a negative effect onstock price.

Our ability to receive any significant revenue fr&dRX002 will be dependent on Rochefforts and our participation in profit and |
sharing, and may result in lower levels of incoimmant if we marketed or developed our product candglantirely on our own. Roche may
fulfill its obligations or carry out marketing aetiies for PRX002 as diligently as we would like.eVéould also become involved in dispi
with Roche, which could lead to delays in or teration of commercialization programs and tiec@misuming and expensive litigation
arbitration. If Roche terminates or breaches tleeihse Agreement, or otherwise decides not to cdmjiteobligations in a timely manner,
chances of successfully developing or marketing @824would be materially and adversely affected.

Outside of the United States, we are solely depahda the efforts and commitments of Roche, eittdirectly or through third parties, t
further commercialize PRX002. If Rocl's efforts are unsuccessful, our ability to generdtgure product sales from PRX002 outside
United States would be significantly reduced.

Under our License Agreement, outside of the U.8cHe has responsibility for developing and comnadiming PRX002 and any futL
Licensed Products targeting alpfgauclein. As a consequence, any progress and cmiansuccess outside of the U.S. is dependentysoh
Roches efforts and commitment to the program. For examiRbche may delay, reduce or terminate developefémtts relating to PRXO0(
outside of the U.S., or under some circumstanagepiendently develop products that compete with FIRX6r decide not to commit sufficie
resources to the marketing and distribution of PEX0

In the event that Roche does not diligently comiaéime PRX002, the License Agreement provides esritpht to terminate the Licer
Agreement in connection with a material breach weddor 90 days after notice thereof. However, ahitity to enforce the provisions of 1
License Agreement so as to obtain meaningful ressowithin a reasonable timeframe is uncertain.Heurtany decision to pursue availe
remedies including termination would impact thegmial success of PRX002, including inside the a8d we may choose not to terminat
we may not be able to find another partner andreawy collaboration
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likely will not provide comparable financial terrtsthose in our arrangement with Roche. In the eg€our termination, this may require u:
commercialize PRX002 on our own, which is likelyrésult in significant additional expense and degignificant changes in Roclsebusines
strategy, resource commitment and the willingnessbdity of Roche to complete its obligations under arrangement could materially aff
the potential success of the product. FurthermibiRpche does not successfully develop and commlkizei PRX002 outside of the U.S.,
potential to generate future revenue outside ofxl& would be significantly reduced.

If we are unable to establish sales and marketingpabilities or enter into agreements with third gaes to market and sell approv
products, we may be unable to generate product nense

We do not currently have an organization for thiessamarketing and distribution of pharmaceuticaldoicts. In order to market &
products that may be approved by the FDA, we muditd lour sales, marketing, managerial and other-technical capabilities or ma
arrangements with third parties to perform theseices. We have entered into the License Agreematit Roche for the development
PRX002 and may develop our own sales force and etiagkinfrastructure to co-promote PRX002 in th& Ufor the treatment of Parkinsan’
disease and any future Licensed Products apprardelarkinson’s disease in the U.S. If we exercigecopromotion option and are unable
develop our own sales force and marketing infrattine to effectively commercialize PRX002 or othécensed Products, our ability
generate additional revenue from potential saleBRX002 or such products in the U.S. may be hardmedddition, our right to c@romote
PRX002 and other Licensed Products will terminhtge commence a Phase 3 study for a competitivdymtothat treats Parkinsandiseas:
For our other approved products, if we are unablestablish adequate sales, marketing and distibaapabilities, whether independentl
with third parties, we may not be able to genepateluct revenue and may not become profitable.

If government and thireparty payors fail to provide coverage and adequaginbursement rates for any of our drug candidatémst receivi
regulatory approval, our revenue and prospects fwofitability will be harmed.

In both domestic and foreign markets, our saleanyf future products will depend in part upon thaikability of reimbursement fro
third-party payors. Such thindarty payors include government health program#$ sasc Medicare, managed care providers, privateth
insurers, and other organizations. There is sigaifi uncertainty related to the thipdsty coverage and reimbursement of newly appt
drugs. Coverage and reimbursement may not be alaifar any drug that we or our collaborators conuiadize and, even if these
available, the level of reimbursement may not bésfsetory. Thirdparty payors often rely upon Medicare coveragecyolind paymel
limitations in setting their own reimbursement pas. Thirdparty payors are also increasingly attempting totaio healthcare costs
demanding price discounts or rebates limiting bmitierage and the amounts that they will pay for dewgs, and, as a result, they may
cover or provide adequate payment for our drug icatels. We might need to conduct post-marketindistuin order to demonstrate the cos
effectiveness of any future products to such paysatisfaction. Such studies might require us to cdnansignificant amount of managem
time and financial and other resources. Our futpreducts might not ultimately be considered cofdative. Adequate thirgharty
reimbursement might not be available to enableousdintain price levels sufficient to realize ampegpriate return on investment in proc
development. If coverage and adequate reimbursemm@ninot available or reimbursement is availablyy da limited levels, we or ol
collaborators may not be able to successfully comiakze any product candidates for which marketpgroval is obtained.

The regulations that govern marketing approvalisjmy, coverage and reimbursement for new drugg wédely from country to countr
Current and future legislation may significantlyacige the approval requirements in ways that comdlve additional costs and cause dela’
obtaining approvals. Some countries require appraivine sale price of a drug before it can be rat#t. In many countries, the pricing rev
period begins after marketing or licensing apprasajranted. In some foreign markets, prescripibarmaceutical pricing remains subjec
continuing governmental control even after iniipproval is granted. As a result, we or our coliabtiys might obtain marketing approval fi
drug in a particular country, but then be subjeqprice regulations that delay commercial launcthefdrug, possibly for lengthy time peric
and negatively impact our ability to generate rexefrom the sale of the drug in that country. Adegpricing limitations may hinder our abi
to recoup our investment in one or more drug caatdil even if our drug candidates obtain marketpoval.

U.S. and foreign governments continue to proposepass legislation designed to reduce the cosealtlticare. In the U.S., we exg
that there will continue to be federal and statgppsals to implement similar governmental contrsisaddition, recent changes in the Medi
program and increasing emphasis on managed cdine id.S. will continue to put pressure on pharmtcalproduct pricing. For example,
2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Caré, As amended by the Health Care and EducationrRiietion Act (collectively, th
“Healthcare Reform Law”)was enacted. The Healthcare Reform Law substant@ianges the way healthcare is financed by
governmental and private insurers and significaatfgcts the pharmaceutical industry. Among thevisions of the Healthcare Reform Law
importance to the pharmaceutical industry are dhlewing:

23




e an annual, nondeductible fee on any entity thatufstures or imports certain branded prescriptioingsl and biologic agen
apportioned among these entities according to thaiket share in certain government healthcarerpnog;

e anincrease in the minimum rebates a manufactuost pay under the Medicaid Drug Rebate ProgranBt&% and 13.0% of tl
average manufacturer price for branded and gedeuigs, respectively;

e expansion of healthcare fraud and abuse lawduding the False Claims Act and the AHKitkback Statute, new governm
investigative powers and enhanced penalties forauompliance;

e a new Medicare Part D coverage gap discountrarogunder which manufacturers must agree to &@epercent point-ofale
discounts off negotiated prices of applicable brangys to eligible beneficiaries during their caage gap period, as a condition
the manufacturer’s outpatient drugs to be coveretbuMedicare Part D;

* extension of manufacturerdledicaid rebate liability to covered drugs dispehse individuals who are enrolled in Medic
managed care organizations;

« expansion of eligibility criteria for Medicaid progms by, among other things, allowing states t@roffledicaid coverage
additional individuals and by adding new mandateligibility categories for certain individuals withcome at or below 133%
the federal poverty level, thereby potentially emsing a manufacturer's Medicaid rebate liability;

e alicensure framework for follown biologic product:

» expansion of the entities eligible for discountsleinthe Public Health Service pharmaceutical pgigirograrn
« new requirements under the federal Open Paymeoggamn and its implementing regulatic

e anew requirement to annually report drug samplasrhanufacturers and distributors provide to ptigies; an

* anew PatienGentered Outcomes Research Institute to oversestifigl priorities in, and conduct comparative atli effectivenes
research, along with funding for such research.

In addition, other legislative changes have beapgsed and adopted since the Healthcare Reformvasvenacted. These char
include aggregate reductions to Medicare paymentwdviders of up to 2% per fiscal year, which wamb effect on April 1, 2013 and w
stay in effect through 2024 unless additional cesgional action is taken. On January 2, 2013, deesiObama signed into law the Ameri
Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, which, among othengfs, further reduced Medicare payments to sevgpast of providers and increased
statute of limitations period for the governmentrégover overpayments to providers from three ve fiears. These new laws may resu
additional reductions in Medicare and other healtbcfunding, which could have a material adverdecefon customers for our drugs
approved, and, accordingly, our financial operation

We expect that the Healthcare Reform Law, as webther healthcare reform measures that may betedlapthe future, may result
more rigorous coverage criteria and in additionavidward pressure on the price that we receive fiyr @pproved drug. Legislation ¢
regulations affecting the pricing of pharmaceuscalight change before our drug candidates are apg@réor marketing. Any reduction
reimbursement from Medicare or other governmentthegre programs may result in a similar reductiopayments from private payors. 1
implementation of cost containment measures orrottealthcare reforms may prevent us from being ableyenerate revenue, att
profitability or commercialize our drugs.

There can be no assurance that our drug candidatbey are approved for sale in the U.S. or theo countries, will be considel
medically reasonable and necessary for a spenilication, that they will be considered cost-effexby thirdparty payors, that coverage ol
adequate level of reimbursement will be availabfethat third-party payorgeimbursement policies will not adversely affect ability to sel
our drug candidates profitably if they are approfadsale.

The markets for our drug candidates are subjectiitense competition. If we are unable to competéeefively, our drug candidates may
rendered noncompetitive or obsolete.

The research, development and commercializatiomeaf drugs is highly competitive. We will face cortiien with respect to all dru
candidates we may develop or commercialize in tharé from pharmaceutical and biotechnology comgmniorldwide. The key factc
affecting the success of any approved product lvélits indication, label, efficacy, safety profidrug interactions, method of administrat
pricing, coverage, reimbursement and level of priional activity relative to those of competing dsug

Furthermore, many large pharmaceutical and biot@dgy companies, academic institutions, governmi@gancies and other public ¢
private research organizations are pursuing theldpment of novel drugs that target the same itidica we

24




are targeting with our research and developmergrpm. We face, and expect to continue to facenggeand increasing competition as
products enter the market and advanced technolbgiesme available. Many of our competitors have:

< significantly greater financial, technical and hum@esources than we have and may be better equigpeliscover, develo
manufacture and commercialize drug candidates;

* more extensive experience in preclinical testing elmical trials, obtaining regulatory approvatsdamanufacturing and market
pharmaceutical products;

< drug candidates that have been approved ondateistage clinical development; anc
« collaborative arrangements in our target markets lgiading companies and research institu

Competitive products may render our research amdldement program obsolete or noncompetitive befogecan recover the expen
of developing and commercializing our drug candidatFurthermore, the development of new treatmesthods and/or the widespre
adoption or increased utilization of any vaccinelevelopment of other products or treatments ferdiseases we are targeting could rende
of our drug candidates noncompetitive, obsoletarmconomical. If we successfully develop and ob#gproval for a drug candidate, we !
face competition based on the safety and effeatiseof the approved product, the timing of itsyeitto the market in relation to competit
products in development, the availability and aufssupply, marketing and sales capabilities, cayeraeimbursement, price, patent pos
and other factors. Even if we successfully develag candidates but those drug candidates do had\aeand maintain market acceptance
business will not be successful.

Our drug candidates for which we intend to seek apyal as biologic products may face competition seothan anticipated.

Our drug candidates are regulated by the FDA dsdimproducts and we intend to seek approvalliesé products pursuant to the E
pathway. The Biologics Price Competition and Innimra Act of 2009 (the "BPCIA") created an abbregdtpathway for the approval
biosimilar and interchangeable biologic productie Bbbreviated regulatory pathway establishes lagdilority for the FDA to review a
approve biosimilar biologics, including the possibllesignation of a biosimilar as “interchangeablased on its similarity to an existing br.
product. Under the BPCIA, an application for a biukar product cannot be approved by the FDA umfl years after the original branc
product was approved under a BLA. The law is compled is still being interpreted and implementedthy FDA. As a result, its ultime
impact, implementation, and meaning are subjectnizertainty. While it is uncertain when such preessintended to implement BPCIA n
be fully adopted by the FDA, any such processeddcbave a material adverse effect on the future memnsial prospects for our bioloy
products.

We believe that any of our drug candidates appraa®d biologic product under a BLA should qualifr the 12year period ¢
exclusivity. However, there is a risk that this lesivity could be shortened due to congressionabaor otherwise, or that the FDA will r
consider our drug candidates to be reference ptedoccompeting products, potentially creating dpportunity for generic competition soo
than anticipated. Moreover, the extent to whichasimilar, once approved, will be substituted fay ane of our reference products in a-
that is similar to traditional generic substitutior nonbiologic products is not yet clear, and will depesrda number of marketplace
regulatory factors that are still developing.

We may be subject, directly or indirectly, to fedband state antkickback, fraud and abuse, false claims, physicipayment transparenc
health information privacy and security, and othdrealthcare laws and regulations, which could expose to criminal sanctions, civ
penalties, contractual damages, reputational haragministrative burdens and diminished profits andtéire earnings.

If we obtain FDA approval for any of our drug castaties and begin commercializing those producthénl.S., our operations may
directly, or indirectly through our customers, sdbjto various federal and state fraud and abudeothver healthcare laws and regulati
including, without limitation, the federal Anlickback Statute and the federal False Claims wbich may constrain the business or finar
arrangements and relationships through which wiersarket and distribute any drugs for which weaitrtmarketing approval. In addition,
may be subject to physician payment transpareney &nd patient privacy regulation by both the fatlgovernment and the states and for
jurisdictions in which we conduct our business. Twes that may affect our ability to operate inau

- the federal AntKickback Statute, which prohibits, among other gjsinpersons from knowingly and willfully solicitingeceiving
offering or paying remuneration, directly or inditly, in cash or in kind, to induce or reward, oréturn for, either the referral of
individual for, or the purchase or recommendatibaroitem or service reimbursable under a fedegalthcare program, such as
Medicare and Medicaid programs;

« federal civil and criminal false claims laws angilcmonetary penalty laws, including the federaldeaClaims Act, which impo:
criminal and civil penalties, including civil whisblower or qui tam actions, against individuals or
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entities for knowingly presenting, or causing to fresented, claims for payment from Medicare, Maidicor other thircparty
payors that are false or fraudulent or making sefatatement to avoid, decrease or conceal aratibligto pay money to the fede
government;

« the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acdahitity Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), which created nevederal criminal statutes tl
impose criminal and civil liability for executing scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit progragnnaaking false stateme
relating to healthcare matters;

« the federal Physician Payment Sunshine Act, whéduires manufacturers of drugs, devices, biologitd medical supplies 1
which payment is available under Medicare, Mediaaithe Childrers Health Insurance Program, with specific excegtiom repol
annually to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid\&=s ("CMS") information related to “payments dher transfers of value”
made to physicians, which is defined to includetdis; dentists, optometrists, podiatrists and graotors, and teaching hospi
and applicable manufacturers and applicable grauphasing organizations to report annually to CM&ership and investme
interests held by the physicians and their immediamily members. The period between August 1, 281® December 31, 20
was the first reporting period, and manufactureesemequired to report aggregate payment data bgchvzl, 2014, and we
required to report detailed payment data and subsgdl attestation to the accuracy of such datinduPhase 2 of the progri
(which began in May 2014). Thereafter, manufactireust submit reports by the 90th day of each splesd calendar year;

« HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Tecbggland Clinical Health Act, and its implementirgulations, which impo:
obligations on covered healthcare providers, healins, and healthcare clearinghouses, as wekleis lhusiness associates
create, receive, maintain or transmit individuatlgntifiable health information for or on behalf @fcovered entity, with respect
safeguarding the privacy, security and transmissfandividually identifiable health informationnd

» analogous state and foreign laws and regulatisush as state arkickback and false claims laws, which may applysétes c
marketing arrangements and claims involving healtadtems or services reimbursed by non-governrhehia-party payors
including private insurers; state and foreign ldkat require pharmaceutical companies to compli wie pharmaceutical industsy’
voluntary compliance guidelines and the relevamhgiéance guidance promulgated by the federal govent or otherwise restr
payments that may be made to healthcare providéate and foreign laws that require drug manufacsuto report informatic
related to payments and other transfers of valyghysicians and other healthcare providers or ntimdk@xpenditures; and state
foreign laws governing the privacy and securithe#lth information in certain circumstances, mahwloich differ from each oth
in significant ways and often are not preemptetHJAA, thus complicating compliance efforts.

Further, the Healthcare Reform Law, among othergi amended the intent requirements of the federadKickback Statute and t
criminal statutes governing healthcare fraud. Asperor entity can now be found guilty of violatitige statute without actual knowledge of
statute or specific intent to violate it. In additj the Healthcare Reform Law provided that theegoment may assert that a claim inclut
items or services resulting from a violation of federal AntiKickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudutdaim for purposes of the fede
False Claims Act.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangements third parties will comply with applicable heattire laws and regulations n
involve substantial costs. It is possible that gowgental authorities will conclude that our busmesactices may not comply with curren
future statutes, regulations or case law invohapglicable fraud and abuse or other healthcare édsegulations. If our operations are fa
to be in violation of any of the laws described \abor any other governmental regulations that applys, we may be subject to signific
civil, criminal, and administrative penalties, indlng, without limitation, exclusion from particifi@n in government healthcare programs, :
as Medicare and Medicaid, imprisonment, damagassfand the curtailment or restructuring of ourrapens, any of which could advers
affect our ability to operate our business and results of operations. If any of the physiciansotirer healthcare providers or entities \
whom we expect to do business, including our collators, is found not to be in compliance with &ggille laws, it may be subject to crimii
civil or administrative sanctions, including exdluss from participation in government healthcaregoams, which could also adversely af
our business.

If a successful product liability or clinical trialkclaim or series of claims is brought against ug feninsured liabilities or in excess of insur¢
liabilities, we could incur substantial liability.

The use of our drug candidates in clinical trialdl éhe sale of any products for which we obtainketing approval will expose us to-
risk of product liability and clinical trial liaktly claims. Product liability claims might be brcatgagainst us by consumers, health care pro\
or others selling or otherwise coming into contaith our products. Clinical trial liability claimsiay be filed against us for damages suff
by clinical trial subjects or their families. If weannot successfully defend ourselves
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against product liability claims, we could incurbstantial liabilities. In addition, regardless okt or eventual outcome, product liabi
claims may result in:

« decreased demand for any approved drug candi

* impairment of our business reputati

« withdrawal of clinical trial participant

« costs of related litigatio

« distraction of managemestattentior

e substantial monetary awards to patients or otl@melnts; an

* loss of revenues; and the inability to successfttignmercialize any approved drug candidi

We currently have clinical trial liability insuraeacoverage in the aggregate amount of $10.0 mifilwrall of our clinical trials in a
jurisdictions; we have an additional $5.0 milliondoverage for certain clinical trials in certaimigdictions. However, our insurance covel
may not be sufficient to reimburse us for any esesnor losses we may suffer. Moreover, insuraneerage is becoming increasin
expensive, and, in the future, we may not be ablmaintain insurance coverage at a reasonableocdst sufficient amounts to protect
against losses due to liability. If and when weagbtmarketing approval for any of our drug candidatwe intend to expand our insure
coverage to include the sale of commercial produatsvever, we may be unable to obtain this prodiatility insurance on commercia
reasonable terms. On occasion, large judgments these awarded in class action lawsuits based agsdhat had unanticipated side effect
successful product liability claim or series ofigla brought against us could cause our ordinaryespace to decline and, if judgments exc
our insurance coverage, could decrease our cashdmedsely affect our business.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinical ils, and those third parties may not perform séaistorily, including failing to mee
established deadlines for the completion of any Iswtinical trials.

We do not have the ability to independently condelatical trials for our drug candidates, and wéyren third parties, such
consultants, contract research organizations, raktistitutions, and clinical investigators, to foem this function. Our reliance on these tl
parties for clinical development activities resuitsreduced control over these activities. Furthenem these third parties may also
relationships with other entities, some of whichyniee our competitors. Although we have and willeerinto agreements with these ti
parties, we will be responsible for confirming thmatr clinical trials are conducted in accordancéhwineir general investigational plans
protocols. Moreover, the FDA requires us to compith regulations and standards, commonly refercedst cGCPs, for conducting, recorc
and reporting the results of clinical trials to @westhat data and reported results are credibleagodrate and that the trial participants
adequately protected. Our reliance on third padi@ss not relieve us of these responsibilities regdiirements. If we or any of our third pe
contractors fail to comply with applicable cGCH® tlinical data generated in our clinical trialaynbe deemed unreliable and the FDA, E
or comparable foreign regulatory authorities mayuree us to perform additional clinical trials befapproving our marketing applications.
cannot assure you that upon inspection by a giegalatory authority, such regulatory authority vadéétermine that any of our clinical tri
complies with cGCP regulations. In addition, ounichl trials must be conducted with product proeticinder cGMP regulations. Our fail
to comply with these regulations may require usepmeat clinical trials, which would delay the regfolry approval process.

To date, we believe our consultants, contractareseorganizations and other similar entities witlich we are working have perforr
well; however, if these third parties do not susbtelly carry out their contractual duties, meet @sted deadlines, or comply with applice
regulations, we may be required to replace therhobigh we believe that there are a number of dthet-party contractors we could engag
continue these activities, we may not be able tereinto arrangements with alternative thparty contractors or to do so on commerc
reasonable terms, which may result in a delay ofptanned clinical trials. Accordingly, we may belalyed in obtaining regulatory appro\
for our drug candidates and may be delayed in fiarte to successfully develop our drug candidates.

In addition, our thirdsarty contractors are not our employees, and excepemedies available to us under our agreemwiits suct
third-party contractors, we cannot control whether or thety devote sufficient time and resources to augoing clinical, nonclinical ar
preclinical programs. If thirgharty contractors do not successfully carry outrtbentractual duties or obligations or meet expdaleadlines,
they need to be replaced or if the quality or aacurof the clinical data they obtain is compromisie@ to the failure to adhere to our clin
protocols, regulatory requirements or for othesoge, our clinical trials
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may be extended, delayed or terminated and we rotypa able to obtain regulatory approval for orcessfully commercialize our dr
candidates. As a result, our results of operatimmsthe commercial prospects for our drug candsdatmild be harmed, our costs could incr
and our ability to generate revenues could be @elay

If we do not establish additional strategic collatations, we may have to alter our research and depenent plans

Our drug research and development programs anatmiteommercialization of our drug candidates wétuire substantial additior
cash to fund expenses. Our strategy includes paligntollaborating with additional leading pharneatical and biotechnology companie:
assist us in furthering development and potentimhroercialization of some of our drug candidatessame or all geographies. It may
difficult to enter into one or more of such collaations in the future. We face significant competitin seeking appropriate collaborators
these collaborations are complex and ticoesuming to negotiate and document. We may natbleto negotiate collaborations on accep
terms, or at all, in which case we may have toaiuttte development of a particular drug candidegduce or delay its development progral
one or more of our other development programs,ydédgpotential commercialization or increase oxpenditures and undertake developr
or commercialization activities at our own experseie elect to increase our expenditures to fuadetbpment or commercialization activil
on our own, we will need to obtain additional capitvhich may not be available to us on accepttdstas, or at all. If we do not have suffici
funds, we will not be able to bring our drug carmdés to market and generate product revenue.

We have no manufacturing capacity and depend orhid-party manufacturer to produce our pre-clinicadnd clinical trial drug supplies.

We do not currently operate manufacturing fac#itfer preelinical or clinical production of any of our driugindidates. We have limit
experience in drug manufacturing, and we lack treources and the capabilities to manufacture amyupfdrug candidates am clinical o
commercial scale. As a result, we rely on a sitigil@l-party manufacturer to supply, store, andritiste preelinical and clinical supply of o
drug candidates, and plan to continue to do sd wetincrease the number of manufacturers with whercontract. Any performance fail
or capacity limitation on the part of our existing future manufacturers could delay clinical depebt@nt or regulatory approval of our d
candidates or commercialization of any approvedpets, producing additional losses and deprivingfysotential product revenue.

Our drug candidates require precise, high qualipnuofiacturing. Failure by our contract manufacturmerachieve and maintain hi
manufacturing standards could result in patientrinjor death, product recalls or withdrawals, delay failures in testing or delivery, c
overruns, or other problems that could seriouslyst lour business. Contract manufacturers may eneouifficulties involving productio
yields, quality control, and quality assurance. Sehmanufacturers are subject to ongoing periodicusannounced inspections by the FDA
corresponding state and foreign agencies to enstriet compliance with cGMPs and other applicablevegnment regulations a
corresponding foreign standards; however, we dohase control over third-party manufacturec&mpliance with these regulations
standards.

If a contract manufacturer cannot perform as agreedmay be required to replace it. Although weadwel there are a number of poter
replacements as our manufacturing processes amamuifacturer specific, we may incur added costsdelays in identifying and qualifyil
any such replacements because the FDA must apprgveeplacement manufacturer prior to manufactuomngdrug candidates. Such apprt
would require new testing and compliance inspestiom addition, a new manufacturer would have tethecated in, or develop substanti
equivalent processes for, production of our drugdadates after receipt of FDA approval.

We anticipate continued reliance on thirgarty manufacturers if we are successful in obtamgi marketing approval from the FDA and oth
regulatory agencies for any of our drug candidates)d our commercialization of any of our drug carthtes may be halted, delayed or m
less profitable if those third parties fail to olitaor maintain necessary regulatory approvals, fad provide us with sufficient quantities
drug product or fail to do so at acceptable qualigrels or prices.

To date, our drug candidates have been manufacitusdall quantities for preclinical and clinicakting by thirdparty manufacturers.
the FDA or other regulatory agencies approve amyuofdrug candidates for commercial sale, we exjettwe would continue to rely, at le
initially, on third-party manufacturers to produce commercial quastibieapproved drug candidates. These manufactaraysnot be able
successfully increase the manufacturing capacityfiy approved drug candidates in a timely or eosooananner, or at all. Significant scale:
up of manufacturing may require additional validatstudies, which the FDA must review and apprdiviird party manufacturers are una
to successfully increase the manufacturing capdoitya drug candidate, or we are unable to estalolis own manufacturing capabilities,
commercial launch of any approved products mayddayeéd or there may be a shortage in supply, winichrn could have a material adve
effect on our business.

In addition, the facilities used by our contractmagacturers to manufacture our drug candidates tmustpproved by the FDA pursuan
inspections that will be conducted after we sutar®LA to the FDA. We do not control the manufaatgri
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process of, and are completely dependent on, autrazd manufacturing partners for compliance wi@MPs, for manufacture of both act
drug substances and finished drug products. If amntract manufacturers cannot successfully manuwfaanaterial that conforms to «
specifications and the strict regulatory requiretaef the FDA or other regulatory authorities, theill not be able to secure and/or main
regulatory approval for their manufacturing fa@dg. If the FDA or a comparable foreign regulatanthority does not approve these facil
for the manufacture of our drug candidates or Withdraws any such approval in the future, we magd to find alternative manufactur
facilities, which would significantly impact our ity to develop, obtain regulatory approval forroarket our drug candidates, if approved.

We depend on third-party suppliers for key raw miaés used in our manufacturing processes, and tloss of these thirgsarty suppliers o
their inability to supply us with adequate raw mais could harm our business.

We rely on third-party suppliers for the raw madésirequired for the production of our drug cantkdaOur dependence on these thirc
party suppliers and the challenges we may facéfaining adequate supplies of raw materials invaleeeral risks, including limited cont
over pricing, availability, quality and deliverytlmdules. We cannot be certain that our suppliellscamtinue to provide us with the quantil
of these raw materials that we require or satisfiy anticipated specifications and quality requiratae Any supply interruption in limited
sole sourced raw materials could materially harmatnility to manufacture our products until a nesaice of supply, if any, could be identif
and qualified. Although we believe there are cuifyeseveral other suppliers of these raw materiais,may be unable to find a suffici
alternative supply channel in a reasonable timenocommercially reasonable terms. Any performaadare on the part of our suppliers cc
delay the development and potential commerciabmabf our drug candidates, including limiting supplnecessary for clinical trials &
regulatory approvals, which would have a materiaiesise effect on our business.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If we are unable to adequately protect or enfordeetintellectual property relating to our drug candiites our ability to successfu
commercialize our drug candidates will be harmed.

Our success depends in part on our ability to aljjatent protection both in the U.S. and in othemdries for our drug candidates. ¢
ability to protect our drug candidates from unautted or infringing use by third parties dependsustantial part on our ability to obtain
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Due to\ngllegal standards relating to the patentabilitglidity and enforceability of pater
covering pharmaceutical inventions and the scopelaims made under these patents, our ability taiopmaintain and enforce patent
uncertain and involves complex legal and factuastjons. Accordingly, rights under any issued patenay not provide us with sufficie
protection for our drug candidates or provide sidfit protection to afford us a commercial advaatagainst competitive products
processes.

In addition, we cannot guarantee that any pateiitsssue from any pending or future patent apglmas owned by or licensed to us
our affiliates. Even if patents have issued or w8slue, we cannot guarantee that the claims oétpatents are or will be valid or enforceabl
will provide us with any significant protection agst competitive products or otherwise be commdycialuable to us. Patent application:
the U.S. are maintained in confidence for up tarighths after their filing. In some cases, howepatent applications remain confidentia
the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (the "USPT@"the entire time prior to issuance as a U.Sem@atSimilarly, publication of discover
in the scientific or patent literature often lagshimd actual discoveries. Consequently, we caneotdstain that we or our licensors or co
owners were the first to invent, or the first tie fpatent applications on, our drug candidateeir ise as drugs. In the event that a third
has also filed a U.S. patent application relatiogotir drug candidates or a similar invention, weyrhave to participate in interference
derivation proceedings declared by the USPTO terdehe priority of invention in the U.S. The coefghese proceedings could be substa
and it is possible that our efforts would be ungsstul, resulting in a loss of our U.S. patent fimsi Furthermore, we may not have identi
all U.S. and foreign patents or published appla&tithat affect our business either by blocking ahility to commercialize our drugs or
covering similar technologies. Compositionfoktter patents on the biological or chemical actWarmaceutical ingredient are genel
considered to be the strongest form of intellecfuraberty protection for pharmaceutical productssach patents provide protection witt
regard to any method of use. We cannot be ceraihthe claims in our patent applications covegongiposition-ofmatter of our produ
candidates will be considered patentable by theTS&nd courts in the U.S. or by the patent offiaed courts in foreign countries, nor car
be certain that the claims in our issued compasitibmatter patents will not be found invalid oremforceable if challenged. Method-a$e
patents protect the use of a product for the sigecihethod. This type of patent does not prevettrapetitor from making and marketin
product that is identical to our product for anigadion that is outside the scope of the patentethad. Moreover, even if competitors do
actively promote their product for our targetedi@ations, physicians may prescribe these prodwaffddbel.” Although offlabel prescriptior
may infringe or contribute to the infringement oétimod-ofuse patents, the practice is common and such geent is difficult to prevent
prosecute.
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Recent patent reform legislation could increaseutigertainties and costs surrounding the prosetutiour patent applications and
enforcement or defense of our issued patents. (ue®der 16, 2011, the Leahy-Smith America Invents @he "LeahySmith Act") wa
signed into law. The Leah$mith Act includes a number of significant chantebl.S. patent law. These include provisions tliigcathe war
patent applications are prosecuted, redefine @igrmay affect patent litigation, and switch theSUpatent system from a “first-to-invent”
system to a “first-to-file” system. Under a “firgi-file” system, assuming the other requirements for paiéityaare met, the first inventor
file a patent application generally will be entitleo the patent on an invention regardless of wdretimother inventor had made the inver
earlier. The USPTO recently developed new regulatiand procedures to govern administration of thehlySmith Act, and many of tl
substantive changes to patent law associated héth éahy-Smith Act, and in particular, the firstfile provisions, only became effective
March 16, 2013. Accordingly, it is not clear whifitany, impact the Leahgmith Act will have on the operation of our busmedowever, th
Leahy-Smith Act and its implementation could increaseuheertainties and costs surrounding the prosetofi@ur patent applications and
enforcement or defense of our issued patentsf alhich could have a material adverse effect onlsginess and financial condition.

We may be subject to a thighrty preissuance submission of prior art to thdPUS, or become involved in opposition, derivat
reexamination, inter partes review, pgsant review, or other patent office proceedingéitmation, in the U.S. or elsewhere, challengmg
patent rights or the patent rights of others. Amnesisle determination in any such submission, prangear litigation could reduce the scope
or invalidate, our patent rights, allow third pagtito commercialize our technology or products@mdpete directly with us, without paymen
us, or result in our inability to manufacture onuercialize products without infringing third paggtent rights.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual pesty rights throughout the world.

The laws of some foreign jurisdictions do not pobt@tellectual property rights to the same exiasitin the U.S. and many compal
have encountered significant difficulties in prateg and defending such rights in foreign jurisitios. If we encounter such difficulties
protecting or are otherwise precluded from effesdtivprotecting our intellectual property rightsfareign jurisdictions, our business prosp
could be substantially harmed.

We license patent rights from thirgarty owners. Such licenses may be subject to etmfynination if we fail to comply with our obligabins
in our licenses with third parties, which could rek in the loss of rights or technology that are neaial to our business.

We are a party to licenses that give us rightdii-party intellectual property that is necessary @fuisfor our business, and we n
enter into additional licenses in the future. Undesse license agreements we are obligated tohgalcensor fees, which may include ani
license fees, milestone payments, royalties, agmage of revenues associated with the licensduhddmgy and a percentage of sublicen
revenue. In addition, under certain of such agredspeve are required to diligently pursue the depelent of products using the licen
technology. If we fail to comply with these obligats and fail to cure our breach within a specifpediod of time, the licensor may have
right to terminate the applicable license, in whéstent we could lose valuable rights and technotbgy are material to our business.

If the licensor retains control of prosecution loé¢ tpatents and patent applications licensed tawvesnay have limited or no control o
the manner in which the licensor chooses to prdesemumaintain its patents and patent applicateorg have limited or no right to continue
prosecute any patents or patent applications hiedidcensor elects to abandon.

Litigation regarding patents, patent applicationsd other proprietary rights may be expensive anohéi consuming. If we are involved
such litigation, it could cause delays in bringindrug candidates to market and harm our ability tperate.

Our success will depend in part on our ability pex@te without infringing the proprietary rights third parties. Although we are 1
currently aware of any litigation or other proceeg$i or thirdparty claims of intellectual property infringemestated to our drug candidat
the pharmaceutical industry is characterized bgresite litigation regarding patents and other latélial property rights. Other parties r
hold or obtain patents in the future and allegd tha use of our technologies infringes these pati&ims or that we are employing tt
proprietary technology without authorization.

In addition, third parties may challenge or infingpon our existing or future patents. Proceedingslving our patents or pate
applications or those of others could result ineadg decisions regarding:

< the patentability of our inventions relating to aliug candidates; and
» the enforceability, validity or scope of protectioffered by our patents relating to our drug caat#e

Even if we are successful in these proceedingsnaseincur substantial costs and divert managenimet and attention in pursuing th
proceedings, which could have a material adverffsetedn us.
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If we are unable to avoid infringing the patenthtigy of others, we may be required to seek a licethstend an infringement action
challenge the validity of the patents in court.eatitigation is costly and time consuming. We nmay have sufficient resources to bring tt
actions to a successful conclusion. In additionyéf do not obtain a license, develop or obtain mérrging technology, fail to defend
infringement action successfully or have infringeadents declared invalid, we may:

e incur substantial monetary dama
* encounter significant delays in bringing our dragdidates to market; and
« be precluded from participating in the manufactuss or sale of our drug candidates or method®aftrhent requiring licens:

If our trademarks and trade names are not adequgt@rotected, then we may not be able to build nareeognition in our markets ¢
interest and our business may be adversely affected

Our registered or unregistered trademarks or traaees may be challenged, infringed, circumventedkatared generic or determines
be infringing on other marks. We may not be able@ratect our rights to these trademarks and tradees, which we need to build ne
recognition by potential partners or customers un markets of interest. Over the long term, if we anable to establish name recogn
based on our trademarks and trade names, then waahae able to compete effectively and our bussneay be adversely affected.

We may be unable to adequately prevent disclosdrieame secrets and other proprietary information.

We rely on trade secrets to protect our proprietaghnologies, especially where we do not beliestent protection is appropriate
obtainable; however, trade secrets are difficufiristect. We rely in part on confidentiality agremts with our employees, consultants, ou
scientific collaborators, sponsored researchers, ather advisors to protect our trade secrets ahérgproprietary information. The
agreements may not effectively prevent disclosdreamfidential information and may not provide adequate remedy in the event
unauthorized disclosure of confidential informatidm addition, others may independently discover tnade secrets and propriet
information. Costly and time consuming litigatiooutd be necessary to enforce and determine theeswopur proprietary rights, and failure
obtain or maintain trade secret protection couleaskly affect our competitive business position.

We may be subject to claims that our employees harengfully used or disclosed alleged trade seciftsheir former employers.

Many of our employees were previously employed raversities, Elan or Elan subsidiaries, or othartdxhnology or pharmaceuti
companies, including our competitors or potentiampetitors. Although we try to ensure that our esypks do not use the propriel
information or knowhow of others in their work for us, we may be subj® claims that we or these employees have useatisolose:
intellectual property, including trade secrets tineo proprietary information, of any such emploge®@rmer employer. Litigation may
necessary to defend against these claims. If winfdiefending any such claims, in addition to paymonetary damages, we may lose valt
intellectual property rights or personnel. Evenvé are successful in defending against such clditigation could result in substantial cc
and be a distraction to management.

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares
The market price of our ordinary shares may fluctteawidely.

Our ordinary shares commenced trading on The Na&dialopl Market on December 21, 2012 and currem#igle on The Nasdag Glo
Select Market. We cannot predict the prices at wwar ordinary shares may trade. The market prfceuo ordinary shares may fluctu
widely, depending upon many factors, some of winiety be beyond our control, including:

e our ability to obtain financing as need
e progress in and results from our ongoing or futlir@cal trials

e our collaboration with Roche pursuant to the Lieedgyreement to develop and commercialize PRX002yels as any futur
Licensed Products targeting alpha-synuclein;

« failure or delays in advancing our preclinical dreendidates or other drug candidates we may develdpe future, into clinici
trials;

« results of clinical trials conducted by others ougs that would compete with our drug candid;
e issues in manufacturing our drug candid:
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* regulatory developments or enforcement in the dEr8.foreign countrie

« developments or disputes concerning patents or ptio@rietary right:

« introduction of technological innovations or newnaercial products by our competitc

« changes in estimates or recommendations by seuatialysts, if any, who cover our comp.
e public concern over our drug candida

e litigation;

« future sales of our ordinary shau

e general market conditior

e changes in the structure of healthcare paymentisys

« failure of any of our drug candidates, if approviedachieve commercial succe

« economic and other external factors or other désagir crise:

e period-toperiod fluctuations in our financial resu

« overall fluctuations in U.S. equity marke

e our quarterly or annual results, or those of otttenpanies in our indust

e announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifiegquisitions or dispositior

« the operating and ordinary share price performafogher comparable compani

e investor perception of our company and the drughbgment industn

* natural or environmental disasters that investeitebe may affect us;

« fluctuations in the budgets of federal, state amallgovernmental entities around the w

These and other external factors may cause theetarrice and demand for our ordinary shares tddhte substantially, which may lir
or prevent investors from readily selling their ioaty shares and may otherwise negatively affeetlitpidity of our ordinary shares.
particular, stock markets in general have expedgdneolatility that has often been unrelated to dtperating performance of a partict
company. These broad market fluctuations may adiyeedfect the trading price of our ordinary shafesthe past, when the market price
stock has been volatile, some holders of that shasle instituted securities class action litigatigainst the company that issued the stox
any of our shareholders brought a lawsuit agaisstwe could incur substantial costs defending aestit. Such a lawsuit could also divert
time and attention of our management.

Your percentage ownership in Prothena may be dillifa the future.

As with any publicly traded company, your perceetagvnership in us may be diluted in the future bseaof equity issuances
acquisitions, capital raising transactions or otlige. We may need to raise additional capital m fiiture. If we are able to raise additic
capital, we may issue equity or convertible debtriments, which may severely dilute your ownershiprest in us. In addition, we intenc
continue to grant option awards to our directofcers and employees, which would dilute your ovamgp stake in us. As of December
2014, the number of ordinary shares available $suance pursuant to outstanding and future eqwgrds under our equity plan v
2,868,676 .

If we are unable to maintain effective internal ctnols, our business could be adversely affect

We are subject to the reporting and other obligationder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, aanded, including the requireme
of Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002, which require annual managensssessments of the effectiveness of our internaia
over financial reporting. However, our auditorsiwibt be required to formally attest to the effeetiess of our internal control over finan
reporting pursuant to Section 404 until we areorgkr an “emerging growth comparg$ defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startugt
(the "JOBS Act") if we continue to take advantafighe exemptions available to us through the JOBE A
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The rules governing the standards that must bdanetanagement to assess our internal control fivancial reporting are complex &
require significant documentation, testing and idssremediation to meet the detailed standardssumige rules. During the course of
testing, our management may identify material weakas or deficiencies which may not be remedigitini@ to meet the deadline imposec
the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002. These reporting and other oltlayes place significant demands on our managemestaaiministrative ar
operational resources, including accounting ressirc

Our management is responsible for establishingraathtaining adequate internal control over finahoggoorting. Our internal contr
over financial reporting is a process designedrtwide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabilifinancial reporting and the prepara
of Financial Statements for external purposes toatance with accounting principles generally ategpn the U.S. Any failure to maint:
effective internal controls could have an advefeceon our business, financial position and ressaf operations.

For as long as we are an emerging growth company will be exempt from certain reporting requiremesntincluding those relating 1
accounting standards and disclosure about our extee compensation, that apply to other public cones.

The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among othérgs, relax certain reporting requirements foreeging growth companie
including certain requirements relating to accaumstandards and compensation disclosure. We assifiéd as an emerging growth comp
which is defined as a company with annual grosemaes of less than $1 billion, that has been aipuigborting company for a period of |
than five years, and that does not have a puldit fbf $700 million or more in securities held bynraffiliated holders. We will remain
emerging growth company until the earliest of g €nd of the fiscal year in which the market valtieur ordinary shares that are held by nor
affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the end & #fecond fiscal quarter, (ii) the end of the fisgsdr in which we have total annual gi
revenues of $1 billion or more during such fiscahs (iii) the date on which we issue more tharbflion in non-convertible debt in a three-
year period or (iv) the end of the fiscal year daling the fifth anniversary of the date of the ffissle of our ordinary shares pursuant t
effective registration statement filed under theuBiies Act of 1933, as amended.

For as long as we are an emerging growth companlkeuother public companies, we are eligible t&ketaadvantage of cert:
exemptions from various reporting requirements #ratapplicable to other public companies thanate'emerging growth companiesThest
include, but are not limited to, (i) reduced obtigas with respect to the disclosure of selectadrftial data in registration statements filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission, (ii) redwisclosure obligations regarding executive corspgan in our periodic reports and pri
statements, (iii) an exception from compliance with auditor attestation requirements of Sectioh d0the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, an
(iv) exemptions from the requirements of holdinghenbinding advisory vote on executive compensatiod the requirement to obt
shareholder approval of any golden parachute patsment previously approved.

As noted above, under the JOBS Act, emerging grawthpanies can delay adopting new or revised adcmustandards that ha
different effective dates for public and privatergmnies until such time as those standards appjyit@te companies. We intend to t
advantage of such extended transition period. Siveevould then not be required to comply with newevised accounting standards on
relevant dates on which adoption of such standigrdsquired for other public companies, our Comaikd Financial Statements may na
comparable to the financial statements of compahigiscomply with public company effective datdawvé were to elect to comply with the
public company effective dates, such election wdaddrrevocable pursuant to Section 107 of the JBBS

If we were treated as a passive foreign investmemtnpany for U.S. federal income tax purposes, iultbresult in adverse U.S. fedel
income tax consequences to United States holdemsusfordinary shares

Significant potential adverse U.S. federal income itnplications generally apply to U.S. investorsning shares of a passive fore
investment company (“PFIC"Hirectly or indirectly. In general, we would be BIE for a taxable year if either (i) 75% or moreitsfincome
constitutes passive income (the “income test")iipr50% or more of our assets produce passive ircftine “asset test”)n general, the tot
value of our assets for purposes of the assetstelgtermined based on the market price of oumargti shares. As a result, fluctuations in
market price of our ordinary shares may cause b&tome a PFIC. In addition, changes in the cortipasbf our income or assets may ce
us to become a PFIC. A separate determination brishade each taxable year as to whether we aréGa(Bfter the close of each taxa
year). We do not believe we were a PFIC for U.8efal income tax purposes for our taxable yeare@mecember 31, 2014 and 2013
addition, we do not expect to be a PFIC for U.8efal income tax purposes for any future taxabke.ydowever, we cannot assure you
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) will not susstilly challenge this position.

Irish law differs from the laws in effect in the Uted States and may afford less protection to heflef our ordinary shares

It may not be possible to enforce court judgmetigioed in the U.S. against us in Ireland basethercivil liability provisions of th
U.S. federal or state securities laws. In addittbere is uncertainty as to whether the courtsedéihd would
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recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. courts okthiagainst us or our directors or officers basethe civil liabilities provisions of the U.
federal or state securities laws or hear actiomgnagus or those persons based on those lawsaWwseleen advised that the U.S. currently
not have a treaty with Ireland providing for theipgocal recognition and enforcement of judgmentsivil and commercial matters. Theref
a final judgment for the payment of money renddrgdhny U.S. federal or state court based on dadlility, whether or not based solely
federal or state securities laws, would not autarally be enforceable in Ireland.

As an Irish incorporated company, we are governethe Irish Companies Acts 19@®13, which differ in some material respects {
laws generally applicable to U.S. corporations ahdreholders, including, among others, differeme&sing to interested director and offi
transactions and shareholder lawsuits. Likewisedilties of directors and officers of an Irish camyp generally are owed to the company ¢
Shareholders of Irish companies generally do neelepersonal right of action against directorsfficers of the company and may exer
such rights of action on behalf of the company dnlyimited circumstances. Accordingly, holders afr ordinary shares may have
difficulty protecting their interests than wouldltlers of securities of a corporation incorporated jurisdiction of the U.S.

Irish law differs from the laws in effect in the Uted States with respect to defending unwanted taler proposals and may give our boi
of directors less ability to control negotiationstiv hostile offerors.

We are subject to the Irish Takeover Panel Act,719%keover Rules, 2013. Under those Irish TakeBudes, our Board is not permit
to take any action that might frustrate an offerdar ordinary shares once our Board has receinegparoach that may lead to an offer or
reason to believe that such an offer is or maynimainent, subject to certain exceptions. Potentifligtrating actions such as (i) the issu
ordinary shares, options or convertible securit{gsmaterial acquisitions or disposals, (iii) erihg into contracts other than in the ordir
course of business or (iv) any action, other theekimg alternative offers, which may result in fraon of an offer, are prohibited during
course of an offer or at any earlier time duringalitour Board has reason to believe an offer imay be imminent. These provisions may
our Board less ability to control negotiations wiithstile offerors and protect the interests of Bddof ordinary shares than would be the
for a corporation incorporated in a jurisdictiontiogé U.S.

Transfers of our ordinary shares may be subjectitish stamp duty.

Transfers of our ordinary shares effected by me&tise transfer of book entry interests in DTC ddmwot be subject to Irish stamp du
However, if a shareholder holds our ordinary shdiesctly rather than beneficially through DTC amgnsfer of those ordinary shares coul
subject to Irish stamp duty (currently at the ratel% of the higher of the price paid or the markelue of the ordinary shares acquir
Payment of Irish stamp duty is generally a legdilgaltion of the transferee. The potential for stagigy could adversely affect the price of y
ordinary shares.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends, andadingly, shareholders must rely on ordinary shaa@preciation for any return on the
investment.

We anticipate losing money for the foreseeabler&uaind, even if we do ever turn a profit, we intémdetain future earnings, if any,
the development, operation and expansion of ounbss. Thus, we do not anticipate declaring ormmaginy cash dividends for the foresee
future. Therefore, the success of an investmewpumordinary shares will depend upon appreciatiotheir value and in order to receive
income or realize a return on your investment, willineed to sell your Prothena ordinary sharesrécan be no assurance that our ord
shares will maintain their price or appreciate aue.

Dividends paid by us may be subject to Irish dividewithholding tax.

Although we do not currently anticipate paying cdshidends, if we were to do so in the future, @dind withholding tax (currently a
rate of 20%) may arise. A number of exemptions frdividend withholding tax exist such that sharekotdresident in the U.S. &
shareholders resident in other countries that leatered into a double taxation treaty with Irelamaly be entitled to exemptions from divids
withholding tax subject to the completion of cemtdividend withholding tax declaration forms.

Shareholders entitled to an exemption from Irishid#ind withholding tax on any dividends receiveanfrus will not be subject to Iri
income tax in respect of those dividends, unlesy thave some connection with Ireland other thair s$teareholding (for example, they
resident in Ireland). Shareholders who receivedéinds subject to Irish dividend withholding taxwgénerally have no further liability to Iri
income tax on those dividends.

Prothena ordinary shares received by means of 4 gifinheritance could be subject to Irish capitabquisitions tax.

Irish capital acquisitions tax (CAT) could apply #ogift or inheritance of our ordinary shares ipedive of the place of residen
ordinary residence or domicile of the parties. Tihisecause our ordinary shares will be regardga@zerty situated
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in Ireland. The person who receives the gift orenitance has primary liability for CAT. Gifts andhieritances passing between spouse
exempt from CAT. At the date hereof, children havax-free threshold of225,000 in respect of taxable gifts or inheritanesived fror
their parents. It is recommended that each shatehaionsult his or her own tax advisor as to thkectansequences of holding our ordir
shares or receiving dividends from us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

35




Our corporate headquarters are located in Dublaland and our U.S. operations are located in S8att Francisco, California.
South San Francisco, California, we occupy apprakéhy 50,400square feet of office and laboratory space unditase which expires
November 202(, 14,000 square feet of which is occupied by adtipiarty under a sublease which we entered intogneihber 2014. Tt
sublease commenced in January 2015 and expiresdeniber 2017. We believe that our facilities afécsent to meet our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material lggaiceedings. We may at times be involved in lifgatand other legal claims in 1
ordinary course of business. When appropriate inagamens estimation, we may record reserves in our firensiatements for pendi
litigation and other claims.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information for Ordinary Shares

Our ordinary shares commenced trading on The Na&dalgal Market under the symbol “PRTASh December 21, 2012 and curre
trade on The Nasdaq Global Select Market. The viglig table sets forth the high and low intraday glesire sale prices of our ordinary sh
as reported by Nasdaq during each of the previmid quarters.

Price Range Per Share

High Low

Fiscal 2014

Fourth quarter $ 2467 $ 17.0(

Third quarter $ 24.31 % 16.71

Second quarter $ 41.3: $ 18.52

First quarter $ 49.2¢ $ 24.4;
Fiscal 2013

Fourth quarter $ 30.58 $ 18.9:

Third quarter $ 22.4¢ 3 12.1¢

Second quarter $ 14.0C $ 6.4¢

First quarter $ 75C % 5.64

On February 27, 2015, the closing price of ouirary shares was $26.58 .
Holders

There were approximately 1,396 shareholders ofrceobour ordinary shares as of February 27, 20B&cause many of our shares
held by brokers and other institutions on behaltedreholders, we are unable to estimate thenataber of shareholders represented by -
record holders.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid dividends in the past and do ntitipate paying dividends in the foreseeable itémy future determination to p
dividends will be at the discretion of our Boardifectors and will be dependent upon our financwahdition, results of operations, cag
requirements and such other factors as the Boabddrettors deems relevant.

Under Irish law, dividends and distributions maylyobe made from distributable reserves. Distribldateserves generally mei
accumulated realized profits less accumulated zedliosses and includes reserves created by waamfal reduction. In addition,
distribution or dividend may be made unless theassets of Prothena are equal to, or in exceshefggregate of our called up share ce
plus undistributable reserves and the distributioas not reduce our net assets below such aggrégatestributable reserves include the s
premium account, the capital redemption reserval fand the amount by which Prothemaccumulated unrealized profits, so far as
previously utilized by any capitalization, exceegr @accumulated unrealized losses, so far as natiquly written off in a reduction
reorganization of capital.

The determination as to whether or not we haveiciefit distributable reserves to fund a dividendstmiobe made by reference to
“relevant accounts” of Prothena. The “relevant acis” are either the last set of unconsolidated annudited financial statements or ot
financial statements properly prepared in accoréavith the Companies Acts, which give a “true aaid ¥iew” of our unconsolidated financ
position and accord with accepted accounting pactrhe relevant accounts must be filed in the Gonigs Registration Office (the offic
public registry for companies in Ireland).

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

See Item 12 of Part Il of this Form 10-K regardinfprmation about securities authorized for issieannder our equity compensation
plans.
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Performance Graph®

The following graph shows a comparison from Decenftie 2012 through December 31, 2014 of cumulatidtel return on assum
investment of $100.00 in cash in our ordinary shattee Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaqg Bioddagy Index. Such returns are be

on historical results and are not intended to ssigigeure performance. Points on the graph reptakerperformance as of end of each bus
day.

COMPARISON OF 25 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Prothena Corporation plc, the Nasdag Composi#t Index, and the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index
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Prothena Corporation plc $100 $102 $179 % 36 $ 31 % 28¢
Nasdaq Composite Index $100 $100 $113 % 136 $ 14€ % 157
Nasdag Biotechnology Index $100 $99 $126 % 164 % 18¢ % 22(

@ The information under the heading “Performance Graghall not be deemed “soliciting material” or tbe “filed” with the SEC fc
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchang®fX1934, as amended, or otherwise subject tdidldities under that Section, and st
not be deemed incorporated by reference into dimgfof Prothena Corporation plc under the SecestiAct of 1933, as amended.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Use of Proceeds
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.

Irish Law Matters

As we are an Irish public limited company, thedaling matters of Irish law are relevant to the leogdof our ordinary shares.
Irish Restrictions on Import and Export of Capite

Except as indicated below, there are no restristmmnonresidents of Ireland dealing in Irish domestic sii@s, which includes ordina
shares of Irish companies. Dividends and redempiiogeeds also continue to be freely transferableonsesident holders of such securit
The Financial Transfers Act, 1992 gives power ® RKhinister for Finance of Ireland to restrict fircdal transfers between Ireland and o
countries and persons. Financial transfers aredbyaiefined and include all transfers that wouldnbevements of capital or payments wi
the meaning of the treaties governing the memia¢esof
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the European Union. The acquisition or disposahtdrests in shares issued by an Irish incorporatedpany and associated payments
within this definition. In addition, dividends orapments on redemption or purchase of shares anchgrag on a liquidation of an Iri
incorporated company would fall within this defioit. At present the Financial Transfers Act, 199€hgbits financial transfers involving t
late Slobodan Milosevic and associated personanByMyanmar), Belarus, certain persons indictedhieylinternational Criminal Tribunal
the former Yugoslavia, the late Osama bin LaderQAida, the Taliban of Afghanistan, Democratic R#jouof Congo, Democratic Peopte’
Republic of Korea (North Korea), Iran, Iraq, Cotdvdire, Lebanon, Liberia, Zimbabwe, Sudan, SomdRepublic of Guinea, Afghanist:
Egypt, Eritrea, Libya, Syria, Tunisia, certain knoverrorists and terrorist groups, and countries tarbor certain terrorist groups, without
prior permission of the Central Bank of Ireland.

Irish Taxes Applicable to U.S. Holdel
Withholding Tax on Dividends

While we have no current plans to pay dividendsjdéinds on our ordinary shares would generally biejest to Irish Dividen
Withholding Tax ("DWT") at the standard rate of @mee tax (currently 20%), unless an exemption applie

Dividends on our ordinary shares that are ownedesydents of the U.S. and held beneficially throtigdh Depositary Trust Compe
("DTC") will not be subject to DWT provided thatetaddress of the beneficial owner of the ordindaras in the records of the broker is in
u.s.

Dividends on our ordinary shares that are ownedebidents of the U.S. and held directly (outsid®®fC) will not be subject to DW
provided that the shareholder has completed theopppte Irish DWT form and this form remains valsuch shareholders must provide
appropriate Irish DWT form to our transfer agenleaist seven business days before the record afatieef first dividend payment to which tt
are entitled.

If any shareholder who is resident in the U.S. irexe a dividend subject to DWT, he or she shouldegally be able to make
application for a refund from the Irish Revenue @assioners on the prescribed form.

While the U.S./Ireland Double Tax Treaty containgvisions regarding withholding, due to the widee of the exemptions from DV
available under Irish domestic law, it would getigrae unnecessary for a U.S. resident sharehaddesly on the treaty provisions.

Income Tax on Dividends

A shareholder who is neither resident nor ordigar@sident in Ireland and who is entitled to anreggon from DWT generally has
additional liability to Irish income tax or to thmiversal social charge on a dividend from us umnthat shareholder holds their ordinary st
in connection with a trade or business carriedyauth shareholder in Ireland through a branctgenay.

A shareholder who is neither resident nor ordigagkident in Ireland and who is not entitled tceaemption from DWT generally has
additional liability to Irish income tax or to thaiversal social charge on a dividend from us. DNET deducted by us discharges the liab
to Irish income tax and to the universal socialrgha This however is not the case where the shitehtolds their ordinary shares
connection with a trade or business carried onug shareholder in Ireland through a branch or agen

Irish Tax on Capital Gains

A shareholder who is neither resident nor ordigakident in Ireland and does not hold their shareonnection with a trade or busir
carried on by such shareholder in Ireland througnaamch or agency should not be within the chaogeish tax on capital on a disposal of
shares.

Capital Acquisitions Tax

Irish Capital Acquisitions Tax ("CAT") is comprisgulincipally of gift tax and inheritance tax. CAduwd apply to a gift or inheritance
our ordinary shares irrespective of the place sidence, ordinary residence or domicile of theipartThis is because our ordinary share
regarded as property situated in Ireland as ouestegister must be held in Ireland. The person keleeives the gift or inheritance has prin
liability for CAT.

CAT is levied at a rate of 33% above certain taefthresholds. The appropriate fese threshold is dependent upon (i) the relatigo
between the donor and the donee and (ii) the agfjoegof the values of previous gifts and inheritas received by the donee from per:
within the same category of relationship for CATrgnses. Gifts and inheritances passing betweensspoare exempt from CAT. C
shareholders should consult their own tax advigen® whether CAT is creditable or deductible impating any domestic tax liabilities.
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Stamp Duty

Irish stamp duty may be payable in respect of feaaf our ordinary shares (currently at the &Ht@% of the price paid or the mar
value of the shares acquired, if greater).

Shares Held Through DTC

A transfers of our ordinary shares from a sellepnwiolds shares through DTC, to a buyer who holdsaitquired shares through D
should not be subject to Irish stamp duty.

Shares Held Outside of DTC or Transferred Into ot ©f DTC

A transfer of our ordinary shares (i) by a selldronholds shares outside of DTC to any buyer, Jibgiia seller who holds the she
through DTC to a buyer who holds the acquired shawtside of DTC, may be subject to Irish stampy.dut

Shareholders wishing to transfer their sharesantout of DTC may do so without giving rise to hlistamp duty provided that there is
change in the beneficial ownership of such shamneisthe transfer into or out of DTC is not effecteccontemplation of a subsequent sal
such shares to a third party. In order to bengginfthis exemption from Irish stamp duty, the satheist confirm to us that there is no chang
the ultimate beneficial ownership of the shares assult of the transfer and there is no agreeringrthe sale of the shares by the benef
owner to a third party being contemplated.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial imf@tion has been derived from our audited cons@didinancial statements. T
information set forth below is not necessarily aative of results of future operations and shoultlbe relied upon as an indicator of our fu
performance. The selected consolidated financitd dhould be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Mgements Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #ma Consolidated Financial Statements and notestthancluded in Item 8 of this Form 10-
K in order to fully understand factors that mayeaffthe comparability of the information preseretbw.

Our historical results of operations presentedwetay not be reflective of our financial positisasults of operations and cash flows
we operated as a staatbne public company for all periods prior to Detem21, 2012. Prior to December 21, 2012, the Rr@HBusine:
operated as part of Elan and not as a separaté-alame entity. Our Combined Financial Statementsrpo December 21, 2012 have b
prepared on a “carve-oubasis from the consolidated financial statement&lah to represent our financial position and penfance as if w
had existed on a staradene basis during each of the fiscal years preseintthe Consolidated Financial Statements. Clesuigport costs ha
been allocated to us for the purposes of prepatingConsolidated Financial Statements based orestimated usage of the resources.
estimated usage of the central support resourcesdet@ermined by estimating our portion of the maygtropriate driver for each categor
central support costs such as headcount or laheshdepending on the nature of the costs. Weueetteat such allocations have been mac
a reasonable basis, but may not necessarily beaitiekt of all of the costs that would have beeruired if we had operated on a standa
basis.

The following tables set forth our selected cortatied financial data for the periods indicated Wwelamounts in thousands except for
share amounts).
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Collaboration revenue $ 50,32( $ — % —  $ — ¢ —
Revenue—related party 534 67€ 2,65¢ 507 1,24:
Total revenue 50,85 67€ 2,65¢ 507 1,24:
Operating expenses:
Research and development 38,45: 26,05 34,13¢ 24,17: 9,781
General and administrative 19,05: 15,05: 9,92¢ 5,57¢ 3,61¢
Total operating expenses 57,50z 41,10: 44,06¢ 29,75 13,40¢
Loss from operations (6,649 (40,427 (41,410 (29,24, (12,167
Other income (expense):
Interest income 79 71 5 — —
Other income (expense), net 231 (225) — — —
Total other income (expense) 31C (159 5 — —
Loss before income taxes (6,339 (40,587) (41,40% (29,249 (12,167
Provision for income taxes 811 41k 6 42€ 32C
Net loss $ (7,150 $ (40,990 $ (4141) $ (29,670 $ (12,48)
Basic and diluted net loss per shére $ 029 % (220 $ (2.8) $ (2.0 % (0.86€)
Shares used to compute basic and diluted net &rsshare 24,67 18,61¢ 14,59: 14,49; 14,497

December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalefits $ 29357¢ $ 176,670 $ 124,86( $ — $ =
Total assets 304,11¢ 182,41( 129,28: 3,61¢ 3,27¢
Other non-current liabilities 2,18¢ 1,73¢ 1,05t 1,65( 1,38¢
Total liabilities 14,22° 9,14( 2,79¢ 10,05¢ 3,24¢
Shareholders’ and parent company equity (deficit) 289,88t 173,27( 126,48« (6,43¢€) (30)
@ Prior to the Separation and Distribution completed December 20, 2012, we operated as part of Et@hreot as a separate stand-

alone entity. As a result, we did not have anymadi shares outstanding and cash and cash equitsafaior to December 20, 201
The calculation of basic and diluted net loss peare assumes that the 14,496,929 ordinary shamsed to Elan shareholders
connection with the separation from Elan have beatstanding for the years ended December 31, 201® 2011 and that tt
3,182,253 ordinary shares issued to Elan upon sapar have been outstanding since December 20,.2012

41




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including undegnit 1- Business and in this Managemeriiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations, contains foddaoking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 21 the Securities Exchange Ac
1934, as amended. These statements relate to, astfwergthings, our strategy; the design and exgetot@ng, scope, enrollment and result
our VITAL Amyloidosis Study for NEODOO1; the expedtenrollment and timing of reporting additionatadtom our ongoing Phase 1/2 st
for NEODOO1; the possible clinical benefit of NEQWQ the timing of reporting data from our Phasenple ascending dose and multi
ascending dose studies for PRX002; the possibtecali benefit of PRX002; the timing of initiatingipo Phase 1 single ascending dose
multiple ascending dose studies for PRX003 andithieg of proof-ofbiology in Phase 1 of PRX003; research and devedoprfiR&D") anc
general and administrative ("G&A") expenses in 20did the sufficiency of our cash and cash equitald-orwardeoking statements m

include words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “exget,” “plan,” “intend,” “aim,” “anticipate,” “assum,” “believe,” “contemplate,” “continue,”
“could,” “due,” “estimate,” “expect,” “goal,” “intad,” “may, ” “objective” “plan,” “predict,” “potential,” “positioned,” “seek “should,”
“target,” “will,” “would,” and other similar expressions that are predictadrar indicate future events and future trendshernegative of the

terms or other comparable terminology. Forwkmaking statements are subject to risks and unicgiga, and actual events or results may c
materially. Factors that could cause our actuallteso differ materially include, but are not limd to, the risks and uncertainties listed bt
as well as those discussed under “Risk Factor#fi;nForm 10-K.

e our ability to obtain additional financing in futipfferings

e our operating losse

< our ability to successfully complete research aenketbpment of our drug candida

e our ability to develop and commercialize prodt

e our collaboration with Roche pursuant to the LieeAgreemen

e our ability to protect our patents and other iretiial propert

e our ability to hire and retain key employe

« tax treatment of our separation from Elan and syiset distribution of our ordinary shai
e restrictions on our ability to take certain acti@hg to tax rules and covenants with E

» our ability to maintain financial flexibility ahsufficient cash, cash equivalents, and investmandl other assets capable of being
monetized to meet our liquidity requirements;

e potential disruptions in the U.S. and global cdgitad credit market
e government regulation of our indus!

< the volatility of our ordinary share prit

e business disruptions; a

« the other risks and uncertainties describetién'Risk Factors” section of this Form KO-

We undertake no obligation to revise or update famyard4dooking statements to reflect any event or circamse that arises after
date of this report.

This discussion should be read in conjunction with Consolidated Financial Statements and Notesepted in Item 8 of this Form 10-
K.

Overview

We are a latestage clinical biotechnology company focused ondlseovery, development and commercialization ofehqroteir
immunotherapy programs for the potential treatmatliseases that involve amyloid or cell adhesife are developing antibodyase!
product candidates that target a number of pofeimtitcations including AL amyloidosis (NEODOO1)afinsons disease and other rele
synucleinopathies (PRX002) and psoriasis and atfflemmatory diseases (PRX003).

We are a public limited company formed under theslaf Ireland. We separated from Elan Corporatiamited (formerly Elai
Corporation, plc ("Elan"), which subsequently beeaanwholly owned subsidiary of Perrigo Company (pRerrigo"), on December 20, 20
After the separation from Elan, and the relatettithistion of the Company's ordinary shares to Elan’

42




shareholders (the "Separation and Distributiontly, @rdinary shares began trading on The NasdagaGMbrket under the symbol “PRTASn
December 21, 2012 and currently trade on The Na&digiopl Select Market.

Our business consists of a substantial portionlaf’g former drug discovery business platform, inclgdieotope Biosciences Limit
and its wholly owned subsidiaries Onclave Therapsutimited and Prothena Biosciences Inc (whichtfer period prior to the Separation
Distribution we collectively refer to herein as tlierothena Business”Prior to December 21, 2012, the Prothena Businpegated as part
Elan and not as a separate statafie entity. Our Financial Statements for the qubsiprior to December 21, 2012 have been derivea
Elan’s historical accounting records and reflect sigatfit allocations of direct costs and expensesofilhe allocations and estimates in tt
Financial Statements are based on assumptionsvéhakelieve are reasonable. However, the Finant&k®ents do not necessarily repre
our financial position or results of operations heel been operating as a separate independent.ebeiey Critical Accounting Policies ai
Estimates” below as well as Note 2 of the “NotetheoConsolidated Financial Statements” includeleim 8 of this Form 10-K.

Recent Developments

NEODO0O01

In December 2014, we initiated The VITAL Amyloidesstudy, a Phase 3 clinical trial for NEODOOL1 inigrats with AL amyloidosit
The trial is designed to support global regulatapprovals. We intend to enroll approximately 23Wiyediagnosed, treatmemaive patien
with cardiac dysfunction. Patients will be randoatizon a 1:1 basis to receive 24 mg/kg of NEODOOdlarebo via intravenous infusion ev
28 days, with both groups receiving concurrentdaad of care therapy.

The composite primary endpoint is event-based, \alticause mortality or cardiac hospitalizations as ifyiafj events. Seconda
endpoints of the study include evaluation of thedizer biomarker NT-proBNP, renal biomarker proteiausix-minute walk test, and multig
quality of life evaluations including the Short FeB6 and the Kansas City Cardiomyopathy Questionn&irethena designed the study \
90% power to detect a 30% change in the eventoeti®een the treatment and placebo groups with sstded alpha of 0.05. The trial allo
for an interim analysis to assess the primary eimdfor efficacy and futility.

Concurrent with The VITAL Amyloidosis Study, a Pka8 clinical trial, we are enrolling up to an aduial 25 patients, with A
amyloidosis and selected persistent organ dysfomciin an openabel expansion portion of the Phase 1/2 study.plée to enroll 10 patier
with cardiac dysfunction, 10 patients with renabfiyction and five patients with peripheral neutbgaall of whom will receive 24 mg/l
intravenously every 28 days. The expansion phadlecatinue to evaluate safety, tolerability, phauokinetics and immunogenicity
NEODOO01 as well as the specific clinical activiyainst cardiac, renal and neuropathy endpc

NEODOO1 received Fast Track designation from th®. Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") in Dedeger 2014. The purpose
the Fast Track designation is to make important dawgs available to patients earlier.

PRX002

In April 2014, together with Roche, we initiatedPhase 1 clinical trial of PRX002. Results for tslisdy are expected in March 2015.
study is a randomized, double-blind, plac&omtrolled, single ascending dose study in headtibjects designed to assess PRX002 for s
tolerability, pharmacokinetics and immunogeniclye received a $15.0 million milestone payment flRoche upon initiation of this stu
under the License Agreement, as described belowlulp 2014, together with Roche, we initiated ad@mized, double-blind, placebo-
controlled multiple ascending dose Phase 1 clirtigal of PRX002 in patients with Parkinson's dsaThis multiple ascending dose stuc
designed to assess PRX002 for safety, tolerabpitarmacokinetics and immunogenicity and buildsrufiee Phase 1 single ascending 1
study initiated in April 2014.

Collaboration with Roche

In December 2013 , we entered into a License, @gweént, and Commercialization Agreement (the “Lsmigreement”with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche Inollgctively, “Roche”) to develop and commercialzrtain antibodies that target alpha
synuclein, including PRX002, which are referreattdiectively as “Licensed ProductsThe License Agreement became effective followirg
expiration of the applicable Hart-Scott-Rodino wajtperiod on January 17, 2014, which triggeredupfiont payment to us &§30.0 millior
from Roche, which we received in February 2014.

Pursuant to the License Agreement, we and Rocheddlehorating to research and develop antibodylyets targeting alphsynuclein
Roche is providing funding for a research collaiorabetween us and Roche focused on optimizinty esiage antibodies targeting alpha
synuclein, potentially including incorporation ob&he’s proprietary Brain Shuttle™ technology to incredskvery of therapeutic antibodies
the brain.
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We filed an Investigational New Drug ApplicatioriND") with the FDA for PRX002 and subsequently igied a Phase 1 study in Aj
2014. In May 2014, we received a $15.0 millimilestone payment from Roche related to the indrabf the Phase 1 study for PRX002 in
clinic.

Following the Phase 1 study, Roche will be prinyardsponsible for developing, obtaining and maiitaj regulatory approval for, a
commercializing Licensed Products. Roche will diszome responsible for the clinical and commentiahufacture and supply of Licen:
Products within a defined time period following tkféective date of the License Agreement.

In addition to the $30.0 million upfront paymentdathe $15.0 milliorclinical milestone payment, Roche is also obligdteday to us tF
following:

* up to $380.0 million upon the achievement of depment, regulatory and various first commercidsanilestones;
* up to an additional $175.0 million in ex-U.S. aoercial sales milestones; and

« tiered, high single-digit to high double-digityadties in the teens on ex-U.S. annual net saldgest to certain adjustments.

In the U.S., the parties will share all developmamd commercialization costs, as well as profilispfawhich will be allocated 70%o0
Roche and 30% to us, for PRX002 in the Parkinsalisease indication, as well as any other Licefseducts and/or indications for which
opt in to co-develop and co-fund. We may opt ouhefco-development and cost and profit sharingroncodeveloped Licensed Products
instead receive U.S. commercial sales milestortedirig up to $155.0 million and tiered, single-ditgi high doubledigit royalties in the teel
based on U.S. annual net sales, subject to caathirstments, with respect to the applicable LicdriRmduct. In addition, we have an op
under the License Agreement to co-promote PRX0QRenU.S. in the Parkinsandisease indication. If we exercise such optiommay als
elect to co-promote additional Licensed ProducttheU.S. approved for Parkinssndisease. Outside the U.S., Roche will have respitity
for developing and commercializing the LicenseddRnis.

October 2013 Offering

In October 2013, we completed an underwritten pubffering of an aggregate of 6,796,500 of our mady shares at a public offer
price of $22.00 per share, which consisted of 407 newly issued ordinary shares sold by us a8ti92421 ordinary shares sold by Jan
Pharmaceutical, a whollgwned subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, as thengekihareholder. We received aggregate net procet
approximately $84.5 million, after deducting thedarwriting discount and estimated offering cost® i not receive any proceeds from
sale of 2,619,421 ordinary shares sold, which mepreed Janssen Pharmaceutical's entire sharehaidirgthena.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 we recouotel@rwriting discounts and offering costs of $mdlion as an offset to tt
proceeds in additional paid in capital.

February 2014 Offering

In February 2014 , Elan Science One Limited ("ESQ&h indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Perrigold 3,182,25%rdinary shares
Prothena. The ordinary shares were sold at a poidhe public of $26.0@er ordinary share, before the underwriting dis¢os a resul
ESOL and Perrigo no longer owned any ordinary shaférothena as of such sale.

We did not receive any of the proceeds from theraff). We paid the costs associated with the dalbese ordinary shares (other t
the underwriting discount, fees and disbursemehisoansel for the selling shareholder) pursuana tSBubscription and Registration Rig
Agreement dated November 8, 2012 by and amonglas,(&Bcquired by Perrigo) and ESOL.

June 2014 Offering

In June 2014 , we completed an underwritten pudffiering of an aggregate of 4,750,06000ur ordinary shares at a public offering p
of $22.50 per ordinary share. We received aggregetteproceeds of approximately $102.5 millioafter deducting the underwriting disca
and estimated offering costs. In July 2014 , thdemwriters exercised their right to subscribe fod @urchase an additional 712,50@inary
shares, pursuant to which we received net proogfeaisproximately $14.9 million , after deducting thnderwriting discount.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 underwritingodnt and offering expense of $5.5 milliarere classified as an offset to
proceeds and recorded in additional paid in capitahe balance sheet.
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Basis of Presentation and Preparation of the Finanal Statements

Our business consists of a substantial portionlaf’g former drug discovery business platform, inclgdieotope Biosciences Limit
(now named Prothena Biosciences Limited) and itolhwhowned subsidiaries Onclave Therapeutics Lithitgnow named Prothe
Therapeutics Limited) and Prothena Biosciencesdnd,related tangible assets and liabilities.

Prior to December 21, 2012, the Prothena businpssated as part of Elan and not as a separate-atane entity. Our consolidat
financial statements for the periods prior to Delbem21, 2012 have been prepared on a “carve-oasis from the consolidated finan
statements of Elan to represent our financial perémce as if we had existed on a stand-alone Hasisg those periods.

Prior to the Separation and Distribution on Decen@e 2012, centralized support costs were allactiaus for the purposes of prepa
the consolidated financial statements based orestimated usage of the resources. Our estimatagk ufathe centralized support resou
was determined by estimating our portion of the hagpropriate driver for each category of centalisupport costs such as headcou
labor hours, depending on the nature of the cigésbelieve that such allocations were made on soresble basis, but may not necessari
indicative of the costs that would have been irediif we had operated on a standalone basis. Fiti@thl information regarding the basis
preparation, refer to Note 2 of the “Notes to tlenéblidated Financial Statements” included in I&of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens discussion and analysis of our financial conditand results of operations is based on our cafeteldl financie
statements, which have been prepared in accordegititéhe accounting principles generally acceptethe U.S. ("GAAP"). The preparation
these consolidated financial statements requirds msake estimates and assumptions for the repartezlints of assets, liabilities, reven
expenses and related disclosures. We believe tlosviog policies to be critical to the judgmentsdaastimates used in the preparation of
financial statements.

Carve-out of the Results of Operations, Financiabfidition and Cash Flows of the Prothena Business

Prior to December 21, 2012, the Prothena Businpssated as part of Elan and not as a separate-akane entity. Our consolidat
financial statements for the periods prior to Delbem21, 2012 have been prepared on a “carve-oasis from the consolidated finan
statements of Elan to represent the financial wsiand performance of Prothena as if we had akiste a stand@lone basis during thc
periods, and as if Financial Accounting StandardsarB ("FASB") Accounting Standard Codification ("83 Topic 810
“Consolidation” (ASC 810") had been applied throughout. The conat#di financial statements have been prepared fiooity with GAAP,
by aggregating financial information from the compots of Prothena described in Note 2 to the Cateteld Financial Statements.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemientsde allocations of direct costs and indirecsteaattributable to our operati
for the periods prior to December 21, 2012. Indiremsts relate to certain support functions thatewgovided on a centralized basis wi
Elan. The support functions provided to us by Hiaeluded, but were not limited to: accounting, mf@tion technology, taxation, lec
corporate strategy, investor relations, corporateegnance and other professional services, emplbgeefit administration, including equ
award and pension services, and cash and treasamggament. Central support costs of our busineghdo/ear ended December 31, 2012
$7.7 million. These costs have been allocated to us for theopas of preparing the consolidated financial stateés based on our estime
usage of the resources. Our estimated usage aktiteal support resources was determined by estignatir portion of the most appropri
driver for each category of central support costshsas headcount or labor hours, depending ondheeof the costs. We believe that ¢
allocations have been made on a reasonable basisjdy not necessarily be indicative of the colstt tvould have been incurred if we
operated on a standalone basis.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned andrefimdable, when payment is reasonably assuredwhed there is no future obligation w
respect to the revenue, in accordance with thes@mascribed in the applicable contract.

Multiple Element Arrangements

Our revenues are generated primarily through aienBe, development and commercialization agreeniémtse types of agreeme
generally contain multiple elements, or deliverablhich may include (i) licenses to our technolo@y R&D activities to be performed
behalf of the collaborative partner, and (iii) iar@in cases, services or obligations in conneactidh the manufacturing or supply of pre-
clinical and clinical material. Payments to us untiese arrangements typically include
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one or more of the following: norefundable, upfront license fees; funding of reskeand/or development efforts; milestone paymesmts
royalties on future product sales.

Revenue under license, development and commetializ agreements is recognized based on the pafaenrequirements of {
contract. Determinations of whether persuasive endd of an arrangement exists and whether delivasyoccurred or services have t
rendered are based on managensejitigments regarding the fixed nature of the fdemrged for deliverables and the collectabilitythudse
fees. Should changes in conditions cause managdmedetermine that these criteria are not met fiyr @ew or modified transactions, reve
recognized could be adversely affected.

We recognize revenue related to license, developarahcommercialization agreements in accordantetve provisions of FASB AS
Topic 605-25, “Revenue Recognition - Multiple-ElamhéArrangements.'We evaluate all deliverables within an arrangententietermin
whether or not they provide value on a statmhe basis. Based on this evaluation, the delilesaare separated into units of accounting.
arrangement consideration that is fixed or deteaivlim at the inception of the arrangement is alkatéd the separate units of accounting b
on their relative selling prices. We may exercigmificant judgment in determining whether a defalgle is a separate unit of accounting
well as in estimating the selling prices of suckt ohaccounting. A change in such judgment coelsuit in a significant change in the perio
which revenue is recognized.

To determine the selling price of a separate dedbvie, we use the hierarchy as prescribed in AS@CT805-25 based on vendspecific
objective evidence ("VSOE"), thirparty evidence ("TPE") or best estimate of selfinige ("'BESP"). VSOE is based on the price changkdr
the element is sold separately and is the priagaigtcharged for that deliverable. TPE is detemdibased on third party evidence for a sir
deliverable when sold separately and BESP is ttima&ted selling price at which we would transasiée if the elements of collaboration
license arrangements were sold on a stnde basis to the buyer. We may not be able &bksh VSOE or TPE for the deliverables wi
collaboration and license arrangements, as we roayawve a history of entering into such arrangementselling the individual deliverab
within such arrangements separately. In additioerg may be significant differentiation in theseaagements, which indicates that compat
third party pricing may not be available. We mayedmine that the selling price for the deliverableghin collaboration and licen
arrangements should be determined using BESP. fdwess for determining BESP involves significardgment on our part and incluc
consideration of multiple factors such as estimalieect expenses and other costs, and availabde dat

Payments or full reimbursements resulting from R&D efforts for those arrangements where such tffare considered as deliveral
are recognized as the services are performed anygrasented on a gross basis so long as theresisggéve evidence of an arrangement, th
is fixed or determinable, and collection of theatet receivable is reasonably assured. Howeveh, fsundling is recognized as a reductiol
R&D expense when we engage in a R&D project jointith another entity, with both entities particijpat in project activities and sharing cc
and potential benefits of the project. Accordinglgimbursement of R&D expenses pursuant to thestwating provisions of our agreeme
with Roche is recognized as a reduction to R&D easpe

Milestone Revenue

We account for milestones under ASU No. 2010-"Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition". Undee milestone methc
contingent consideration received from the achiev@mof a substantive milestone is recognized ireitfirety in the period in which t
milestone is achieved. A milestone is defined asewent (i) that can only be achieved based in whmwlén part on either the entity’
performance or on the occurrence of a specificauteresulting from the entity’performance, (ii) for which there is substantimeertainty ¢
the date the arrangement is entered into thatweetevill be achieved, and (iii) that would resimtadditional payments being due to the er
At the inception of an agreement that includes shilee payments, we evaluate whether each milesganéstantive and at risk to both pal
on the basis of the contingent nature of the nalest This evaluation includes an assessment ofhehé¢a) the consideration is commenst
with either (1) the entityg performance to achieve the milestone, or (2)etiigancement of the value of the delivered itengsa aesult of
specific outcome resulting from the ent#yperformance to achieve the milestone, (b) theidenation relates solely to past performance
(c) the consideration is reasonable relative tmfthe deliverables and payment terms within thrarggement. We evaluate factors such a
scientific, regulatory, commercial and other riskat must be overcome to achieve the respectivesioihe, the level of effort and investn
required to achieve the respective milestone argthven the milestone consideration is reasonahdgivelto all deliverables and payment te
in the arrangement in making this assessment. dhelusion as to whether milestone payments areantdge involves management judgmnr
regarding the factors noted above.

We generally classify each of our milestones intee @f three categories: (i) clinical milestones) fegulatory and developme
milestones, and (iii) commercial milestones. Clitieilestones are typically achieved when a prodizstdidate advances or complet
defined phase of clinical research. For examplajlestone payment may be due to us upon the iioitiaif a clinical trial for a new indicatic
Regulatory and development milestones are typi@adhjieved upon acceptance of the submission foketiag approval of a product candic
or upon approval to market the product candidatéhbyFDA or other
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regulatory authorities. For example, a milestongngent may be due to us upon filing of a Biologidsdnse Application ("BLA") with th
FDA. Commercial milestones are typically achievdtew an approved pharmaceutical product reachesirceifined levels of net royalty se
by the licensee of a specified amount within a ggetperiod.

Commercial milestone payments and milestone payniat are not deemed to be substantive will bewaded for as a continge
revenue payment with revenue recognized when aitimgencies are lifted, which is expected to berupshievement of the milesto
assuming all revenue recognition criteria are met.

Profit Share Revenue

For agreements, with profit sharing arrangemenésyill record our share of the ptax commercial profit as collaboration revenue v
the profit sharing can be reasonably estimatedcatidctability is reasonably assured. If profit Shg estimates are materially different fr
actual results it could impact the amount of rewemecognized in future periods. If the profit shasnnot be reasonably estimatet
collectability of the profit share amount is notsenably assured, our portion of the profit shareould impact the amount of revel
recognized in future periods.

Royalty Revenue

We will recognize revenue from royalties based ioensees' sales of our products or products ustdgechnologies. Royalties
recognized as earned in accordance with the cdrieatis when royalties from licensees can be reddprestimated and collectability
reasonably assured. If we can no longer estimatatyorevenue or our estimates are materially déffé from actual results it could impact
amount of revenue recognized in future periods.

Research and Development

We expense R&D costs as incurred. R&D expensesadeclbut are not limited to, salary and beneftigrebased compensation, clini
trial activities, drug development and manufactyyirprior to FDA approval and thindarty service fees, including clinical rese:
organizations and investigative sites. We recogoass for certain development activities, suclklemcal trials, based on an evaluation of
progress to completion of specific tasks using datezh as patient enrollment, clinical site actmasi, or information provided to us by
vendors on their actual costs incurred. The objectf our accrual policy is to match the recordiofgthe expenses in our Consolide
Financial Statements to the actual services we hesgived and efforts we have expended. As sugierese accruals related to clinical tr
are recognized based on our estimate of the dedre@mpletion of the events specified in the spedafinical study or trial contract. Payme
for these activities are based on the terms ofrttizidual arrangements, which may differ from tettern of costs incurred, and are refle
in our Consolidated Financial Statements as prepagtcrued research and development. Amounts dyebm fixed fee, fee for service,
may include upfront payments, monthly payments, pangnents upon the completion of milestones orip¢ o deliverables.

Share-based Compensation

We account for our shateased compensation in accordance with the fairevedgognition provisions of current authoritativd@dance
Sharebased awards, including stock options, are meastrér value as of the grant date and recogniaezkpense over the requisite ser
period (generally the vesting period), which we énalected to amortize on a straight-line basisc&Sshardsased compensation expens
based on awards ultimately expected to vest, ibleas reduced by an estimate for future forfeitWés estimate forfeitures at the time of g
and revise our estimate, if necessary, in subsequemiods. We estimate the fair value of optionanged using the Blackcholes optio
valuation model. Significant judgment is requiraddetermining the proper assumptions used in tmextels. The assumptions used include
risk free interest rate, expected term, expectéatility and expected dividend yield. We base csswamptions on historical data when avail
or when not available, on a peer group of compaiage we do not have a long trading history t® the volatility of our ordinary shares,
expected volatility was based on historical stoolatilities of peer group of companies over a peneriod equal to the expected life of
options. These peer companies are publicly tradade similar industry, life cycle, revenue and neartapitalization. In addition, since we
not have sufficient historical employee share optixercise data, the simplified method has beed tseestimate the expected life of
options.

However, these assumptions consist of estimatéstafe market conditions, which are inherently utaia, and therefore subject to
judgment and therefore any changes in assumptimud significantly impact the future grant dater fealue of shar-based awards.

Total share-based compensation expense for theepeld December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was 3$Biénm $3.1 million and$7.&
million , respectively.
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The expense for periods prior to December 21, 2048 allocated to us based on awards from Elan yequéins granted to El
employees who have, directly or indirectly, proddservices to Prothena. Shdr@sed compensation expense for restricted stodk wrai
measured based on the closing fair market valuklaf’s ordinary shares on the date of grant. We didreobgnize any expense a
December 20, 2012 in relation to the existing Edmuitybased awards as our employees were not requirgaotdde service after tl
Separation and Distribution in order to receive bHemefits of the awards. The shé@sed compensation expense relating to the ch
described above is a noeeurring charge that is directly attributable farEas part of the Separation and Distributiorhef Prothena Busine
therefore it was not recorded in the Company’s Gbdated Financial Statements after December 20220

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As an emerging growth company under the JumpstartBOsiness Startups Act (the "JOBS Act"), unlikker public companies, we i
eligible to take advantage of certain exemptionsnfivarious reporting requirements that are applécai other public companies that are
emerging growth companies. We have an extendediti@m period for adopting new or revised accouptstandards that have differ
effective dates for public and private companied sach time as those standards apply to privatepanies.

The information contained in Note 2 to the Consaikdl Financial Statements under the heading “Refsedunting Pronouncementis’
hereby incorporated by reference into this Paitéin 7.

Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2014, 20182012

Revenue
Year Ended December 31, Percentage Change
2014 2013 2012 2014/2013 2013/2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Collaboration revenue $ 50,32( $ — $ — nm nm
Revenue—related party 534 67€ 2,65¢ (2% (75)%
Total revenue $ 50,85« $ 67¢ $  2,65¢ 7.427% (75)%

nm = not meaningful

Total revenue was $50.9 million , $0.7 million a®2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2@D4,3 and 2012 respectively
Collaboration revenue includes reimbursements uadeticense Agreement with Roche, which becamectiffe January 22, 2014 .

Collaboration revenue for the year ended DecemMler2814 consisted of the following amounts from Roche untter Licens
Agreement: a one-time, non-refundable, non-crebitalpfront payment of $30.0 milliofwhich was recognized as collaboration lice
revenue), a clinical milestone of $15.0 million (which $13.3 milionwas recognized as collaboration revenue), reimoesé fo
development costs of $6.0 million (of which $5.3limh was recognized as collaboration license revenud)rambursement for resea
services of $1.7 million The portion of the amounts recognized as colkatimn revenue for the milestone and the developmemtbursemen
were based on the relative selling price methodpplying multiple element accounting, see Note th Consolidated Financial Statem:
“Roche License Agreement” for more information.

Related-party revenue for the years ended DeceB81het014, 2013 and 2012as comprised of fees earned from the provisiomeséarc
and development services to Elan (acquired by dr&rriTotal related-party revenue decreased by $042, or 21% , during thgear ende
December 31, 2014compared to the corresponding periods of ther pigar, and decreased by $2.0 million, or 75%,rduthe year end:
December 31, 2013 compared to the prior year, dwereduction in the scope of the R&D services joled to Elan. Since our research
development services agreement with Elan terminat@®ecember 2014, we do not expect any relatet+pavenue in 2015.
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Operating Expenses

Year Ended December 31, Percentage Change
2014 2013 2012 2014/2013 2013/2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Research and development $ 38,45. $ 26,05: $ 34,13¢ 48% (24)%
General and administrative 19,05! 15,05! 9,92¢ 27% 52%
Total operating expenses $ 57,500 $ 41,100 $ 44,06¢ 40% (7%

Total operating expenses consist of research anglafement ("R&D") expenses and general and adnnatise ("G&A") expenses. O
operating expenses for the years ended Decemb@034, 2013 and 2012 were $57.5 million , $41.1ionland $44.1 million , respectively.

Our R&D expenses primarily consisted of personrmdts and related expenses, including shhaseed compensation, external c
associated with preclinical activities and drug elepment related to our drug programs, includingOilB01, PRX002, PRX003 and ¢
discovery programs, and costs of providing reseaechices to Elan. Pursuant to our License Agreémvéh Roche, in 2014 we began mak
payments to Roche for our share of the developragpenses incurred by Roche related to PRX002 pmogndhich is included in our R&
expense. We recorded reimbursements from Rochaefeglopment and supply services based on thewelpércentages as an offset to F
expense.

Our G&A expenses primarily consist of professiosatvices expenses and personnel costs and rebgtedses, including shalmse!
compensation and, for the year ended December@2, Zertain centralized support costs that had ladlecated to us by Elan based on
estimated usage of the resources. Shased compensation expense during the year endshiber 31, 2012 was also allocated to us by
Additional information regarding the allocation eéntralized G&A expenses is discussed above uhdecaption “Carvesut of the Results
Operations, Financial Condition and Cash FlowshefRrothena Business”.

Research and Development Expenses

Our R&D expenses increased by $12.4 million , &¥48&or the year ended December 31, 20&édmpared to the prior year. The incre
for the year ended December 31, 2@binpared to the prior year was primarily due toiraarease in external expenses related to pri
manufacturing primarily associated with our PRX@0®I NEODOO1 programs offset in part by a reduciioRRX002 product manufacturi
expense, increased external expenses for drugageueht including clinical trial cost associatednitRX002 and to a lesser extent NEOL
programs, higher personnel costs including shasedaompensation expenses, and $1.4 milicexpense reimbursements to Roche offs
part by $2.4 million in expense reductions frommeursements from Roche (including $1.7 million doportion of the $15.0 milliomilestont
received from Roche in the quarter ended June @D4)2

Our R&D expenses decreased by $8.1 million, or Z¢#ahe year ended December 31, 2013 comparduktprior year. The decrease
the year ended December 31, 2013 was primarilytdug decrease in shabased compensation expense, lower personnel codttoae
external expenses related to the ELNDOO5, discoaad/NEODOO1 programs, partially offset by increaiseexternal expenses attributabl
our PRX002 and PRX003 programs.

Our research activities are aimed at developing diely products. Our development activities invadive translation of our research i
potential new drugs. R&D expenses include persowensts and related expenses, external expensesiadasdowith preclinical and dr
development, materials, equipment and facilitiest<that are allocated to clearly related R&D aiitis.

The following table sets forth the R&D expensesdor major programs (specifically, any program vaticcessful first dosing in a Ph
1 clinical trial, which were NEODOO01 and PRX002dasther R&D expenses for the years ended Decenthe2@®4 , 201&nd 2012, and tl
cumulative amounts to date (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 Cumulative to Date
NEODO001® $ 8,20 $ 3,76: $ 8,02¢ $ 35,43¢
PRX002® 9,37: 11,67 6,887 30,31(
Other R&D® 20,87¢ 10,61: 19,22
$ 38,45. $ 26,05 $ 34,13¢

49






@ Cumulative R&D costs to date for NEODOO1 include ttosts incurred from the date when the programbeem separately tracked in preclin
development. Expenditures in the early discoveagesiare not tracked by program and accordingly baea excluded from this cumulative amount.

@ Cumulative R&D costs to date for PRX002 and relaetibodies include the costs incurred from the aaten the program has been separately tracl
preclinical development. Expenditures in the edilcovery stage are not tracked by program andrdicagdy have been excluded from this cumule
amount. PRX002 cost include payments to Roche doshare of the development expenses incurred loh&keelated to PRX002 programs and is n
reimbursements from Roche for development and guggivices recorded as an offset to R&D expensetheyear ended December 31, 208P.4
million was recorded as an offset to R&D expensetuding $1.7 million for a portion of the $15.0lloin milestone received from Roche in the qu
ended June 30, 2014.

©®  Other R&D is comprised of preclinical developmentaliscovery programs that have not had succesulpatient dosing in a Phase 1 clinical t
including PRX003, and research costs we incurrgmaniding research services to Elan.

We expect our R&D expenses to increase in 2015asifiyndue to increased spending for the NEODOOmm with the initiation of
Phase 3 clinical trial and to a lesser extent higlosts associated with development and manufacfuoosts incurred under our ca$taring
arrangement with Roche including the continuatibthe Phase 1 clinical trial for PRX002.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our G&A expenses increased by $4.0 million , or 27f4r the year ended December 31, 28&pared to the prior year, primarily (
to higher personnel costs, including share-basetbeasation expenses, and higher external cons@ipgnses.

Our G&A expenses increased by $5.1 million, or 588 the year ended December 31, 2013 compardtktprior year. G&A expens
during the year ended December 31, 2013 consigiethply of professional services fees (includingyments to Elan under a transitic
services agreement), internal personnel costs harkkased compensation expense of $2.1 million. G&Aeesps during the year en
December 31, 2012 were presented on a "cam'ébasis and consisted of $2.2 million of diregpense incurred by the Prothena Busines
$7.7 million of indirect expenses which was base@o allocation to the Prothena Business by Elan.

We expect our G&A expenses to increase moderateBOIL5 over the prior year as the result of ina@eas personnel, legal and ot
administrative expenses associated with beingwaiggppublic company.

Other Income (Expense)

Year Ended December 31, Percentage Change
2014 2013 2012 2014/2013  2013/2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest income $ 79 $ 71 $ 5 11 % 1,32(%
Other income (expense), net 231 (225) — (209)% nm
Total Other Income (Expense) $ 31C $ (1549 $ 5 (301)% (3,180%

nm = not meaningful

Interest income increased by $8,000 , or 11% tHeryear ended December 31, 2@bnpared to the prior year, primarily due to hig
balances in our cash and money market accountsr @itome (expense), net for the year ended Dece@ihe2014was higher primarily du
to foreign exchange income from transactions wihdors denominated in Euros.

Interest income increased by $66,000the year ended December 31, 2013 comparecetpribr year primarily due to interest earnei
our cash and money market accounts. For the yemdebecember 31, 2012, no interest income wasafiddo the Prothena Business by E
Other income (expense), net for the year ended mileee 31, 2013 was primarily made up of foreign exgie losses from transactions \
vendors denominated in Euros.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended December 31, Percentage Change
2014 2013 2012 2014/2013 2013/2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Provision for income taxes $ 811 $ 41t $ 6 95% 6,817%
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The tax provisions were $811,000 , $415,000 an@0Rb6for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012ah8, respectively The ta:
provisions for all periods presented reflect Ugklefral taxes associated with nominal, recurringdjtgrattributable to intercompany services
the Company's U.S. subsidiary performs for the CaimgpNo tax benefit has been recorded relatedxtéosses recognized in Ireland and
deferred tax assets for those losses are offsatajuation allowance.

Subsequent to our separation from Elan, we begditetour own U.S. and foreign income tax returnsl écome taxes are presente
the Consolidated Financial Statements using thet asel liability method prescribed by the accountjnidance for income taxes. Prior to
separation from Elan, income taxes as present#ficiconsolidated financial statements represente@mt and deferred income taxes of |
attributed to us in a manner that is systematigmal and consistent with the asset and liabititgthod prescribed by the accounting guid
for income taxes. Our income tax provision priortlie separation from Elan was prepared under tbpafate return methodThe separa
return method applies the accounting guidancerfoorme taxes to the standalone financial statenentéwe were a separate taxpayer a
stand-alone enterprise.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Working capital $ 287,23t $ 170,81t
Cash and cash equivalents 293,57¢ 176,67
Total assets 304,11¢ 182,41
Other non-current liabilities 2,18¢ 1,73¢
Total liabilities 14,22° 9,14(
Total shareholders’ equity 289,88t 173,271

Working capital was $287.2 million at December 3@14 , an increase of $116.4 million from workirgpital of $170.8 millioras o
December 31, 2013This increase was principally attributable toighler net cash and cash equivalents balance mgditom the net procee
of $117.3 million from our June 2014 public offegiras well as the $45.0 million in upfront and rsit;ne payments from Roche.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $293.6 miliimeash and cash equivalents. Although we belibased on our current business pl
that our existing cash and cash equivalents wilstificient to meet our obligations for at least thext twelve months, we anticipate that
will require additional capital in the future ind@r to continue the research and development oflaug candidates. As of December 31, 2014
$16.6 millionof our outstanding cash and cash equivalents tetaté).S. operations that management asserted erazapently reinvested.
these funds were repatriated back to Ireland wddvioeur a withholding tax from the dividend digtution.

We have based this estimate on assumptions thapnoag to be wrong, and we could use our availabfgtal resources sooner than
currently expect. Because of the numerous risks wrakrtainties associated with the development @rdmercialization of our prodt
candidates, we are unable to estimate the amounisceased capital outlays and operating expersseciated with completing 1
development of our product candidates. Our futuagital requirements will depend on numerous fac¢torsluding, without limitation, th
timing of initiation, progress, results and costsoar clinical trials; the results of our researhd preclinical studies; the costs of clin
manufacturing and of establishing commercial mactuféng arrangements; the costs of preparing,dilimd prosecuting patent applicati
and maintaining, enforcing and defending intellattpropertyrelated claims; the costs and timing of capitakagmirchases; our ability
establish research collaborations, strategic cotkinns, licensing or other arrangements; thescssatisfy our obligations under current
potential future collaborations; and the timingait, and amount of revenues or royalties, if &rgm any approved drug candidates. Purs
to the License Agreement with Roche, in the U.®,and Roche will share all development and comrakzation costs, as well as profits,
of which will be allocated 70% to Roche and 30%us) for PRX002 in the Parkins@ndisease indication, as well as any other Lice
Products and/or indications for which we opt irctedevelop and ctund. In order to develop and obtain regulatoryrapal for our potenti
products we will need to raise substantial add@idands. We expect to raise any such additionadiuthrough public or private equity or ¢
financings, collaborative agreements with corpopeners or other arrangements. We cannot assumhesuch additional financings will
available on acceptable terms, if at all, and dirdncings may only be available on terms dilutiweour shareholders.

Prior to the Separation and Distribution, our opegpand capital resource requirements were furmeglan. As part of the Separat
and Distribution, Elan made a cash investment iof $99.0 million, which we have been using to funarking
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capital expenses and for other general corporatpopas. Additionally, a whollpwned subsidiary of Elan made a cash payment of0
million to subscribe for 18% of our outstandingioaty shares (as calculated immediately following subscription).

June 2014 Offering

In June 2014, the Company completed an underwrfitéslic offering of an aggregate of 4,750,080its ordinary shares at a put
offering price of $22.50 per ordinary share. Thanpany received aggregate net proceeds of approgiyrt02.5 million, after deducting tt
underwriting discount and estimated offering costs.

In July 2014 , the underwriters exercised theiiapto subscribe for and purchase an additional 50ordinary shares, pursuant
which the Company received net proceeds of apprabeiy $14.9 million, after deducting the underwriting discount of apgmately $1.
million.

October 2013 Equity Financing

In October 2013, we completed an underwritten pubffering of an aggregate of 6,796,500 of our wady shares at a public offer
price of $22.00 per share, which consisted of 407F newly issued ordinary shares sold by us aB6d92421 shares sold by Jans
Pharmaceutical, a whollgwned subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, as thengelihareholder. We received aggregate net procet
approximately $84.5 million, after deducting thedarwriting discount and estimated offering cost® Wil not receive any proceeds from
sale of 2,619,421 ordinary shares sold, which sepreed Janssen Pharmaceutical's remaining shairghoidProthena.

Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 201812and 2012

The following table summarizes, for the periodsdatked, selected items in our Consolidated Stat&srefrCash Flows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net cash used in operating activities $ (68%) $ (32,099 $ (42,072)
Net cash used in investing activities (499 (53%) (2,300
Net cash provided by financing activities 118,08« 84,45( 168,23:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 116,90 $ 51,817 $ 124,86(

Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $0.7ianilfor the year ended December 31, 20X timarily due to receipt of the upfrc
payment of $30.0 million , the clinical milestonayment of $15.0 milliorand reimbursement for research and developmens cds$7.(
million from Roche, recognized as revenue, paytiaffset by $57.5 million in expenses (adjuste@xolude norcash charges) and increase
accrued liabilities.

Net cash used in operating activities was $32.lianind $42.1 milliorfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012ectgely
in each case consisted primarily of net losseugielfl to exclude nocash charges) and changes in working capital atsolihe decrease
cash used in operating activities from 2012 wamarily due to fact that in the prior year more casis used to settle liabilities at the en
2012 with a liability balance of $2.8 million compd to our December 31, 2013 ending liabilitiesabak of $9.1 million extending ce
available for operations.

Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $0.5iamill, $0.5 million and $1.3 million for the yearsded December 31, 2014, 2048¢
2012, respectively, consisting primarily of puroesef property and equipment.

Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for tteay ended December 31, 2014 was $118.1 millgmmarily from net proceeds from ¢
June 2014 public offering and to a lesser extemhfissuance of common stock upon exercise of stptikns and excess tax benefit from s
option exercises. Net cash provided by financiniyiies was $84.5 million for the year ended Debem31, 2013rimarily consisting of n
proceeds from our October 2013 equity financing. d&dsh provided by financing activities was $168iftion for the year ended December
2012, primarily consisting of funding provided blak and the issuance of ordinary shares to a wioeltyed subsidiary of Elan.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2014 , we were not a party to dmpalance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current
future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenue or expenses, resfltgperations, liquidity, capital expenditu
or capital resources.

Contractual Obligations

Our main contractual obligations as of DecemberZf4 consist of operating leases of $12.1 milliaontractual obligations unc
license agreements of $1.5 million and purchasigatibns of $3.2 million (of which $3.1 milliois included in the accrued current liabiliti¢
Purchase obligations represent our ©aneelable purchase commitments to suppliers. @pgrieases represent our future minimum re
commitments under our operating leases. In Dece2(libt, we entered into a sublease agreement with a plairty to sublease a portion of
leased facility. This sublease agreement has a-ywar term (with options to extend for anotheryadich commenced in January 2015he
Company expects to receive future minimum payméois this sublease of $0.5 million , $0.5 millionca$0.3 millionin 2015, 2016 ar
2017, respectively, which is an offset to the lgaagments below.

The following is a summary of our contractual obtigns as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  Thereafter

Operating leases $ 12,10¢$ 1,821$ 193¢t$ 2,017$ 2,09%$ 2,18($ 2,057

Purchase Obligations 3,19 3,197 — — — — —
Contractual obligations under license

agreement® 1,45( 26( 11C 11C 11C 11C 75C

Total $ 16,75¢$ 527¢$ 2,04¢$ 2,127$% 2,206 $ 229($ 2,80i

@ Excludes future obligations pursuant to the costrity arrangement under our License Agreement Ritishe. Amounts of such obligations, if any,
cannot be determined at this time.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Risk

Our business is primarily conducted in U.S. dolleaxsept for our agreement with a contract manufactfor clinical supplies which
denominated in Euros. We recorded a gain on foreignency exchange rate differences of approxima#234,000 during thgear ende
December 31, 2014 and a loss on foreign currenchiange rate differences of $226,000 in during & ynded December 31, 201At this
time, we do not believe that our foreign excharigle is material. However, if we continue or increasir business activities that require the
of foreign currencies, we may incur losses if thedzand other such currencies strengthen agaied 18. dollar.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk is limited to cash equivalents, which consist of accounts raaiatl in money market funds. We h
assessed that there is no material exposure t@attate risk given the nature of money market$urin general, money market funds are
subject to interest rate risk because the intgraist on such funds fluctuates with the prevailintgiest rate. Accordingly, our interest incc
fluctuates with short-term market conditions.

In the future, we anticipate that our exposurenteriest rate risk will primarily be related to dovestment portfolio. We intend to inv
any surplus funds in accordance with a policy appdoby our board of directors which will specifyethategories, allocations, and rating
securities we may consider for investment. The arimobjectives of our investment policy are to pree principal and maintain proj
liquidity to meet our operating requirements. Owestment policy also specifies credit quality dmds for our investments and limits
amount of credit exposure to any single issuegissutype of investment.

Credit Risk

Our accounts receivables are due from two par®eshe our collaboration partner and Elan (acquirgdPerrigo) to whom we provid
R&D services. We do not believe that our credk issignificant. As of December 31, 2014 , oureigables from these customers totadde
million .

Financial instruments that potentially subject ascbncentration of credit risk consist of cash aedh equivalents and accol
receivable. We place our cash and cash equivalatithigh credit quality financial institutions ampadirsuant to our
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investment policy, we limit the amount of credipesure with any one financial institution. Deposigdd with banks may exceed the amoul
insurance provided on such deposits. We have maEr@nced any losses on our deposits of cash atderpiivalents.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Prothena Corporation plc:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Prothena Corporation plc and submdias of December 31, 2014 ¢
2013, and the related consolidated statementperfations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flowsémh of the years in the thrgear perio
ended December 31, 2014 . These consolidated falastatements are the responsibility of the Comjfmmanagement. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on these consolidated fimdstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all matergspects, the financial position of Proth
Corporation plc and subsidiaries as of Decembe314 and 2013and the results of their operations and theih ¢ksvs for each of the ye:
in the threeyear period ended December 31, 2014 , in conformiity U.S. generally accepted accounting principles

/sl KPMG LLP
San Francisco, California

March 12, 2015
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Prothena Corporation plc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29357¢ $ 176,67
Receivable from Roche 1,72¢ —
Receivable from related party 30 58
Deferred tax assets 167 81
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,77(C 1,40¢
Total current assets 299,27! 178,22:
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment, net 3,121 3,37z
Deferred tax assets, non-current 1,72( 81¢€
Total non-current assets 4,841 4,18¢
Total assets $ 304,11¢ $ 182,41(
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,72:  $ 1,79(
Accrued research and development 2,28t 1,54
Income taxes payable 57 184
Other current liabilities 4,97t 3,89(
Total current liabilities 12,03¢ 7,40¢
Non-current liabilities:
Income taxes payable, non-current 98 —
Deferred rent 2,09( 1,73¢
Total non-current liabilities 2,18¢ 1,73¢
Total liabilities 14,227 9,14(

Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Shareholders’ equity:
Euro deferred shares, €22 nominal value: — —
Authorized shares — 10,000 at December 31, 2012608
Issued and outstanding shares — none at Decemb2034 and 2013
Ordinary shares, $0.01 par value: 274 21¢
Authorized shares — 100,000,000 at December 314 26t 2013
Issued and outstanding shares — 27,388,005 an8&2@l at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively
Additional paid-in capital 338,10¢ 214,39:.
Accumulated deficit (48,49)) (41,34)
Total shareholders’ equity 289,88t¢ 173,271
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 304,11t $ 182,41(

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaat®ents.

57




Prothena Corporation plc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Collaboration revenue $ 50,32( $ — $ =
Revenue—related party 534 67€ 2,65¢
Total revenue 50,85¢ 67€ 2,65¢
Operating expenses:
Research and development 38,45: 26,05: 34,13¢
General and administrative 19,05! 15,05 9,92¢
Total operating expenses 57,50: 41,10: 44,06¢
Loss from operations (6,649 (40,427 (41,410
Other income (expense):
Interest income 79 71 5
Other income (expense), net 231 (225) —
Total other income (expense) 31C (159 5
Loss before income taxes (6,339 (40,58:) (41,409
Provision for income taxes 811 41k 6
Net loss $ (7,150 $ (40,99¢ $ (41,41))
Basic and diluted net loss per share attributabteotders of ordinary shares $ (0.29 $ (220 $ (2.89)
Shares used to compute basic and diluted net gysshare attributable to holders of
ordinary shares 24,67: 18,61° 14,59:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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Prothena Corporation plc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net loss $ (7,150 $ (40,99¢) (41,41
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash usega@rating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 743 66C 46¢
Share-based compensation 5,591 3,12¢ 6,09¢
Excess tax benefit from share-based award exercises (242) — —
Deferred income taxes (990 (53¢ —
Gain on disposal of fixed asset (29 (29 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivable from Roche (1,729 — —
Receivable from related party 28 16E (229)
Other assets (2,357 (721) (467)
Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities 5,431 6,23: (6,537)
Net cash used in operating activities (683%) (32,099 (42,079
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (52€) (564) (1,307
Proceeds from disposal of fixed asset 27 29 —
Net cash used in investing activities (499) (53%) (1,309
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares in pofficing, net 117,34¢ 84,53 —
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares to Elan — — 26,00(
Proceeds from funding provided by Elan — — 145,23:
Repayment of funding provided by Elan — — (3,000
Post separation adjustments to the funding provimyeHlan — (84) —
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares uportieresf stock options 494 — —
Excess tax benefit from share-based award exercises 242 — —
Net cash provided by financing activities 118,08« 84,45( 168,23:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 116,90: 51,81% 124,86(
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 176,67 124,86( —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $ 29357¢ % 176,67 124,86(
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds $ 158t $ 79€ —
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing arithancing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment under acceymgtyable and accrued liabilities $ — 8 26 —
Offering costs in accounts payable and accrueditiab $ — % 82 —
Receivable from stock option exercises $ 6 $ — —

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaat®ents.
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Prothena Corporation plc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Balances at December 31, 2011

Contribution of net assets to Prothena and
issuance of ordinary shares

Issuance of ordinary shares to Elan
Share-based compensation

Net funding provided by Elan

Net loss

Balances at December 31, 2012

Issuance of ordinary shares in public
offering, net of issuance costs of $7.4
million

Share-based compensation

Post separation adjustment to the funding
provided by Elan

Net loss

Balances at December 31, 2013

Issuance of ordinary shares in public
offering, net of issuance costs of $5.5
million

Share-based compensation

Excess tax benefit from share-based awal
exercises

Issuance of ordinary shares upon exercise of

stock options
Net loss

Balances at December 31, 2014

Total
Ordinary Shares Additional Parent Shareholders'

Paid-in Accumulated Company Equity

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity (Deficit)
— % — % — — (6,436) $ (6,43¢€)
14,496,92 14t 100,68 — (100,829 —
3,182,25: 32 25,96¢ — — 26,00(
— — — — 6,09¢ 6,09¢
_ _ — — 142,23 142,23:
— — — (345) (41,06¢) (41,41))
17,679,18 177 126,65: (34%) — 126,48:
4,177,07 42 84,41 — — 84,45
— — 3,12¢ — — 3,12¢
— — 201 — — 201
- - - (40,996 - (40,996
21,856,26 21¢ 214,39:. (41,34) — 173,27(
5,462,501 54 117,37! — — 117,42¢
— — 5,59 — — 5,59
- - 24z - - 24z
69,24 1 50C — — 501
- - - (7,150 - (7,150)
27,388,00 $ 274 $ 338,10t $ (48,49) — % 289,88

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.Organization
Description of Business

Prothena Corporation plc and its subsidiaries hna” or the “Company”) is a lastage clinical biotechnology company focused o
discovery, development and commercialization ofaigwotein immunotherapy programs for the poterttiehtment of diseases that invc
amyloid or cell adhesion. The Company is develogintibodybased product candidates that target a numberteh{y@l indications includir
AL amyloidosis (NEODO0O01), Parkinsandisease and other related synucleinopathies (BRXdhd psoriasis and other inflammatory dise
(PRX003).

The Company is a public limited company formed unttie laws of Ireland. The Company separated frdam ECorporation Limitec
formerly Elan Corporation, plc (“Elan”), which wasibsequently acquired by Perrigo Company plc (igety, on December 20, 201
Prothena's business consists of a substantiabpoofi Elan's former drug discovery business platfancluding Neotope Biosciences Limi
and its wholly owned subsidiaries Onclave Therapsutimited and Prothena Biosciences Inc (whichtfar period prior to the separation
distribution are collectively referred to hereinthe “Prothena Businessrior to December 21, 2012, the Prothena Businpssated as pe
of Elan and not as a separate statahe entity. After the separation from Elan, amel telated distribution of the Company's ordindrares t
Elan’s shareholders (the “Separation and Distrdni), the Company's ordinary shares commenced tradiniherNasdaq Global Market un
the symbol “PRTA” on December 21, 2012 and curketnilde on The Nasdaqg Global Select Market.

Liquidity and Business Risks
As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had an adetedudeficit of $48.5 million and cash and cashieajents of $293.6 million .

In February 2014, the Company received $30.0 millipfront payment pursuant to a License, Developmamd, Commercializatic
Agreement (the "License Agreement") with F. Hoffmdra Roche Ltd and Hoffmaniba Roche Inc. (collectively, "Roche"). In additiom
May 2014 the Company received a $15.0 millryment from Roche upon achievement of a cliniciéstone related to the initiation of 1
Phase 1 study for PRX002 in April 2014.

In June and July 2014, the Company sold an aggregab,462,500 ordinary shares for net proceedsppfoximately $117.4 million
after deducting the underwriting discount and dffgrexpenses, in an underwritten public offering.

Based on the Company's business plans, managemientds that the Company's cash and cash equisadtridecember 31, 20%kte
sufficient to meet its obligations for at least thext twelve months. To operate beyond such penodf, the Company elects to increase
spending on development programs significantly abourrent longerm plans or enters into potential licenses andtber acquisitions
complementary technologies, products or compattiesCompany may need additional capital. The Comgaspects to continue to finar
future cash needs that exceed its cash from opgratitivities primarily through its current cashdatash equivalents, its collaboration v
Roche, and to the extent necessary, through predeaa public or private equity or debt financingsans and other collaborative agreem
with corporate partners or other arrangements.

The Company is subject to a number of risks, indgdut not limited to: the uncertainty of the Coanp's research and developn
(“R&D") efforts resulting in future successful commerciedbducts; obtaining regulatory approval for its prod candidates; its ability
successfully commercialize its product candidaifeapproved; significant competition from largerganizations; reliance on the proprie
technology of others; dependence on key personmalertain patent protection; dependence on compgattners and collaborators;
possible restrictions on reimbursement from govemtal agencies and healthcare organizations, dsawedther changes in the health
industry.

The Company is dependent on Boehringer Ingelheimanufacture clinical supplies for its therapeatitibody programs. An inability
obtain product supply on a timely basis could haveaterial adverse impact on the Company's busifiessicial condition and results
operations.

2.Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financiliformation

The Prothena Business historically operated as gfrElan and not as a separate stalmhe entity. Prior to the separation
December 20, 2012, the consolidated financial states of Prothena have been prepared on a “catebasis from the consolidated finan
statements of Elan to represent the financial rsénd performance of Prothena as if the Compayeaxisted on a staralene basis and as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standard Codification (“ASC")
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Topic 810, "Consolidation" (*“ASC 810"had been applied throughout. The accompanying Qidased Financial Statements prior
December 21, 2012 include only those assets ahdities that management has determined are spalbiifiidentifiable to Prothena a
allocations of direct costs and indirect costsiaitable to the Company's operations. The indicests included in the Company's Consolid
Financial Statements relate to certain centralaguport functions that were provided by Elan. Alragroup transactions within the Proth
Business have been eliminated in the ConsolidatezhEial Statements and are not disclosed.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have begaged in accordance with the accounting prinsiglenerally accepted in the L
(“GAAP”) and with the instructions for Form 10-K drRegulations Sk statements. The Consolidated Financial Statemeht8rothen
Corporation plc are presented in U.S. dollars, Whscthe functional currency of the Company. Taficial information for all periods prior
the Separation and Distribution were prepared lgregating financial information from the componeatsProthena as described above.
financial information presented after December 2012 includes the accounts of the Company and hsllyrvowned subsidiaries. /
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Prior to December 21, 2012, the centralized supforttions provided to the Company by Elan includedt were not limited t
accounting, information technology, taxation, legarporate strategy, investor relations, corpogateernance and other professional serv
employee benefit administration, including equityaad and pension services, and cash and treasumggement. Centralized support ¢
allocated to the Prothena business for the yeaedB@cember 31, 2012 was $7.7 milliohhese costs were allocated to the Company fc
purposes of preparing the Consolidated FinancitkeSients based on estimated usage of the resdayr¢ks Prothena Business. The estim
usage of the central support resources allocatdtet®rothena Business was determined by estimisipgrtion of the most appropriate dri
for each category of central support costs sucheasicount or labor hours, depending on the natutieeocosts. The Company believes
such allocations were made on a reasonable bagispnay not necessarily be indicative of the cokt tvould have been incurred if
Prothena Business had operated on a standalorse basi

Elan used a centralized approach to manage suiaditantl of its liquid resources and to financediperations and, as a result, no sep
cash accounts for Prothena were historically maiath and debt and liquid resources maintaineeaEtan group level are not included in
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements pithe separation. Elan historically funded &lPoothena'’s operating and capital resa
requirements. The parent company equity balancthénConsolidated Financial Statements constitulas'€ investment in Prothena
represents the excess of total liabilities ovealtassets (or excess of total assets over totalifies), including the netting of intercompe
funding balances between Prothena and Elan. Changesent company equity represent Elan's netsiimvent in Prothena, after giving eft
to its net loss, contributions from Elan in thenfoof share-based compensation to Prothena's engd@al net funding provided by Elan

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial $tatgs in conformity with GAAP requires managemeninake judgments, estima
and assumptions that affect the reported amountsgdts, liabilities, revenues and expenses, datkdedisclosures. On an ongoing b
management evaluates its estimates, includingarigiccounting policies or estimates related temere recognition, shateased compensati
and research and development expenses. The Corbpapg its estimates on historical experience andadous other market specific ¢
other relevant assumptions that management believies reasonable under the circumstances, théseguvhich form the basis for maki
judgments about the carrying values of assets milities that are not readily apparent from otlseurces. Because of the uncertail
inherent in such estimates, actual results magdiffaterially from these estimates.

Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmemédd at financial institutions, such as commerpaper, money market funds, i
other money market securities with original matesitof three months or less at date of purchabe twash equivalents.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net are stated at cosatxssmulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieei and amortization is compu
using the straighline method over the estimated useful lives ofrédated assets. Maintenance and repairs are chaygegense as incurr
and improvements and betterments are capitalizétkrnssets are retired or otherwise disposed efcdht and accumulated depreciatior
removed from the balance sheet and any resultiitg @aloss is reflected in operations in the perniedlized. Depreciation and amortiza
periods for the Company’s property, plant and eopgipt are as follows:
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Useful Life

Machinery and equipment 4-7 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of expected useful life or lease term
Purchased computer software 4 years

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Longdived assets are reviewed for impairment wheneveni&s or changes in circumstances indicate thatdhging amount of an as
may not be recoverable or the estimated usefuidifeo longer appropriate. If circumstances regthiet a longived asset be tested for poss
impairment, the Company compares the undiscourash ffows expected to be generated by the as#la¢ twarrying amount of the asset. If
carrying amount of the lonlived asset is not recoverable on an undiscourdst fiow basis, an impairment is recognized toetktent that th
carrying amount exceeds its fair value. The Compaetgrmines fair value using the income approacedan the present value of expe
future cash flows. The Compamsytash flow assumptions consider historical anddasted revenue and operating costs and otherare
factors. There were no impairment charges recotdeitig the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012612 .

Deferred Rent

Deferred rent consists of the difference betweesh gayments and the recognition of rent expensegiraightine basis for the building
the Company occupies. The leases provide for fikedeases in minimum annual rental payments, akagakent free periods. The total amc
of rental payments due over the lease terms arg lobiarged to rent expense ratably over the liftn@fleases. Tenant improvement allowa
are recorded as a deferred rent liability and avertized over the term of the lease as a reduttioant expense.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned andrefimdable, when payment is reasonably assuredwhed there is no future obligation w
respect to the revenue, in accordance with thest@mascribed in the applicable contract.

Multiple Element Arrangements

The Company's revenues are generated primarilyudifirats license, development and commercializatigreement. These types
agreements generally contain multiple elementdetiverables, which may include (i) licenses to @@mpany's technology, (ii) R&D activiti
to be performed on behalf of the collaborative mpamtand (iii) in certain cases, services or ohidyes in connection with the manufacturing
supply of preelinical and clinical material. Payments to the Qamy under these arrangements typically includeasrmaore of the following
non-refundable, upfront license fees; funding skarch and/or development efforts; milestone paysnend royalties on future product sales.

Revenue under license, development and commemtializ agreements is recognized based on the pafaenrequirements of 1
contract. Determinations of whether persuasive endd of an arrangement exists and whether delivasyoccurred or services have t
rendered are based on managensejitigments regarding the fixed nature of the fdemrged for deliverables and the collectabilitythudse
fees.

The Company recognizes revenue related to liceteseslopment and commercialization agreements inrdaace with the provisions
FASB ASC Topic 605-25, “Revenue Recognition - MulkiElement ArrangementsThe Company evaluates all deliverables withir
arrangement to determine whether or not they peoviue on a stanalone basis. Based on this evaluation, the delblesaare separated il
units of accounting. The arrangement consideratiahis fixed or determinable at the inceptionit# arrangement is allocated to the sep
units of accounting based on their relative selfiniges.

To determine the selling price of a separate dedivie, the Company uses the hierarchy as presciibé&®C Topic 60525 based c
vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE"), thpdrty evidence ("TPE") or best estimate of sellmmge ("BESP"). VSOE is based on
price charged when the element is sold separatelyisathe price actually charged for that delivégalbPE is determined based on third p
evidence for a similar deliverable when sold sejedyand BESP is the estimated selling price attvhive would transact a sale if the elem
of collaboration and license arrangements were @old stand-alone basis to the buyer.

Payments or full reimbursements resulting from R&D efforts for those arrangements where such tffare considered as deliveral
are recognized as the services are performed aygrasented on a gross basis so long as theresisggéve evidence of an arrangement, th
is fixed or determinable, and collection of theatetl receivable is reasonably assured. However,
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such funding is recognized as a reduction of R&pemse when the Company engages in a R&D projeatiyoivith another entity, with bo
entities participating in project activities andaghg costs and potential benefits of the project.

Milestone Revenue

The Company accounts for milestones under ASU B@027, "Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition”. Untlee mileston
method, contingent consideration received fromatleievement of a substantive milestone is recognizets entirety in the period in whi
the milestone is achieved. A milestone is definedaa event (i) that can only be achieved basedhalevor in part on either the entity’
performance or on the occurrence of a specificauteresulting from the entity’performance, (ii) for which there is substantimeertainty ¢
the date the arrangement is entered into thatweetevill be achieved, and (iii) that would resimtadditional payments being due to the er
At the inception of an agreement that includes shilee payments, the Company evaluates whethermidestone is substantive and at ris
both parties on the basis of the contingent nabdfithe milestone. This evaluation includes an assest of whether (a) the consideratio
commensurate with either (1) the entitgerformance to achieve the milestone, or (2etitancement of the value of the delivered itengs
result of a specific outcome resulting from theitghg performance to achieve the milestone, (b) thesidenation relates solely to p
performance, and (c) the consideration is reasenadtive to all of the deliverables and payments within the arrangement. The Comg
evaluates factors such as the scientific, regulatmmmmercial and other risks that must be overctmrazhieve a particular milestone, the |
of effort and investment required to achieve sudestone and whether the milestone consideratioadasonable relative to all deliverables
payment terms in the arrangement in making thisssssent.

The Company generally classifies each of its noless into one of three categories: (i) clinical esibnes, (i) regulatory a
development milestones, and (iii) commercial mdess. Clinical milestones are typically achievedewla product candidate advances in
completes a defined phase of clinical research.ekample, a milestone payment may be due to thep@oynupon the initiation of a clinic
trial for a new indication. Regulatory and devel@mnhmilestones are typically achieved upon accepgtay the submission for market
approval of a product candidate or upon approvah#&mket the product candidate by the U.S. Food@mdy Administration (the "FDA") ¢
other regulatory authorities. For example, a miestpayment may be due to the Company upon filing Biologics License Applicatic
("BLA") with the FDA. Commercial milestones are tyally achieved when an approved pharmaceuticadymbreaches certain defined ley
of net royalty sales by the licensee of a spec#iedunt within a specified period.

Commercial milestone payments and milestone paysniat are not deemed to be substantive will bewrted for as a continge
revenue payment with revenue recognized when altimgencies are lifted, which is expected to berupshievement of the milesto
assuming all revenue recognition criteria are met.

Profit Share Revenue

For agreements, with profit sharing arrangemenits, Gompany will record its share of the pag-commercial profit as collaborati
revenue when the profit sharing can be reasonaliynated and collectability is reasonably assured.

Royalty Revenue

The Company will recognize revenue from royaltiasddl on licensees' sales of the Company's produpt®ducts using the Compar
technologies. Royalties are recognized as earnesc@ordance with the contract terms when royalfiem licensees can be reason:
estimated and collectability is reasonably assured.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed asethcand include, but are not limited to, salaryd dmenefits, sharbase:
compensation, clinical trial activities, drug deM@nent and manufacturing, prior to FDA approval dhidd-party service fees, includi
clinical research organizations and investigatitess Costs for certain development activities hsas clinical trials, are recognized based c
evaluation of the progress to completion of speddsks using data such as patient enrolimenigalisite activations, or information provic
to the Company by its vendors on their actual cowstarred. The objective of the Company's accruicp is to match the recording of
expenses in its Consolidated Financial Statementbe actual services received and efforts expenfledsuch, expense accruals relate
clinical trials are recognized based on its estamaft the degree of completion of the events sptifn the specific clinical study or tr
contract. Payments for these activities are basgti@terms of the individual arrangements, whicty miffer from the pattern of costs incurt
and are reflected in the Consolidated FinancialeBtants as prepaid or accrued research and deveftpAmounts due may be fixed fee,
for service, and may include upfront payments, mignpayments, and payments upon the completionilefstones or receipt of deliverables.
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Acquired In-Process Research and Development Exgens

The Company has acquired and may continue to aetjuir rights to develop and commercialize new dargdidates from third parti
The upfront payments to acquire license, productigits, as well as any future milestone paymeants,immediately expensed as researct
development provided that the drug has not achieggdlatory approval for marketing and, absentiobtg such approval, has no alterna
future use.

Share-based Compensation

To determine the fair value of share-based paymeatrds, the Company uses the Black-Scholes optigimg model. The determinati
of fair value using the Black-Scholes option-pricimodel is affected by the Compasyghare price as well as assumptions regardingribe
of complex and subjective variables. Share-baseatpeasation expense is recognized on a strédilghtoasis over the requisite service pe
for each award. Further, sharvased compensation expense recognized in the Gdeisal Statements of Operations is based on a
expected to vest and therefore the amount of expleas been reduced for estimated forfeitures.tifahdorfeitures differ from estimates at
time of grant they will be revised in subsequentiqus. The Company bases its assumptions on tdatodiata when available or when
available, on a peer group of companies. If facbtiange and different assumptions are employe@t@rhining the fair value of shabase
awards, the shareased compensation expense recorded in futuredsemay differ significantly from what was recordadhe current peric
(see Note 9 for further information).

Total sharebased compensation expense recorded in the CoasalidFinancial Statements for the year ended DeeeB8ih 2012 we
allocated to the Company based on awards from &daity plans granted to Elan employees who havectlly or indirectly, provided servic
to the Company.

With respect to Elan options and RSUs held by Eamployees that became employees of Prothena efegfion the Separation ¢
Distribution:

» unvested Elan options and RSUs that would otherhdse vested within twelve months following theeetive date of the Separat
and Distribution vested immediately upon the Seamaand Distribution, with the RSUs (which by théérms are settled up
vesting) settled in Elan ordinary shares or Elanefipan Depository Shares ("ADSs") in accordancé wieir terms;

» other unvested Elan options and RSUs were forfe#tac

» all vested Elan options (including options the wesbf which were accelerated as described aboileb&required to be exercised
Elan ordinary shares or Elan ADSs within twelve thsrof the effective date of the Separation andribigtion, or will be forfeited.

However, for Elan employees who are aged 55 or owih at least fiveyears of service and who became employees of tmep@oy
unvested Elan options and RSUs became fully vesteldexercisable upon the Separation and Distributith the RSUs (which, by th
terms, are settled upon vesting) settled in Elatinary shares or Elan ADSs in accordance with thaims, and with Elan options be
exercisable for ongear following the Separation and Distribution. $amty, unvested Elan options and RSUs held bySzhenk, became ful
vested and exercisable upon the Separation andbisbn, with the RSUs (which, by their terms aettled upon vesting) settled in E
ordinary shares or Elan ADSs in accordance witlr teems, and with Elan options being exercisabletfvo yeardollowing the Separation a
Distribution.

The Company did not recognize any expense aftereiber 20, 2012 in relation to the existing Elaniggbased awards as -
Companys employees are not required to provide servier #ie Separation and Distribution in order to nexéhe benefits of the awards. -
share-based compensation expense relating to #mgeb described above is a menurring charge that is directly attributable tarEas part
the Separation and Distribution of the ProthenairBass, therefore it was not recorded in the Compma@pnsolidated Financial Statem
after December 20, 2012.

Income Taxes

Subsequent to the separation from Elan, Prothegarbi file its own U.S. and foreign income taxures and income taxes are prese
in the Consolidated Financial Statements usingaiget and liability method prescribed by the actiogrguidance for income taxes. Prio
the separation from Elan, income taxes as presemtéee Consolidated Financial Statements represeciirrent and deferred income taxe
Elan attributed to the Company in a manner thaystematic, rational and consistent with the aasei liability method prescribed by -
accounting guidance for income taxes. The Compangtane tax provision prior to the separation frBfan was prepared under theeparat
return method.”The separate return method applies the accountindgagce for income taxes to the standalone Coregelid Financi:
Statements as if the Company was a separate taxpagie standalone enterprise.
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Deferred tax assets (“DTAsgnd liabilities are determined based on the diffeeebetween the financial statement and tax bésisset
and liabilities using the enacted tax rates pregdod be in effect for the year in which the diffleces are expected to reverse. Net deferre
assets are recorded to the extent the Companyebsltbat these assets will more likely than notdadized. In making such determination
available positive and negative evidence is comsitle@ncluding scheduled reversals of deferreditilities, projected future taxable incor
tax planning strategies and recent financial opmnat

Significant estimates are required in determinihg Companys provision for income taxes. Some of these es@imatre based
management’s interpretations of jurisdictigmecific tax laws or regulations. Various interald external factors may have favorabl
unfavorable effects on the future effective incotae rate of the business. These factors includealrinot limited to, changes in tax la
regulations and/or rates, changing interpretatmfnsxisting tax laws or regulations, changes innestes of prior yearstems, past and futu
levels of R&D spending and changes in overall Iewélincome before taxes.

The tax benefit from an uncertain tax position ésagnized only if it is more likely than not thextposition will be sustained !
examination by the taxing authorities, based ontékbnical merits of the position. The tax benefsognized in the financial statements f
such positions are then measured based on thestdrgeefit that has a greater than 50% likelihoblbleing realized upon settlement. Char
in recognition or measurement are reflected inp@od in which the change in judgment occurs.regkand penalties related to unrecogr
tax benefits are accounted for in income tax expens

Net Income per Ordinary Share

Basic net income (loss) per ordinary share is cdetpby dividing net income (loss) attributable tdinary shareholders by the weigt
average number of ordinary shares outstanding gltini@ period less the weighted average numbera#siad restricted ordinary shares sul
to the right of repurchase. Diluted net income @elinary share is computed by giving effect todillitive potential ordinary shares includ
options. However, potentially issuable ordinaryrekaare not used in computing diluted net lossopdinary share as their effect would be ant
dilutive due to the loss recorded.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss anérotomprehensive income (loss). The Company hasameponents of oth
comprehensive income (loss). Therefore net lossleqcomprehensive loss for all periods presented] ancordingly, the Consolidal
Statements of Comprehensive Loss is not presentadeparate statement.

Segment and Concentration of Risks

The Company operates one segment. The Compangbagerating decision maker (the “CODMIts Chief Executive Officer, manag
the Company’s operations on a consolidated basipuiposes of allocating resources. When evaludliegCompanys financial performanc
the CODM reviews all financial information on a sofidated basis.

Financial instruments that potentially subject tBempany to concentration of credit risk consistcath and cash equivalents
accounts receivable. The Company places its cagivagnts with high credit quality financial institons and by policy, limits the amounti
credit exposure with any one financial instituti@eposits held with banks may exceed the amouimtsofance provided on such deposits.
Company has not experienced any losses on its idepdsash and cash equivalents and its crediteigosure is up to the extent recorde
the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The Gonspaccounts receivables are due from two pafiieshe and Elan (acquired by Perr
to whom the Company provided R&D services. The Camypdoes not believe that its credit risk from agtde receivables is significant. As
December 31, 2014 , receivables from these padiaked $1.8 million .

All of the Company's long-lived assets were helthim U.S. The Company’accounts receivable from related party are fréem Ecate:
in Ireland for all periods presented. For the yeded December 31, 2014eceivable from Roche includes amounts due fraoh entitie
located in the U.S. and Switzerland under the Lseef\greement that became effective January 22,. Rdvkenue recorded in the Statemen
Operations consists of collaboration revenue rdlabethe upfront payment from Roche under the LseeAgreement, payment from Ro
upon achievement of a clinical milestone and reirsboment for research and development services egsl darned from the provision
nonclinical research support to Elan, primarilthe areas of safety, toxicology and regulatory. fdes charged to Elan were calculated b
on the expenses incurred by the Company in theigioovof those R&D services, plus a contractuaiyedmined mark-up of those expenses.

The Company utilizes Boehringer Ingelheim in Switaed for its clinical drug product supply for tlgeutic antibody programs. .
inability to obtain drug product supply on a timddgsis could have a material adverse impact orfCtimapany's business, financial condi
and results of operations.
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Emerging Growth Company Status

As an Emerging Growth Company under the Jumpstart Blisiness Startups Act (the “JOBS Actthie Company is eligible to ta
advantage of certain exemptions from various répgrtequirements that apply to other public comparthat are not Emerging Gro\
Companies. The Company has an extended transigioodofor adopting new or revised accounting statslthat have different effective de
for public and private companies until such timehase standards apply to private companies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Except for the standards below, there have beeremoaccounting pronouncements or changes to adogymonouncements during
year ended December 31, 20, as compared to the recent accounting pronoundsnuescribed in our 2013 Form KQ-that are ¢
significance or potential significance to the Compa

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargsldte 2014-09 (ASU 201@9), Revenue from Contracts with Customers. .
2014499 supersedes the revenue recognition requirenteiiRevenue Recognition (Topic 605), and require#ties to recognize revenue il
way that depicts the transfer of promised goodssamndices to customers in an amount that reflbe<onsideration to which the entity exp
to be entitled to in exchange for those goods origes. ASU 201489 is effective for annual reporting periods begignafter December 1
2016, including interim periods within that repagiperiod, which for the Company is January 1, 2@afly adoption is not permitted. 1
standard permits the use of either retrospectivaiptulative effect transition method. The Compangurrently evaluating the potential imf
the adoption of ASU 20189 will have on its consolidated financial statetsefihe Company has not yet selected a transitiethad nor has
determined the effect of the standard on its orgyéimancial reporting.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013; "Income Taxes" (Topic 740): "Presentation ofUnrecognized Tax Benefit when a |
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossadrax Credit Carryforward Exists" on the finan@ttement presentation of unrecogn
tax benefits. The new guidance provides that dliiatbelated to an unrecognized tax benefit wob&lpresented as a reduction of a deferre
asset for a net operating loss carryforward, alamtéx loss or a tax credit carryforward if su@ttiement is required or expected in the e
the uncertain tax position is disallowed. The Conyphas presented in these Consolidated Finan@#i@ents its unrecognized tax benefi
a reduction in its deferred tax assets as of Deee®b, 2014 and 2013.

3.Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures certain financial assetsaitities at fair value on a recurring basis, irdihg cash equivalents. Fair value it
exit price, representing the amount that woulddieived to sell an asset or paid to transfer dityin an orderly transaction between mai
participants. As such, fair value is a markased measurement that should be determined basessomptions that market participants w
use in pricing an asset or a liability. A thrger- fair value hierarchy is established as a bawiTonsidering such assumptions and for in
used in the valuation methodologies in measuriimgvédue:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted piferadjusted) for identical assets or liabiliiiresictive markets.

Level 2 — Include other inputs that are based upon quotez@fior similar instruments in active markets, gdaprices for identical
similar instruments in markets that are not actared modebased valuation techniques for which all significenputs ar
observable in the market or can be derived fronenladble market data. Where applicable, these mamiejsct future cas
flows and discount the future amounts to a presehte using markdtased observable inputs including interest ratees
foreign exchange rates, and credit ratings.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by littl@@market activities, which would require the Camyp to develop its ow
assumptions.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entitynaximize the use of observable inputs and minintieeuse of unobservable ing
when measuring fair value. The carrying amountsertain financial instruments, such as cash egemis] accounts receivable, acco
payable and accrued liabilities, approximate faiue due to their relatively short maturities, dma market interest rates, if applicable.

Based on the fair value hierarchy, the Companysilas its cash equivalents within Level 1. Thibecause the Company values its
equivalents using quoted market prices. The Conipdrgrvel 1 securities consist of $262.5 million a&ith3.3 millionin money market func
included in cash and cash equivalents at Decenthet(@ 4 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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4.Composition of Certain Balance Sheet Iten
Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consisted of the faligwin thousands):

Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Purchased computer software

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

December 31

Depreciation expense was $0.7 million , $0.7 millamd $0.5 million for the years ended Decembef814, 2013 and 2012,

respectively.

Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities consisted of the follogifin thousands):

Payroll and related expenses
Professional services
Deferred rent
Accrued offering costs
Other

Other current liabilities

5.Net Loss Per Ordinary Share

2014 2013
$ 5481 $ 5,64¢
2,214 1,92
137 85
7,83: 7,661
(4,717 (4,289
$ 3,121  $ 3,37-
December 31
2014 2013
$ 3,13¢  $ 2,80(
1,16¢ 61€
172 13¢€
— 82
49¢ 254
$ 497t $ 3,89(

Basic net loss per ordinary share is calculatedibigling net loss by the weighteadterage number of ordinary shares outstanding g
the period. Shares used in diluted net loss panarg share would include the dilutive effect oflimary shares potentially issuable upon
exercise of stock options outstanding. Howeverepiidlly issuable ordinary shares are not usedmputing diluted net loss per ordinary st
as their effect would be anditutive due to the loss recorded during the pesipdesented and therefore diluted net loss penargishare

equal to basic net loss per ordinary share.

Prior to the Separation and Distribution, the Comypaperated as part of Elan and not as a sepantitg. &s a result, the Company 1
not have any ordinary shares outstanding prioréodinber 21, 2012. The calculation of basic andatilunet loss per ordinary share asst
that the 14,496,926rdinary shares issued to Elan shareholders inemiom with the separation from Elan were outstagdor the year end
December 31, 2012 and that the 3,182,253 ordirtaakes issued to Elan upon separation have beetanditsg since December 20, 2012.

Net loss per ordinary share was determined aswsli@n thousands, except per share amounts):
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Numerator:
Net loss $ (7,150 $ (40,99¢ $ (41,417
Denominator:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding 24,67 18,61* 14,59:
Net income (loss) per share attributable to holdersf ordinary shares:
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 0.29) $ (220 $ (2.89

The equivalent ordinary shares not included in tddu net loss per share because their effect wowdd abtidilutive are
as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Stock options to purchase ordinary shares 2,61Z 1,97¢ 1,00t

6.Commitments and Contingencie
Operating Lease

The Company has a noncancelable operating leaseragnt for office and research and developmentesipathe U.S. that expires
November 202(with an estimated annual rent payment of approxeéiye2.0 million . The lease provides for approxieia 50,4000f rentabls
square feet at a base rent that increases annlralBecember 2014the Company entered into a noncancelable opgratiblease agreem
with a third party to sublease a portion of thigsked facility. This sublease agreement has a tleaeterm which commences Jdanuary 201
(with options to extend for another year). The Campexpects to receive future minimum payments fisnsublease of $0.5 million$0.£
million and $0.3 million in 2015, 2016 and 201 7spectively, which is an offset to the lease paysméetow.

Future minimum payments under noncancelable operdtéiases and future minimum rentals to be recewmtkr the sublease as
December 31, 2014 , are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, Operating Lease Sublease Rente
2015 $ 1,821 $ (45t
2016 1,93¢ (52:
2017 2,015 (31¢
2018 2,09¢ —
2019 2,18( —
Thereafter 2,057 —

Total $ 12,10¢ $ (1,29

The Company recognizes rent expense on a strimghbasis over the noncancelable lease term asaids the difference between c
rent payments and the recognition of rent expesse deferred rent liability. Where leases contaicakation clauses, rent abatements, a
concessions, such as rent holidays and landlotdnant incentives or allowances, the Company appiem in the determination of straight
line rent expense over the lease term. The Comparords the tenant improvement allowance as defemet and associated expenditure
leasehold improvements that are being amortized thneshorter of their estimated useful life or them of the lease. The Company rec
payments received from its sublease as offset sg#ie current period rent expense. Rent expensebda8 million , $1.3 million an®1.:
million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20182012, respectively .

Indemnity Obligations

The Company has entered into indemnification agesgswith its current, and former, directors anficefs and certain key employe
These agreements contain provisions that may retiuer Company, among other things, to indemniffhquersons
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against certain liabilities that may arise becanfstheir status or service and advance their exggeimscurred as a result of any indemnifii
proceedings brought against them. The obligatidikeoCompany pursuant to the indemnification agreets continue during such time as
indemnified person serves the Company and contithergafter until such time as a claim can be bnaubhe maximum potential amount
future payments the Company could be required tkemmder these indemnification agreements is utdunihowever, the Company he
director and officer liability insurance policy thlamits its exposure and enables the Company ¢ovwer a portion of any future amounts p
As a result of its insurance policy coverage, ttmm@any believes the estimated fair value of theslemnification agreements is minin
Accordingly, the Company had no liabilities recatder these agreements as of December 31, 2012Gi=1.

Commitments

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had non-tanleepurchase commitments to suppliers for $3I#aniof which $3.1 millionis
included in accrued current liabilities, and coatual obligations under license agreements of $dilbon of which less than $0.2 milliois
included in accrued current liabilities. The follonyy is a summary of the Company's mnmancelable purchase commitments and contre
obligations as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  Thereafter
Purchase Obligations $ 3197% 3197 % —$ — % — 3 —$ —
Contractual obligations under license

agreements” 1,45( 26( 11C 11C 11C 11C 75C

Total $ 4641% 3451 % 11C $ 11C $ 11C $ 11C $ 75C

@ Excludes future obligations pursuant to the cosfrisly arrangement under the Company's License Aggaewith Roche. Amounts of
such obligations, if any, cannot be determinedhiattime.

7.Roche License Agreemel
Overview

In December 2013 the Company entered into the License Agreemetit Roche to develop and commercialize certain adtés the
target alpha-synuclein, including PRX002, which aegerred to collectively as “Licensed Products.i Qanuary 22, 2014 the Licens
Agreement with Roche became effective following d¢ixpiration of the Hart-ScofRodino waiting period. Upon the effectiveness &f tlicens
Agreement, the Company granted to Roche an exeusioridwide license to develop, make, have made, gell, offer to sell, import a
export the Licensed Products. The Company retagezthin rights to conduct development of the Liesh®roducts and an option to co
promote PRX002 in the U.S. During the term of tlieehse Agreement, the Company and Roche will wodtusively with each other
research and develop antibody products targetipgaasynuclein potentially including incorporatioh Roches proprietary Brain Shuttle
technology to potentially increase delivery of #yggutic antibodies to the brain. The License Agegnprovides that Roche would make
upfront payment to the Company of $30.0 millionhieh was received in February 2014 , and the dinigilestone payment &15.0 millior
triggered by the initiation of the Phase 1 studyH&X002 in the clinic, which was received in Ma&312.

For PRX002, Roche is also obligated to pay:
* up to $380.0 million upon the achievement of depment, regulatory and various first commercidsanilestones;
* up to an additional $175.0 million in ex-U.S. aoercial sales milestones; and

« tiered, high single-digit to high double-digityadties in the teens on ex-U.S. annual net saldgest to certain adjustments.

Roche bears 100% of the cost of conducting thearebeactivities under the License Agreement. InWh8., the parties will share
development and commercialization costs, as wedrafts, all of which will be allocated 70% to Rezand 30%o0 the Company, for PRXO!
in the Parkinsors disease indication, as well as any other Licefseducts and/or indications for which the Compapts in to participate
co-development and co-funding. After the completidrspecific clinical trial activities, the Compamyay opt out of the cdevelopment ar
cost and profit sharing on any co-developed LicdnBeoducts and instead receive U.S. commerciak saltestones totaling up #$155.(
million and tiered, single-digit to high doubdkgit royalties in the teens based on U.S. annealsales, subject to certain adjustments,
respect to the applicable Licensed Product.

The Company filed an Investigational New Drug Apation ("IND") with the FDA for PRX002 and subseqtlg initiated a Phase
study in 2014. Following the Phase 1 study, Rocliebe primarily responsible for developing, obtsig and maintaining
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regulatory approval for, and commercializing LicetisProducts. Roche will also become responsiblettier clinical and commerc
manufacture and supply of Licensed Products withitefined time period following the effective dafehe License Agreement.

In addition, the Company has an option under treehse Agreement to co-promote PRX002 in the U.ShénParkinsors diseas
indication. If the Company exercises such optidnmay also elect to cpromote additional Licensed Products in the U.Sreyed fo
Parkinson$ disease. Outside the U.S., Roche will have resbitity for developing and commercializing the kitsed Products. Roche bear
costs that are specifically related to obtainingraintaining regulatory approval outside the Uil will pay the Company a variable roy:
based on annual net sales of the Licensed Produtdigle the U.S.

While Roche will record product revenue from sadéshe Licensed Products, the Company and RocHeshaélre in the net profits a
losses of sales of the PRX002 for the Parkinsade&ade indication in the U.S. on a 70% / 30% bagls the Company receiving 30% the
profit and losses provided that the Company hagretcised its opt-out right.

The License Agreement continues on a countrgduyatry basis until the expiration of all paymerdligations under the Licen
Agreement. The License Agreement may also be tatadh(i) by Roche at will after the first annivessaf the effective date of the Licer
Agreement, either in its entirety or on a LicenBedduct-by-Licensed Product basis, upon 90 dpsist written notice to the Company priol
first commercial sale and 180 dayprior written notice to Prothena after first comwial sale, (i) by either party, either in its ematy or on .
Licensed Product-by-Licensed Product or regiondxyien basis, upon written notice in connection vaittnaterial breach uncured 90 dafte!
initial written notice, and (iii) by either partin its entirety, upon insolvency of the other paifye License Agreement may be terminate
either party on a patent-by-patent and country-tayntry basis if the other party challenges a gipatent in a given country. The Company’
rights to codevelop Licensed Products under the License Agraemi terminate if the Company commences certdirdies for certain typ
of competitive products. The Company’s rights tepcomote Licensed Products under the License Agraem# terminate if the Compal
commences a Phase 3 study for such competitivaipred

The License Agreement cannot be assigned by qituty without the prior written consent of the atlparty, except to an affiliate
such party or in the event of a merger or acqoisitif such party, subject to certain conditionse Ticense Agreement also includes custol
provisions regarding, among other things, confiddity, intellectual property ownership, patent gegution, enforcement and defe
representations and warranties, indemnificatiosiiiance, and arbitration and dispute resolution.

Collaboration Accounting

The License Agreement was evaluated under ASC"&38laborative Agreements”. At the outset of thatcact, the Company concluc
that this agreement does not qualify as a collalmrainderASC 808because Prothena is not an active participantrasudt of the optul
provision. The Company believes that Roche is ttiecipal in the sales transactions with third pestas it is the primary obligor, beat
inventory and credit risk. The Company will recatsl share of préax commercial profit generated from the collabioratwith Roche, €
collaboration revenue when the profit share carebgonably estimated and collectability is reaslynaksured. Prior to commercialization
Licensed Product, the Company's portion of the egee related to the License Agreement reflecteisdancome statement will be limited
R&D expenses. After commercialization, if the Compapts-in to cadetail commercialization expenses related to comialecapabilities
including the establishment of a field sales foaoel other activities to support the Compangbmmercialization efforts, will be recordec
SG&A expense and will be factored into the comparteof the profit and loss share. The Company weitlord the portion of the net receive
related to commercialization activities as collatmm revenue.

Multiple Element Accounting

The License Agreement was evaluated under ASC2605'Multiple Element Arrangements". The Licenserégment includes tl
following deliverables: (1) an exclusive royaltydimg license, with the right to sublicense to depeand commercialize certain antibodies
target alphasynuclein, including PRX002 delivered at the effecdate; (2) the Company's obligation to suppigichl material as requested
Roche for a period up to twelve months; (3) the @any's obligation to provide manufacturing relasedvices to Roche for a period uj
twelve months; (4) the Company's obligation to ewdevelopment activities under the developmea phcluding the preparation and fil
of the IND and initiation of the Phase | clinicalat estimated to be carried out over the next jwars; and (5) the Company's obligatio
provide indeterminate research services for upreetyears at rates that are not significantlyadisted and fully reimbursable by Roche.

All of the deliverables were deemed to have stalodte value and to meet the criteria to be accaouftieas separate units of accoun
under ASC 605-25. Factors considered in the detetioin included, among other things, for the lieerike
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research and development capabilities of RocheRurhes sublicense rights, and for the remaining delivies the fact that they are
proprietary and can be and have been providedhsr eendors.

The amount of allocable arrangement considerat®riniited to amounts that are fixed or determinableluding refund right
concessions or performance bonuses. As such, timep&uw will exclude from such allocable considematibe milestone payments ¢
royalties regardless of the probability of recdiptause such payments are not considered fixedtermdinable. Such milestone payments
royalties will be evaluated separately as the edlatontingencies are resolved. Consideration feearch services were not allocated a:
amount is not fixed and determinable and is nat aignificant incremental discount. There are rfané rights, concessions or performs
bonuses to consider.

The Company allocated the fixed and determinablesiceration to the license and other deliverabliaguthe relative selling pri
method based on the best estimate of selling foicthe license and third party evidence for thema@ing deliverables. The besstimate ¢
selling price for the license was based on a diswmmlicash flow model. The key assumptions usetlérdiscounted cash flow model use
determine the best estimate of selling price ferltbense granted to Roche under the License Agraeimcluded the market opportunity
commercialization of PRX002 in the U.S. and the &tyyTerritory (for jointly funded products the Ralyy Territory is worldwide except f
the U.S. for all Licensed Products that are nattjgifunded the Royalty Territory is worldwide) etlprobability of successfully developing i
commercializing PRX002, the remaining developmests for PRX002, and the estimated time to comrakzeiion of PRX002.

The Company’s discounted cash flow model includexkral market conditions and entgpecific inputs, including the likelihood tl
clinical trials will be successful, the likelihoatiat regulatory approval will be obtained and thedpct commercialized, the appropr
discount rate, the market locations, size and pielemarket share of the product, the expected difehe product, and the competit
environment for the product. The market assumptivage generated using a patidatsed forecasting approach, with key epidemioldy
market penetration, dosing, compliance, lengthreftment, and pricing assumptions derived from anjmand secondary market resee
referenced from third-party sources.

The Company concluded that a change in the assonsptised to determine the BESP of the license etalble would not have
significant effect on the allocation of arrangemeansideration. Based on the relative selling prisethod, the amount that the Comg
recognized on the effective date of the agreementwrrent with the delivery of the license and krAmow was limited to the lesser of
amount otherwise allocable using the relative sglprice method, which based on the discounted ftashmodel was determined to I$85.¢
million , or the non-contingent amount which wae $80.0 millionupfront fee. As the remaining deliverables arewdeéd, any considerati
received will be allocated to license revenue dreddther deliverables based on their relative pgacges until such time as the full alloce
consideration of $35.6 milliohas been recognized as license revenue, and taeckabf the monetary consideration will be recordedl
offset against R&D expenses. The Company recogrifee#30.0 milliorupfront payment as collaboration license revenuéérfirst quarter
2014.

The Company recognizes the research reimbursensenbléaboration revenue as earned. The Companygnized $1.7 millionas
collaboration service revenue during the year eridedember 31, 201fbr research reimbursement from Roche. Cost shagragnents t
Roche are recorded as R&D expenses. The Compangmeed $1.4 millionn R&D expense for payments made to Roche duriegyéna
ended December 31, 2014 . Reimbursement for dew@opcosts from Roche under the csis&ring arrangement are allocated between li
revenue and an offset to R&D expenses based orltdieve selling price method until the full allded consideration of $35.6 millidmas bee
recognized as license revenue, after which the rithbursement would be recorded as an offset t® R&penses. Reimbursement
development costs from Roche during the year erldedember 31, 2014 was $6.0 million of which $5.3liani was recognized
collaboration license revenue and $0.7 million weognized as an offset to R&D expenses.

Milestone Accounting

In April 2014, the Company together with Rocheiaigd a Phase 1 clinical trial of PRX002. As a lesfithis initiation, the Compat
received a $15.0 million milestone payment from Roander the License Agreement. The Company coedltitat the $15.0 millioolinical
milestone triggered upon the initiation of the Rhastudy from PRX002 in the clinic is consistefittwthe definition of a substantive milest
included in ASU No. 20107, "Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition". Bastconsidered in this determination included ddieranc
regulatory risk that must be overcome to achiewah emnilestone, the level of effort and investmemuieed to achieve the milestone, and
monetary value attributed to the milestone.

Accordingly, the Company recognized payments rdldatethe achievement of this milestone when theeshine was achieved. 1
milestone payment was allocated to the units obaeting based on the relative selling price metfmdincome statement classificat
purposes. In the year ended December 31, 2014 dhgany recognized $13.3 million of the $15.0 millmilestone payment as collaboral
revenue and $1.7 million as an offset to R&D expsns
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The clinical and regulatory milestones under theehse Agreement after the point at which the Comganld opteut are not consider
to be substantive due to the fact that active gipgtion in the development activities that gereethe milestones is not required by the Lici
Agreement, and the Company can opt-out of thedeitees. There are no refund or clavack provisions and the milestones are uncert¢
occurrence even after the Company has opted osedan this determination, these milestones wilidmdgnized similar to the commer:
milestone, which will be accounted for as contirtg@venue payments with revenue recognized uporeaament of the milestone assurr
all revenue recognition criteria are met. The Comypdid not achieve any of these other clinical aaglulatory milestones under the Lice
Agreement during the year ended December 31, 2014 .

8.Shareholders' Equity

Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had 100,0000@dinary shares authorized for issuance witlravplue of $0.0Der ordinar
share and 27,388,005 ordinary shares issued asthnding. Each ordinary share is entitled to woke and, on a pro rata basis, to divide
when declared and the remaining assets of the Qoyripahe event of a winding up.

Euro Deferred Shares

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had 10,000 Beferred Shares authorized for issuance witbraimal value of €22per shar¢
No Euro Deferred Shares are outstanding at Decembhe2@®¥ . The rights and restrictions attachinght Euro Deferred Shares rapéri
passuwith the ordinary shares and are treated as aestoigss in all respects.

February 2014 Offering

In February 2014 , Elan Science One Limited ("ESQ&h indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Perrigold 3,182,25%rdinary shares
Prothena at a price to the public of $26@@0 ordinary share, before the underwriting dis¢oAs a result, ESOL and Perrigo no longer
any ordinary shares of Prothena.

The Company did not receive any of the proceedw fitee offering, and the total number of the Compmoydinary shares outstand
did not change as a result of this offering. ThenPany paid the costs associated with the sale edettordinary shares (other than
underwriting discount, fees and disbursements afnsel for the selling shareholder) pursuant to asSuption and Registration Rig
Agreement dated November 8, 2012 by and betwee@dhgpany, Elan and ESOL.

June 2014 Offering

In June 2014 , the Company completed an underwrfitéblic offering of an aggregate of 4,750,08f0its ordinary shares at a put
offering price of $22.50 per ordinary share. Therpany received aggregate net proceeds of approalynht02.5 million, after deducting tt
underwriting discount and estimated offering costs.

In connection with this offering, the Company gexhthe underwriters the right to subscribe for pacchase, as applicable, up tc
additional 712,500 ordinary shares. In July 201He, underwriters exercised such right to subsdidbeand purchase an aggregate7®,50(
ordinary shares, pursuant to which the Companyivedenet proceeds of approximately $14.9 millioafter deducting the underwriti
discount of approximately $1.1 million .

For the year ended December 31, 2014 underwritingodnt and offering expense of $5.5 milliarere classified as an offset to
proceeds and recorded in additional paid in capitahe balance sheet.

October 2013 Offering

In October 2013, the Company completed an unddemrpublic offering of an aggregate of 6,796,800ts ordinary shares at a put
offering price of $22.00 per share, which consistéd!,177,079 newly issued ordinary shares soldheyCompany and 2,619,42tdinary
shares sold by Janssen Pharmaceutical, a whalhed subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, as thengetlhareholder. The Company rece
aggregate net proceeds of approximately $84.5anilliafter deducting the underwriting discount andnested offering costs. The Comp:
did not receive any proceeds from the sale of 2&2%rdinary shares sold, which represented JanssemBbautical's entire shareholding
Prothena.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 undengritiiscounts and offering costs of $7.4 milliaere recorded as an offset to
proceeds and recorded in additional paid in capital
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9.ShareBased Compensatio

The Prothena Corporation plc Amended and Restat®d 2 Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

Employees and consultants of the Company, its digvgds and affiliates, as well as members of tbarB, are eligible to receive eqt
awards under the LTIP. The LTIP provides for thengof stock options, including incentive stockiops and nonqualified stock options, st
appreciation rights (“SARS”), restricted sharestnieted share units ("RSUs"), cash or stock-bgsstbrmance awards and other shiase:
awards to eligible individuals. Options under thER. may be granted for periods up to ten yearsoptlons issued to date have had aytea
life. In March 2014, the Board amended the LTIP, which was subsequegbroved by the shareholders on May 21, 2014ndutine
Company's Annual General Meeting of Shareholdelng. Company's shareholders approved the increabe iaggregate number of ordin
shares authorized for issuance under the LTIP ®9@000 ordinary shares, to a total of 5,550,0@ary shares.

The Company granted 720,500 and 1,978,000 shai@ensmluring the year ended December 31, 2014 ahd 2@spectively, under t
LTIP. The Company's option awards generally vestrdour years. As of December 31, 2014 , 2,868ddthary shares remain available
grant and options to purchase 2,612,080 ordinaayeshgranted from the LTIP were outstanding witlvedghtedaverage exercise price
approximately $13.13 per share.

Prothena Share-based Compensation Expense

The Company estimates the fair value of share-besegbensation on the date of grant using an ogiiaring model. The Company u:
the Black-Scholes model to value shhesed compensation, excluding RSUs, which the Coypalues using the fair market value of
ordinary shares on the date of grant. The Blacke®shoption-pricing model determines the fair vadfisharebased payment awards base
the share price on the date of grant and is affebte assumptions regarding a number of highly cemgnd subjective variables. Th
variables include, but are not limited to, the Camygs share price, volatility over the expected lifetioé awards and actual and proje
employee stock option exercise behaviors. SinceGbmpany does not have sufficient historical emeéoghare option exercise data,
simplified method has been used to estimate theaeg life of all options. The expected volatiktyas based on historical stock volatilitie:
several of the Company's publicly traded comparabiapanies over a period equal to the expectealifbe options, as the Company does
have a long enough trading history to use the Wityabf its own ordinary shares. Although the faialue of share options granted by
Company is estimated by the BlaBkholes model, the estimated fair value may nahbieative of the fair value observed in a willibgye!
and seller market transaction.

As sharebased compensation expense recognized in the Gaetsal Financial Statements is based on awardsaittly expected to ve
it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. dtonfes are estimated at the time of grant andseeliif necessary, in subsequent perio
actual forfeitures differ from estimates. Forfeg@siwere estimated based on estimated future turaoxkehistorical experience.

Share-based compensation expense will continuate hn adverse impact on the Compamgsults of operations, although it will h
no impact on its overall financial position. The @amt of unearned shabe&sed compensation currently estimated to be erpefnrem nov
through the year 2017 related to unvested sharedbpayment awards at December 31, 2014 is $16lmil The weightedrverage peric
over which the unearned share-based compensatexpected to be recognized is 2.6 yedfghere are any modifications or cancellatioff
the underlying unvested securities, the Company b®yequired to accelerate, increase or decreagaesmaining unearned shabase:
compensation expense. Future share-based commpensapense and unearned shassed compensation will increase to the extentttie
Company grants additional equity awards.

Share-based compensation expense recorded in@oeselidated Financial Statements for the yeargémkcember 31, 2014 ag61:
was based on awards granted under the LTIP whilshiardsased compensation expense for the year ended bec&h, 2012 was allocal
to the Company based on awards from Elan equitysptganted to Elan employees who have, directlyndirectly, provided services to t
Company. The following table summarizes share-basatpensation expense for the periods presentéddusands):
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Research and developmént $ 2,27C $ 98C $ 6,09:
General and administrative 3,32 2,14¢ 5
Total direct expense $ 5597 $ 3,12¢ $ 6,09¢
General and administrative — allocated — — 1,44t

$ 5597 $ 3,12¢ $ 7,54:

@ Includes$108,000 and $320,000 for the year ended Decenthe2@®L4 and 2013 , respectively, of shhesed compensation expe
related to options granted to a consultant.

The following table summarizes share-based compiensaxpense by type of award (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock options $ 5597 $ 3,12¢ $ 2,621
Restricted stock units — — 3,47

Total direct $ 5597 $ 3,12¢ $ 6,09¢
Share-based compensation expense-allocated — — 1,44t
$ 5597 $ 3,12¢ 7,54:

For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 ati@l 2he Company recognized tax benefits from shased awards of $1.0 millign
$0.4 and nil , respectively.

The fair value of the options granted to employaed non-employee directors during the years endszkibber 31, 2014 and 2013

estimated as of the grant date using the BlackI8shaption-pricing model assuming the weightegrage assumptions listed in the follov
table:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Expected volatility 84.4% 84.0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.8% 1.2%
Expected dividend yield —% —%
Expected life (in years) 6.0 6.0
Weighted average grant date fair value $19.97 $5.22

The fair value of employee stock options is beimpgized on a straighine basis over the requisite service period faheaward. Eac
of the inputs discussed above is subjective andrgdip requires significant management judgmenetermine.

The following table summarizes the Company’s slogtéon activity during the year ended December28iL4 :
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Weighted

Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Options Price Term (years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,973,500 $ 7.5C 9.17 $ 37,52¢
Granted 720,50( 28.0:
Exercised (69,249 7.2%
Canceled (12,676 15.9
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 2,612,080 $ 13.1% 8.45 $ 25,29¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 2,535,371 % 13.0¢ 8.44 $ 24,78¢
Vested at December 31, 2014 1,000,300 $ 7.3t 8.15 $ 13,44¢

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2813total intrinsic value of options exercised Wasb million and nil respectively
determined as of the date of exercise.

The following table summarizes information abouwt @ompany's share options outstanding as of Deaedih@014 :

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted -
Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted

Contractual Life Average Exercise Average Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Number of Options (Years) Price Number of Options Price

$ 6.0¢ $ 6.0: 450,93 8.06 $ 6.0: 216,56: $ 6.0:
6.41 6.41 807,38: 8.08 6.41 465,27 6.41
6.65 6.6% 50,00( 8.21 6.65 50,00( 6.65
6.7 6.7: 366,00( 8.25 6.7 170,47¢ 6.7
8.21 22.1¢ 336,06: 8.89 17.51 89,24¢ 15.3¢
22.1¢ 23.11 37,50( 9.74 22.8¢ — —
24.2¢ 24.2¢ 30,00( 8.84 24.2¢ 8,75( 24.2¢
29.57 29.5; 25,00( 9.09 29.5; — —
29.81 29.81 479,20( 9.09 29.81 — =
37.02 37.0z 30,00( 9.25 37.0z — —
$ 6.0c$  37.0 2,612,08 8.45 $ 13.1¢ 1,000,303 7.3t

Elan’s Share-based Compensation Awards

Prior to the Separation and Distribution of thetRema Business on December 20, 2012, the Companysoyees had received share
based compensation awards under Elan’'s equity caosapien plans and, therefore, the following disgtes pertain to shafgase:
compensation expense that was allocated to thdéhatBusiness related to Elan’s share-based egwiyds. Elars equity award progra
provided for the issuance of stock options, RSUka@her equity awards to its employees, includimpleyees that have directly and indire
provided service to the Prothena Business. Theedfamed payment compensation expense recorded Damsolidated Financial Stateme
for the year ended December 31, 2012 includesfahe sharébased payment expenses directly attributable tdPtio¢hena Business and
allocation of indirect expenses that have been dedeattributable to the Prothena Business. The Coyngdal not recognize any expense ¢
December 20, 2012 in relation to the existing Egnity-based awards as the Compargmployees are not required to provide servia it
Separation and Distribution in order to receive Hemefits of the awards. The shé@sed compensation expense relating to the ch
described below is a naecurring charge that is directly attributable tarkas part of the Separation and Distributiorhef Prothena Busine
and therefore was not recorded in the Company’s@latated Financial Statements after December @D2 2

Share-based Compensation Expense

Sharebased compensation expense was measured and msmbdrased on estimated grant date fair values.eThegrds incluc
employee stock options and RSUs, and share pushelsted to the Employee Equity Purchase PlanREE Shardsased compensation ¢
for stock options and ordinary shares issued ubtiar's EEPP was estimated at the grant date based
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on each option’s fair value as calculated usingation-pricing model. Shareased compensation expense for RSUs was measiged ta th
closing fair market value of Elasiordinary shares on the date of grant. The valasvards expected to vest was recognized as amsape/e
the requisite service periods prior to the sepamadind distribution. Estimating the fair value bheebased awards as of the grant or vest
using an option-pricing model, such as the binomiallel, was affected by Elanshare price as well as assumptions regardingrdo@uo
complex variables. These variables included, buewmt limited to, the expected share price vatatdver the term of the awards, rifilee
interest rates, and actual and projected employeise behaviors.

Restricted Share Units

Elan granted RSUs to its employees, including eygde that have directly and indirectly providedsser to the Prothena Business.
RSUs generally vest between one and tlyesrs from the grant date and shares are issuB&tb holders as soon as practicable follo\
vesting. The fair value of services received by Rnethena Business in return for the RSUs is meashy reference to the fair value of
underlying shares at grant date. The total fain@a@xpensed over the vesting terms of RSUs thainhbedully vested was $0.5 million in 2012.

Share Options

Share options are granted at the price equal tontdn&et value at the date of grant and will expinea date not later than {@ars afte
their grant. Options generally vest between onefandyears from the grant date.

Equity-settled share-based payments expense resubim the “Carve-outCombined Financial Statements are based on thedhie o
the awards measured at the date of grant. The dpasiting attribution method is used for recogrizéimarebased compensation expense
the requisite service period for each separatedjing tranche of award as though the awards wemybstance, multiple awards.

The fair value of share options is calculated usignomial optiorpricing model, taking into account the relevantriterand condition
The binomial option-pricing model is used to estienthe fair value of the Comparsyshare options because it better reflects thelplitysof
exercise before the end of the options’ life. Theokial option-pricing model also integrates poksimriations in model inputs, such as risk
free interest rates and other inputs, which maygbaver the life of the options. The amount recogghas an expense is adjusted each
to reflect actual and estimated future levels ativeg.

The implied volatility for traded options on Elarghares with remaining maturities of at leasty®ar was used to determine the expe
volatility assumption required in the binomial mbdehe riskfree interest rate assumption is based upon oldénterest rates appropriate
the term of the stock option awards. The divideigddyassumption is based on the history and expentaf dividend payouts.

As share-based compensation expense recognizdik iftCarve-out”Combined Financial Statements is based on awatdsatbly
expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimfatdeitures. Forfeitures are estimated at the tiofiggrant and revised, if necessary
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffemfrestimates. Forfeitures were estimated based siorizal experience and estimated fu
turnover.

The fair value of options granted during the yeattesl December 31, 2012 was estimated using thenidh@ptionpricing model witl
the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
December 31,
2012

Expected volatility 60.1%
Risk-free interest rate 0.9%
Expected dividend yield —%
Expected lifé? 4.9-6.8
Weighted average fair value $ 6.6€

@ The expected life of options granted, as derivethfthe output of the binomial model, ranged frotntd.6.8 years in 2012. The
contractual life of the options, which is not méinan 10 years from the date of grant, was usednasut into the binomial model.
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10. Income Taxes

Subsequent to the Separation and Distribution fdam, the Company began to file its own U.S. aighlincome tax returns and inco
taxes are presented in the Consolidated Finant#éi@ents using the asset and liability methodgpitesd by the accounting guidance
income taxes. Prior to the separation from Elanpime taxes as presented in the Consolidated FelaBtatements represented current
deferred income taxes of Elan attributed to the gamy in a manner that is systematic, rational amukistent with the asset and liabi
method prescribed by the accounting guidance foorite taxes. The Company's income tax provisionr poidhe separation from Elan v
prepared under the “separate return methdde# separate return method applies the accountiidpgce for income taxes to the standa
financial statements as if Prothena were a sepaogp@yer and a standalone enterprise.

Loss before provision for income taxes by countnyefach of the fiscal periods presented is summdr@s follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Ireland $ (9,719 $ (42,529 $ (35,899
U.s. 3,37¢ 1,94 (5,507)
Loss before provision for income taxes $ (6,339) ¢ (40,58) $ (41,409

Components of the provision for income taxes faheaf the fiscal periods presented consisted ofdhewing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current:

U.S. Federal $ 1855 $ 95¢ $ 26
U.S. State 1 5) —
Ireland — — —
Total current provision $ 1,85€¢ $ 95: % 26

Deferred:
U.S. Federal $ (1,045 $ (53¢) $ (20
U.S. State — — —
Ireland — — —
Total deferred benefit (1,04%) (53¢ $ (20)
Total provision for income taxes $ 811 § 418§ 6

Excess tax benefits associated with shmeed compensation deductions are credited tolsblders' equity. The reductions in incc
taxes payable resulting from share-based compensd#éiductions that were credited to stockholdejtstg were approximately $0.2 million
nil and nil , for the years ended December 31, 20013 and 2012 , respectively.

The provision for income taxes differs from thetstary tax rate of 12.5%pplicable to Ireland primarily due to Irish neteogting losse
for which a tax provision benefit is not recognized! due to U.S. income taxed at different ratelowing is a reconciliation between inco
taxes computed at the Irish statutory tax ratethagrovision for income taxes for each of thedigmeriods presented (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Taxes at the Irish statutory tax rate of 12.5% $ (792 $ (5,077 $ (5,17¢)
Income tax at rates other than applicable statutaey 70E (3,169) 4
Change in valuation allowance 2,44¢ 10,36" 5,17¢
Share-based payments 74 164 —
Tax credits (1,649 (1,927 —
Other 23 49 2

Provision for income taxes $ 811 § 418§ 6

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effedeofporary differences between the carrying amotiassets and liabilities for financ
reporting purposes and the amounts used for indaxeurposes. Significant components of the Comizangt deferred tax assets a
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in dods):

December 31

2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 16,32: $ 15,45"
Tax credits 1,13¢ 1,31C
Accruals 1,01¢ 1,14¢
Share-based compensation 2,22¢ 77¢
Gross deferred tax assets 20,70z 18,69¢
Valuation allowance (18,81%) (17,799
Net deferred tax assets 1,88 897
Deferred tax liability — —
Net deferred tax assets $ 188i $ 897

The Company's deferred tax assets are composedrpyiraf its Irish subsidiaries’ net operating lassryovers, state net operating
carryforwards available to reduce future taxablome of the Company's U.S. subsidiary, state tesliccarryforwards and other tempor
differences. The Company maintains a valuationwalltce against certain U.S. federal and state asld dieferred tax assets. Each repo
period, the Company evaluates the need for a vatuatlowance on its deferred tax assets by jurtsat.

Recognition of deferred tax assets is appropridtenasrealization of such assets is more likely thah Based upon the weight
available evidence, especially the uncertaintigsosnding the realization of deferred tax assetsufh future taxable income, the Comp
believes it is not yet more likely than not that tteferred tax assets will be fully realizable. éwtingly, the Company has provided a value
allowance of $18.8 million against its deferred #ssets as of December 31, 2@i4elation to deferred tax assets arising fromdeedits an
net operating losses. The net increase of $1.0omiih the valuation allowance during the year ehBecember 31, 2014as primarily due 1
share-based compensation.

As of December 31, 2014 , certain of the Compalmigh subsidiaries had trading loss carryovers @8 million and norrading los
carryovers of $5.7 million each of which can be carried forward indefinitblyt are limited to the same trade/trades. In aiditas o
December 31, 2014 , the Company had state nettopgtass carryforwards of approximately $34.1 rmoillavailable to reduce future taxa
income for the Company's U.S. subsidiary, if afyot utilized, the state net operating loss camyfrd begins expiring in 2032 .

The Company also has California research and der®lat credit carryforwards of $1.1 million at Ded®mn31, 2014 The Californi
tax credits can be carried forward indefinitely.

Cumulative unremitted earnings of the Company’s. dubsidiary total approximately $4.1 million atd@enber 31, 201Fhe Company
U.S. subsidiary's cash balance at December 31, i80danmitted for its working capital needs. No wkave been provided for the unremi
earnings as any tax basis differences relatingwestments in this overseas subsidiary are coresiderbe permanent in duration. Unremi
earnings may be subject to U.S. withholding taxastgntially at 5% ) and lIrish taxes (potentiallyaarate of 12.5%) if they were to b
distributed as dividends. However, Ireland allowsedit against
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Irish taxes for U.S. tax withheld and as of Decenie 2014the Company's net operating losses in Ireland #feeignt to offset any potenti
dividend income received from its U.S. subsidiary.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amsurftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows (iougands):

2014 2013
Gross Unrecognized Tax Benefits at January 1 $ 48C $ =
Additions for tax positions taken in the currenaye 258 48(
Reductions for tax positions taken in the priorryea (350 —
Gross Unrecognized Tax Benefits at December 31 $ 38: $ 48(

If recognized, none of our unrecognized tax besefit of December 31, 20«buld reduce our annual effective tax rate but waekul
in a corresponding adjustment to our deferred tuation allowance. As of December 31, 2Q01de have not recorded a liability for poter
interest or penalties. We also do not expect oueaognized tax benefits to change significantlyrdiie next 12 months.

The tax years 2012 to 2014 remain subject to exatiim by the U.S taxing authorities and the taxye@®10 to 2014 remain subjec
examination by the Irish taxing authorities.

11. Employee Retirement Plan
Prothena 401K Retirement Plan

In December 2012 (effective January 1, 2013), tben@any established a qualified retirement plan uséetion 401(k) of the Interr
Revenue Code (“IRC”) under which participants maptdbute up to 100%f their eligible compensation, subject to maximdeferral limit:
specified by the IRC. In addition, the Company cibntes 3% of each participating employeeligible compensation, subject to lin
specified by the IRC, on a quarterly basis. Furtliee Company may make a discretionary matchingoanprofit sharing contribution
determined solely by the Company. The Company didracord any expense in the year ended Decemhe2®PR as no contributior
matching or profit sharing contributions were maneler the 401(k) plan. The Company recorded togaérse for matching contributions
$0.4 million and $0.3 million for the years endeeddmber 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

Elan Pharmaceuticals 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan

Elan maintained a 401(k) retirement savings planittoemployees based in the U.S., including emgédsythat directly and indirec
provided service to the Prothena Business pridhéoSeparation and Distribution. The Prothena Bassirrecorded total expense for matc
contributions of $0.1 million for the year endedcember 31, 2012.

12. Related Parties

Prior to December 21, 2012, the Prothena Busing®sated as part of Elan and not as a separate-akame entity. Effectiv
December 20, 2012, the Prothena Business sepdratecElan. In connection with the separation, a lyhowned subsidiary of Elan acquit
an 18%interest in the Company (as calculated immedidt@lgpwing the separation). Elan was subsequenttyuaed by Perrigo, in Decemt
2013, and such 3,182,253 ordinary shares werelyelt50L, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of gy, as of December 31, 2013.

February 2014 Offering

In February 2014 , ESOL sold 3,182,253 ordinaryreshaf Prothena at a price to the public of $2660 ordinary share, before
underwriting discount. As a result, ESOL and Perng longer owned any ordinary shares of Prothera auch sale.

The Company did not receive any of the proceedw fitee offering, and the total number of the Compmwoydinary shares outstand
did not change as a result of this offering. Then@any paid the expenses associated with the saleesé ordinary shares (other than
underwriting discount, fees and disbursements afnsel for the selling shareholder) pursuant to asSuption and Registration Rig
Agreement dated November 8, 2012 by and among dhngp@ny, Elan and ESOL.

Agreements with Elan

As described elsewhere in these Consolidated FalaBtatements, the results of operations of theHena business for the time pe
prior to the separation include transactions wiltinEThe related party revenue recognized by thmg2my for the years end@&kcember 3:
2014 and 20138onsisted of fees arising from R&D services prodite Elan. Additionally, the results of operatidos the time period prior
the separation include certain costs allocated e to the Company for centralized support sesiic

The Company entered into certain agreements witn,Eincluding the Transitional Services Agreement dhe R&D Service
Agreement.



Transitional Services Agreement

In December 2012, as amended in March 2013, thep@oynentered into a Transitional Services Agreenf@8A”) with Elan unde
which Elan provided to the Company, and the Comgaoyided to Elan, specified services to help emsur orderly transition following t
Separation and Distribution. The services provibdgdElan under the Transitional Services Agreemecdiuded chemistry, manufacturing :

controls/quality assurance, information technolagyvices, facilities services, company secretaalices, finance services, legal serv
compliance services and human resources services.

The payment terms of the agreement generally pedvitiat the Company would pay Elan for the timensjpy each Elan employ
providing the services, which will be calculatedthg portion of the employee’s time dedicated ®ghovision of the
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services, plus 40% . Similarly, Elan would pay @@mnpany for the time spent by each of the Compmaawiployee providing services to E
which would be an agreed percentage of the empleyeae, based on the cost of providing those sesviplus 40%and including, &
applicable, any fees for any services from ElatherCompany provided by third party providers angiced to the recipient at cost.

TSA expenses recognized during the years endedniee31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively , werk, $0.5 million (of which
$0.1 million was included in R&D expenses and $@dlion was included in G&A expenses) and $nilespectively. The TSA expired
December 31, 2013.

R&D Services Agreement

In December 2012, as amended in March 2013, thep@oynentered into a Research and Development 8erfigreement (“RDSA”
with Elan pursuant to which the Company providedaie R&D services to Elan. Either party was eattto terminate the RDSA at any ti
by notice in writing to the other party if thereshaeen an uncured material breach by the othey pait the other party becomes insolvent
the other party is in breach of any of its confitil@ity obligations under the agreement. This RD&#pired in December 2014 at the end ¢
two -year term.

The services provided for under the RDSA includeppsrt for the ELNDOO5 program (which include tlreypsion of expert advice a
opinion in the areas of nonclinical safety/toxiaptoand pharmacology, regulatory support for nomcdihsections of pertinent docume;
conducting and interpreting externally conductedatinical studies, and support in respect of trentdication and maintenance of nonclin
expert advisors as required). These services wedystantially similar to research services perforrbgdhe Company for Elan prior to
separation and distribution.

The payment terms of the RDSA provided that Elanld/@ay the Company: (i) a fixed charge of $500,080year based on a charge
two of the Company’s employees providing the s&wiat a rate of $250,000 each per annum, (iieif#b00,000ixed charge has been paic
any year, a variable charge of $250,@@0 year for any additional employee that provisievices for such year (calculated pro rata bas
the number of days the employee provides servicesich year), (iii) research costs including diree¢rheads, and (iv) a mark-up Dd%
applied to the fixed charge, variable charge (if)aand research costs such that the total payneflgcts a cosplus standard. Reven
recognized by the Company included fees arisingnfR&D services provided to Elan of $534,000 , $6©6,, and $2.7 million for thgear:
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respeactivel

13. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudted)

The following table presents selected unauditedsalisiated financial data for each of the eight tprarin the twoyear period ende
December 31, 2014In the Company's opinion, this unaudited inforiorathas been prepared on the same basis as thedhirdfbrmation an
includes all adjustments (consisting of only normedurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statgénof the financial information for t
period presented. Net loss per shatesic and diluted, for the four quarters of edshal year may not sum to the total for the fispad
because of the different number of shares outstgndliring each period (in thousands, except peedtata):

Quarter
First Second Third Fourth

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues $ 32,23« $ 1512! $ 1,48¢ $ 2,01
Operating expenses $ 1421t $ 1355 $ 14,61¢ $ 15,11¢
Net income (loss) $ 1785 $ 1,29C $ (13,18) $ (13,110
Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 08z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.4¢) $ (0.4¢)
Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 0.0e $ (0.4¢) $ (0.4¢)
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenues $ 171 $ 167 $ 171 $ 167
Operating expenses $ 9,13¢ $ 11,35¢ $ 9,731 $ 10,86¢
Net loss $ (895) $ (11,30) $ (9,689 $ (11,059
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $ (0.5)) $ (0.69 $ (0.55) $ (0.52)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chesecutive officer ("CEQO") and chief financial affr ("CFQO") evaluated tl
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procesl pursuant to Rule 13% under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnded (th
"Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period cogldrg this Form 1. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO aated that, as
December 31, 2014 , our disclosure controls andquhares are designed and are effective to proeidsonablessurance that information
are required to disclose in reports that we filesgbbmit under the Exchange Act is recorded, preskssummarized, and reported within
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and foramsl that such information is accumulated and comaeated to our management, incluc
our CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timelgislens regarding required disclosure.

Our management recognizes that any controls ancegures, no matter how well designed and operatad provide only reasonal
assurance of achieving their objectives and managemecessarily applies its judgment in evaluatiregcostbenefit relationship of possit
controls and procedures.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control ovrancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraamhtaining adequate internal control over finahoggorting. Internal control ov
financial reporting is a process designed by, odeunthe supervision of, our CEO and CFO, and effedly our Board of Directol
management and other personnel, to provide reaaaburance regarding the reliability of financeporting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ttetuthose policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that acdyratel fairly reflect in reasonable detail the sactions and dispositions of the as
of our company;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactionseeoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, dnat our receipts and expenditures are being mande io accordance wi
authorizations of our management and directors; and

» Provide reasonable assurances regarding preventtiimely detection of unauthorized acquisitione us disposition of our assets 1
could have a material adverse effect on our firg@rstatements.

Our management assessed our internal control ovaandial reporting as of December 31, 2Q1He end of our fiscal year. Managen
based its assessment on criteria established ierfim Controlntegrated Framework (2013)" issued by the Committé Sponsorin
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethanagement's assessment of our internal controlfmancial reporting, managem:
concluded that, as of December 31, 2014 , ournatarontrol over financial reporting was effective.

Internal control over financial reporting has indgretrlimitations. Internal control over financialpigting is a process that involves hut
diligence and compliance and is subject to lapsgsdgment and breakdowns resulting from humarufed. Internal control over financ
reporting also can be circumvented by collusioringproper management override. Because of suchdiioits, there is a risk that mate
misstatements will not be prevented or detected timely basis by internal control over financigporting. However, these inherent limitati
are known features of the financial reporting pesceTherefore, it is possible to design into thecpss safeguards to reduce, thougt
eliminate, this risk.

Attestation Report on Internal Control over FinaamdReporting

This Form 10K does not include an attestation report of ouepehdent registered public accounting firm duehtodeferral allowe
under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Actrf@rging growth companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin
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There were no changes in our internal control dwemncial reporting identified in management’s exalon pursuant to Rules 13&{d
or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during our fouitital quarter ended December 31, 2@t materially affected, or are reasonably like
materially affect, our internal control over fingaareporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 1lI

Certain information required by Part IIl is incorpted herein by reference from our definitive prastgtement relating to our Anni
General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May2R15 (our "Proxy Statement").

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Except for the information about our executive ad#fs and Code of Conduct shown below, the infolmnatippearing in our Pro
Statement under the following headings is incorfgatderein by reference:

» Election of Director
» Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coamudk

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Following is certain information regarding our extiee officers as of March 12, 2015 .

Name Age Position(s) Since
Dale B. Schenk, Ph.D. 57 President and Chief Executive Officer, Director 2012
A. W. Homan 55 Chief Legal Officer 2014
Gene G. Kinney, Ph.D. 46 Chief Scientific Officer and Head of Research arey&opment 2012
Martin Koller, M.D. 64 Chief Medical Officer 2013
Tran B. Nguyen 41 Chief Financial Officer 2013
Tara Nickerson, Ph.D. 42 Chief Business Officer 2014
Karin L. Walker 51 Chief Accounting Officer, Controller and Head of@dtinting 2013

Dale B. Schenk, Ph.D.s our President and Chief Executive Officer, a#l @& a member of our Board of Directors, positibesha
held since 2012. Prior to that, from 2008 to 2@M2,Schenk was Executive Vice President and Chigdriific Officer of Elan Corporation, f
(a pharmaceutical company), where he provided eéhddrship and scientific direction for Elanesearch and development programs. |
1996 to 2008, Dr. Schenk held various other pasitiwith Elan. He was a founding scientist of Ath&eaurosciences, Inc., which was acqu
by Elan in 1996. Dr. Schenk has pioneered the inotherapeutic approach for the treatment of amykigjcas exemplified for Alzheimer’
disease. His work in this area, as well as in edefiection, testing and other pathways to the diselas led to the most advanced pote
treatment approaches for Alzheingedisease. Dr. Schenk earned his BA and PhD innRtwogy and Physiology from the University
California, San Diego.

A. W. Homanhas served as our Chief Legal Officer since 20%iarRo joining Prothena, Mr. Homan was Senior Vieeesiden
General Counsel and Secretary of Complete Genoinics(a laboratory services company), a positierhbld from 2012 until its sale in 20
He was Senior Vice President, General Counsel astegary of Varian, Inc. (a scientific instrumeatsnpany), from 1999 until it was acqui
in 2010. Prior to that, Mr. Homan was Associate &ahCounsel at Varian Associates, Inc., and alstked at a leading San Francisco
firm. Mr. Homan earned BA from Virginia Tech angHiD (law degree) from the University of Virginia.

Gene G. Kinney, Ph.Dhas served as our Chief Scientific Officer and HeflResearch and Development since 2012. Pridvat he
was Senior Vice President of Pharmacological Seierta position he held from 2011 to 2012), and Wiesident, Pharmacology (a positiol
held from 2009 to 2011) for Elan Pharmaceuticais; Wwhile in those positions, Dr. Kinney also sehas Head of Nonclinical Research
Janssen Alzheimer Immunotherapy R&D. From 20010@92 Dr. Kinney was Senior Director, Head of Cdnftharmacology and acting le
for Bioanalytics & Pathology at the Merck Resedrahoratories, where
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he contributed to the strategic direction and agaisof drug discovery activities and led a numbé&émon<linical discovery and clinic
development programs targeted for the treatmenteofodegenerative and psychiatric conditions. DmnKy also held positions at Bristol-
Myers Squibb and was an Assistant Professor aEthery University School of Medicine, DepartmentRsychiatry and Behavioral Scienc
Dr. Kinney earned his BA from Bloomsburg Universityd his MA and PhD from Florida Atlantic Univessit

Martin Koller, M.D., has served as our Chief Medical Officer since 2@r3Koller is a boaraertified neurologist with 25 years
pharmaceutical industry experience in drug develmnfrom Phases 4; and has been involved with a number of Invettigal New Drug
and New Drug Applications in several indicationscluding Alzheimer's disease, multiple sclerosistvical dystonia, pain, andpileptics
migraine, stroke, anxiety and depression). Prigoitoing Prothena, Dr. Koller served as Chief Medi©fficer of Sonexa Therapeutics, Inc
pharmaceutical company), a position he held frof92®» 2013. From 2007 to 2009, he was an indepergersultant to various small &
medium sized pharmaceutical and biotechnology caiegaFrom 2002 to 2007, Dr. Koller was Vice Presidof Clinical Development at El
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., overseeing a national, bed international, drug development group. He &lsld positions at Athena Neuroscien
Inc., Syntex Corporation and Wyeth Pharmaceutidals, Dr. Koller earned his BA from Franklin and Mhall College, his MD from tt
University of Maryland at Baltimore and his MPH wé&in emphasis in epidemiology from the Universftfexas at Houston.

Tran B. Nguyenhas served as our Chief Financial Officer since3204r. Nguyen has over 15 years of finance expesgein the
healthcare, banking and private equity industif@®r to joining Prothena, Mr. Nguyen was Vice Rieat, Chief Financial Officer (from 20
to 2011) and then Senior Vice President, Chief idied Officer of Somaxon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.pfra011 until its sale in 2013. He v
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and InvedRelations at Metabasis Therapeutics, Inc. (al@omaceutical company), from 2009 u
its sale in 2010. From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Nguyen wa&ce President in the Healthcare Investment Bangroup at Citi Global Markets, In
and from 2004 to 2007 he served in various cagac#s a healthcare investment banker at Lehmahdsptinc. Mr. Nguyen earned his B/
Economics and Psychology from Claremont McKennde&@el and his MBA from the Anderson School of Mamaget at the University
California, Los Angeles.

Tara Nickerson, Ph.D.has served as our Chief Business Officer since .2Pfdr to that, she was our Head of CorporateBugines
Development and Secretary, positions she held s20d2. Dr. Nickerson previously held various pasis with Elan Pharmaceuticals, |
including Vice President and Head of Business Dmwekent (during 2012), Senior Director of Corpor@teategy and Strategic Alliances (fr
2007 to 2012) and Director, Corporate Strategy @imdtegic Alliances (from 2005 to 2007). During kemure at Elan, she was responsibli
opportunity evaluation, diligence, negotiations aodtracting for Elan external opportunities, asthblished a broad network of collaborat
for Elan with academic investigators, not-for-praliseasdocused foundations and industry collaborators. NDtkerson was previously
Senior Scientist at Axys Pharmaceuticals, wherdeth@reclinical programs developing novel smallesale based therapeutics for oncol
Dr. Nickerson earned her BSc and PhD in Experimévitdicine from McGill University and her MBA fronthe University of Californit
Berkeley’'s Haas School of Business.

Karin L. Walker has served as our Controller, Chief Accounting €ffiand Head of Accounting since 2013. Prior taija
Prothena, Ms. Walker was Vice President, FinanakGinief Accounting Officer of Affymax, Inc. (a bibprmaceutical company), a posil
she held from 2012 to 2013. From 2009 to 2012,veag Vice President, Finance and Corporate ContratieAmyris Inc. (a biotechnolo
company). From 2006 to 2009, Ms. Walker was ViceesRient, Finance and Corporate Controller for CVer@beutics, Inc.
biopharmaceutical company). She also held senimanfiial leadership positions at Knight Ridder RifitAccellion, Niku Corporatiol
Financial Engines, Inc. and NeoMagic Corporatios. Walker earned her BS in business from the Qal#oState Polytechnic University, ¢
Luis Obispo, and is a certified public accountant.

Code of Conduct

We have a Code of Conduct that applies to all ofdectors, executive officers and employees,udiclg our principal executive offic
principal financial officer, principal accountindficer or controller, or persons performing simifanctions. That Code of Conduct is avail
on the Company website at http://ir.prothena.com. The Companypvide to any person without charge, upon retue copy of that Cor
of Conduct; such a request may be made by sendirig our Company Secretary, Prothena Corporatian plexandra House, T
Sweepstakes, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland. If make any amendment to, or waiver from, a provigibour Code of Conduct that we
required to disclose under SEC rules, we intendsdtisfy that disclosure requirement by posting simformation to our website
http://ir.prothena.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
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The information appearing in our Proxy Statemenmtaurihe following headings is incorporated hersjindference:

» Executive Compensati
» Election of Director

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information appearing in our Proxy Statemenmteurihe following headings is incorporated hergjindference:

» Equity Compensation Plan Informat
» Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners &ahagemel

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
The information appearing in our Proxy Statememtaurihe following headings is incorporated hersjindference:

« Certain Transactions with Related Per:
« Election of Director

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.
The information appearing in our Proxy Statememtaurihe following headings is incorporated hersjindference:

» Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registd Public Accounting Firm - Fees Paid to KPMG
» Ratification of Appointment of Independent Reégisd Public Accounting Firm - Péspproval Policies and Procedu

With the exception of the information specificaihcorporated by reference in Part 11l to this FatfK from our Proxy Statement, ¢
Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be filguhatsof this Form 10-K.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

€) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport on Form 10-K:

(1) Financial StatementReference is made to the Index to the registréitiancial Statements under ltem 8 in Part Il of fhdorm
10-K.

(2) Financial Statement SchedulFinancial statement schedules have been omittealibedhe required information is not prese
not present in the amounts sufficient to requirensigssion of the schedule or because the informasiaaready included in tl
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.The exhibits listed on the accompanying index toilgits in Item 15(b) below are filed as part of,lmreby incorporate
by reference into, this report on Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits.

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index hereto areorporated or filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenttedRegistrant has duly cau
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed orbéhkalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly autledriz

Dated: March 12, 2015 Prothena Corporation plc
(Registrant)

/s/ Dale B. Schenk
Dale B. Schenk
President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl Tran B. Nguyen
Tran B. Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each peradose individual signature appears below heralihagizes an
appoints Dale B. Schenk and Tran B. Nguyen, ant e&them, with full power of substitution and restitution and full power to act withc
the other, as his or her true and lawful attormefact and agent to act in his or her name, placestead and to execute in the name ar
behalf of each person, individually and in eachacity stated below, and to file any and all amenaisi¢o this Annual Report on Form KO-
and to file the same, with all exhibits theretod asther documents in connection therewith, with Sezurities and Exchange Commiss
granting unto said attorneys-faet and agents, and each of them, full power antaaity to do and perform each and every act danly
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneysfatt and agents or any of them or their or his suls or substitutes may lawfully do or ca

to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on bel

of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/Dale B. Schenk President and Chief Executive Officer March 12, 2015
Dale B. Schenk, Ph.D. (Principal Executive Officer) and Director

/s/Tran B. Nguyen Chief Financial Officer March 12, 2015
Tran B. Nguyen (Principal Financial Officer)

Is/Karin L. Walker Controller, Chief Accounting Officer and Head ofdduinting March 12, 2015
Karin L. Walker (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/Lars G. Ekman Chairman of the Board March 12, 2015
Lars G. Ekman, M.D., Ph.D.

/sIRichard T. Collier Director March 12, 2015
Richard T. Collier

/s/IShane M. Cooke Director March 12, 2015
Shane M. Cooke

/s/Christopher S. Henney Director March 12, 2015
Christopher S. Henney, D.Sc., Ph.D.

/s/Dennis J. Selkoe Director March 12, 2015

Dennis J. Selkoe, M.D.
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Exhibit
No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Previously Filed

Form

File No.

Filed

Filing Date Exhibit  Herewith

21

2.2(a)

2.2(b)

2.3

2.4

3.1

4.1

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.2

10.3f

Demerger Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2Gt®den
Elan Corporation, plc and Prothena Corporation plc

Amended and Restated Intellectual Property Licamsk
Contribution Agreement, dated as of December 2022By
and among Neotope Biosciences Limited, Elan Pharma
International Limited, and Elan Pharmaceuticals, In

Amendment Number One to the Amended and Restated
Intellectual Property License and Contribution Agrent,
effective as of December 20, 2012, among Neotopsdinces
Limited, Elan Pharma International Limited, Elan
Pharmaceuticals, LLC, Elan Corporation, plc, antindgua
Limited

Intellectual Property License and Conveyance Agergndatec
as of December 20, 2012, among Neotope Bioscidriogted,
Elan Pharma International Limited and Elan Pharmticals,
Inc.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb&028,
between Elan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Prothenscigioces
Inc

Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Prothena Corporation plc

Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of December 2,201
between Elan Corporation, plc and Prothena Corjmoratc

Amendment No. 1 to Tax Matters Agreement, dateaf as
June 25, 2013, between Elan Corporation, plc anthBna
Corporation plc

Subscription and Registration Rights Agreemengdlats of
November 8, 2012, among Prothena Corporation pé) E
Corporation, plc and Elan Science One Limited

License, Development, and Commercialization Agregme
dated as of December 11, 2013, among Neotope Biuses
Limited and Prothena Biosciences Inc with F. Hoffimd.a
Roche Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.
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10/A

8-K

S-1/A

8-K

8-K

10-K

8-K

10-Q

10/A

10-K/A

001-35676

001-35676

333-191218

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

11/30/2012 2.1

12/21/2012 21

9/30/2013  2.2(b)

12/21/2012 2.2

12/21/2012 2.3

3/29/2013 3.1

12/21/2012 10.1

8/13/2013 10.2

11/30/2012 10.3

6/6/2014 10.4




Exhibit
No.

Description

Previously Filed

Form

File No.

Filing Date

Filed
Exhibit  Herewith

10.4t

10.5

10.6#

10.7(a)

10.7(b)

10.7(c)

10.7(d)

10.7(e)

10.7(f)

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

Master Process Development and Clinical Supply dgrent,
dated June 23, 2010, as amended August 1, 201 hgaElan
Pharma International Limited, Neotope Bioscienaaitéd and
Boehringer Ingelheim Pharma GmbH & Co. KG

Research and Development Services Agreement, datetl
December 20, 2012, between Elan Corporation, plc an
Prothena Corporation plc

Form of Deed of Indemnification between ProthengoGrmation
plc and its Directors and Officers

Lease Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2010, bet&esSan
Francisco No. 33, LLC and Elan Pharmaceuticals, Inc

First Amendment to Lease, dated as of Novembe?(8],
between Are-San Francisco No. 33, LLC and Elan
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of June 1, Béifeen
Are-San Francisco No. 33, LLC and Elan Pharmacaisti¢nc.

Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of October 3220
between Are-San Francisco No. 33, LLC and Elan
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Assignment of Tenant’s Interest in Lease and Assionmpf
Lease Obligations, dated as of December 2, 201%¢e@ Elan
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Prothena Biosciences Inc

Fourth Amendment to Lease, dated as of Novembe2 BIB,
between ARE-San Francisco No. 33, LLC and Prothena
Biosciences, Inc

Prothena Corporation plc Amended and Restated R6tg
Term Incentive Plan

Form of Option Award Agreement between Prothena
Corporation plc and Registrant’s N&mployee Directors (use
beginning January 29, 2013)

Form of Option Award Agreement between Prothena
Corporation plc and Registrant's Named Executivic@rfs
(used beginning January 29, 2013 until Februag044)

Form of Option Award Agreement between Prothena
Corporation plc and Registrant's Named Executivic®rs
(used beginning February 4, 2014)

Prothena Biosciences Inc Amended and Restated &weer
Plan
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10-Q

8-K

10/A

10/A

10/A

10/A

10/A

S-8

S-8

S-8

10-K

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

001-35676

333-196572

333-196572

333-196572

001-35676

8/13/2013

12/21/2012

12/11/2014

11/30/2012

11/30/2012

11/30/2012

11/30/2012

11/30/2012

12/5/2013

6/6/2014

6/6/2014

6/6/2014

3/29/2013

10.3

10.3

10.1

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.1

99.1

99.2

99.3

10.12







Previously Filed

Exhibit Filed
No. Description Form File No. Filing Date Exhibit  Herewith

10.13# Prothena Corporation plc Incentive Compensation Pla 8-K 001-35676 12/21/2012 10.6
10.14 License Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2@2&elen

the University of Tennessee Research FoundatiorE&nd

Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 10/A 001-35676 11/30/2012 10.14
10.15# Employment Agreement, dated January 22, 2013, lestwe

Prothena Biosciences Inc and Dale B. Schenk 8-K 001-35676 1/25/2013 10.1
10.16# Offer letter, dated March 20, 2013, between Prathen

Biosciences Inc and Tran B. Nguyen 8-K 001-35676 3/28/2013 10.1
10.17# Offer letter, dated December 22, 2012, betweerhenat

Biosciences Inc and Gene G. Kinney 10-K 001-35676 3/29/2013 10.18
10.18# Offer letter, dated March 19, 2013, between Prathen

Biosciences Inc and Martin Koller 8-K 001-35676 3/28/2013 10.2
10.19# Offer letter, dated December 14, 2012, betweerhra

Biosciences Inc and Tara Nickerson 10-K 001-35676 3/29/2013 10.2
10.20# Promotion letter, dated February 5, 2014, betweaethEna

Biosciences Inc and Tara Nickerson 8-K 001-35676 3/3/2014 10.1
10.21# Offer letter, dated April 19, 2013, between Prothen

Biosciences Inc and Karin L. Walker 8-K 001-35676 5/22/2013 10.1
10.22# Offer letter, dated April 11, 2014, between Prothen

Biosciences Inc and A. W. Homan 10-Q 001-35676 8/5/2014 10.5
21.1 List of Subsidiaries X

Consent of KPMG LLP, independent registered public X
23.1 accounting firm

Power of Attorney X
24.1 (see signature page hereto)
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule X

13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exch#ayef

1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley

Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao Rule X

13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exch&my®f

1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of thHeaBas-Oxley

Act of 2002
32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal X

Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3s
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@dt of
2002
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Previously Filed

Exhibit Filed

No. Description Form File No. Filing Date Exhibit  Herewith
101.INS+  XBRL Instance Document X
101.SCH+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X
101.CAL+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuine X
101.DEF+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhen X
101.LAB+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document X
101.PRE+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeaim X

Exhibit 32.1 is being furnished and shall not berded to b¢‘filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgaakct of 193«

as amended , or otherwise subject to the liabdityhat section, nor shall such exhibit be deenadloietincorporated by reference in i
registration statement or other document filed unthe Securities Act of 1933, as amended , exceptleerwise specifically stated
such filing.

Indicates management contract or compensatory ptarrangement

Portions of this exhibit (indicated by asteriska\vh been omitted pursuant to a request for confidetreatment and this exhibit h
been filed separately with the SEC.

XBRL information is furnished and not filed for pases of Sections 11 and 12 of the SecuritiesfA@38, as amended, and Sectiol

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ameratadljs not subject to liability under those sea$ipis not part of any registrati
statement or prospectus to which it relates andds incorporated or deemed to be incorporated bignence into any registratic
statement, prospectus or other document.
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Exhibit 10.11

Form of Option Award Agreement
between Prothena Corporation plc and Registrant’s ldmed Executive Officers
(used beginning February 4, 2014)

PROTHENA CORPORATION PLC
2012 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement
Cover Sheet

Prothena Corporation plc, an Irish public limiteshpany (“Company”)hereby grants a Nonstatutory Stock Optic
acquire its Shares to the individual named beloe ferms and conditions of the Option are set fiorthis cover shee
in the attached Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreenaemnt in the Prothena Corporation plc 2012 Long Teroentive
Plan (the “Plan”).All capitalized terms used but not defined in tbasser sheet and the attached Nonstatutory
Option Agreement will have the meanings ascribeslich terms in the Plan.

Granted to: []
Grant Date:  []
Shares subject to the Option  []
Exercise Price per Share  $[]
Expiration Date: [1
Vesting Start Date:  []
Vesting Schedule  []
By signing this cover sheet, you agree to all eftdrms and conditions described in the attachir@shin the Plan.

Signature: Date:

[]

Company:
[Authorized Officer]




Nonstatutory Stock
Option

Vesting

PROTHENA CORPORATION PLC
2012 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
(Employee Leadership - U.S.)

This Option is not intended to be an incentive Istoption under section 422 of t
Internal Revenue Code and will be interpreted atiogty.

Your right to exercise this Option vests in increnseover the [ ] period, commencing
the Vesting Start Date, as shown on the cover sheetpercentage of the total numbe
Shares for which this Option will vest and becomereisable is as follows:

[]

The vesting will be cumulative and will not exce®d0% of the Shares subject to
Option. If the vesting results in fractional Sharég® number of Shares that vests or
relevant vesting date will be rounded down to tharast whole number.

Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, the e@ption vests and becomes exercis
if (i) within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control, ya@mploymen
with the Company or one of its Subsidiaries is taated for any reason other than Ce
(as defined below) or you resign for Good Reasend&fined below) (such a resignat
or termination being hereinafter referred to a$ mvoluntary Terminatiorf); (ii) you die
while you are still an employee of the Company &@udsidiary, as applicable; or (iii) yc
service as an employee of the Company or a Subgijdia applicable, terminates bece
of your Total and Permanent Disability (as defibetbw). In addition, except as otherw
provided above or in the Plan, the number of Shsuwbgect to the Option that would he
vested and become exercisable had you remainedogetpifor the [ ] month peric
following an Involuntary Termination shall becomested and exercisable as of the da
your Involuntary Termination.

As used herein, and except as otherwise definad employment agreement between
and the Company or one of its Subsidiaries to #ten¢ applicable, “Causeshall meai
any of the following: (a) your willful breach, haibal neglect, or poor performance of y
job duties and responsibilities, as determined lby €Company in its sole discretic
(b) your conviction (or the entry of a guilty pleaplea ofnolo contendrg of any crime
excluding minor traffic offenses; (c) your commasiof an act of dishonesty or breact
fiduciary duty; (d) your commission of a materialation of any of the personnel polic
of the Company or a Subsidiary, as applicable uthiolg but not limited to, violations

the Companys confidentiality or stock trading policies or gslicies against any form

harassment; or (e) any action or omission by yduchy as reasonably determined by
Company, is contrary to the business interest,tegiom or goodwill of the Company ol
Subsidiary.




Term

Death

Disability

Involuntary
Termination

As used herein, and except as otherwise definad Employment agreement between
and the Company or one of its Subsidiaries to dent applicable, “Good Reasoniean:
(a) a material diminution in your authority, duti@s responsibilities or a mater
diminution in your total base compensation (in eaabe, as determined by the Comg
in its sole discretion), or (b) that your primangbjsite is relocated and your new loca
increases your commute between home and work lgaat thirty (30) miles (howeve
this does not apply to field-based sales represeasaor similar fieldeased positions)
in the Companys reasonable opinion, the new location requiresytba move your horr
to a new location at least thirty (30) miles aweyni your home immediately prior to t
change.

In order to receive the benefits of a resignatmm‘Good Reasonyou must provide yot
employer with written notice within ninety (90) dagfter the occurrence of such event
the employer shall then have thirty (30) days teecuch event. If the employer does
cure the event giving rise to Good Reason, yourleynment will terminate on the first d
immediately following the end of thirty (30) dayreyperiod.

Except as provided above or as otherwise provided written employment agreem
between you and the Company or one of its Subgdiaall Shares will cease vesting a
the date your service with the Company or a Suésidias applicable, has terminated
any reason.

Your Option will expire in any event at the clodeboisiness at the Compagyregistere
office on the [ ] anniversary of the Grant Dateshewn on the cover sheet. (It will exg
earlier if your service with the Company or a Sdizsly, as applicable, terminateas
described below.)

If you die prior to expiration of this Option, themur right to purchase vested Shz:
under this Option will expire at the close of besis at the Comparssregistered office ¢
the date that is twelve (12) months after the déteeath (or on the [ ] anniversary of
Grant Date, if earlier). During that twelve (12) mblo period, your estate or heirs n
exercise this Option.

If your service as an employee of the Company 8Sulbsidiary, as applicable, termine
because of your Total and Permanent Disabilityn §@ur right to purchase vested Sh:
under this Option will expire at the close of besis at the Comparssregistered office ¢
the date that is twelve (12) months after your teation date (or on the [ ] anniversary
the Grant Date, if earlier). “Total and Permanergability” means that you are unable
engage in any substantial gainful activity by reesbany medically determinable physi
or mental impairment which can be expected to tesuleath or which has lasted, or
be expected to last, for a continuous period oflesd than one year.

If your service as an employee of the Company 8Sulbsidiary, as applicable, termine
by reason of an Involuntary Termination, then yoght to purchase vested Shares ul
this Option will expire at the close of businessre Companys registered office on ti
date that is [ ] months after your termination date (or on the phigersary of the Gra
Date, if earlier).




Other Termination

Leaves of Absence

Restrictions on
Exercise

Notice of Exercise

Form of Payment

Taxes

Restrictions on Resale

If your service as an employee of the Company Subsidiary, as applicable, termine
for any reason other than those set forth in theediately preceding three paragraj
then your right to purchase vested Shares undsrQpiion will expire at the close
business at the Compasyegistered office on the 90th day after your teation date (o
on the [ ] anniversary of the Grant Date, if eajlie

The Company determines when your service with tleen@any or a Subsidiary,
applicable, terminates for this purpose.

For purposes of this Option, your service doesteohinate when you go on a milite
leave, a sick leave or anoth®na fide leave of absence, if the leave was approved b
Company in writing. But your service will be tredtas terminating ninety (90) days a
you went on leave, unless your right to returndva work is guaranteed by law or b
contract. Your service terminates, in any eventenvthe approved leave ends, unless
immediately return to active work.

The Company determines which leaves count forghipose.

The Company will not permit you to exercise thistiOp if the issuance of Shares at 1
time would violate any law, regulation or Comparfigy.

When you wish to exercise this Option, you must plete and execute such document
any, and complete such processes, that the Congramgecurities broker approved by
Company may require to accomplish the Option eger€¢iNotice of Exercise”).

If someone else wants to exercise this Option gier death, that person must prove
the Company’s satisfaction that he or she is exwtitb do so.

When you submit your Notice of Exercise, you mustude payment of the exercise pi
for the Shares you are purchasing. Payment maydoke mm one (or a combination of bc
of the following forms:

- Your personal check, a cashier’s check or a mandgr.

- Irrevocable directions to a securities broker appdoby the Company to sell yc
Shares subject to the Option and to deliver all portion of the sale proceeds to
Company in payment of the exercise price. (Thernzaaf the sale proceeds, if a
less withholding taxes, will be delivered to yotihe directions must be given
signing forms, if any, provided by the Companyla securities broker.

You will not be allowed to exercise this Option es8 you make acceptable arrangerr
to pay any taxes that may be due as a result dgten exercise.

By signing this Agreement, you agree not to seyl 8hares received upon exercise of
Option at a time when applicable laws, regulation€ompany policies prohibit a sale.




Transfer of Option

Retention Rights

Shareholder Rights

Adjustments

Electronic
Communications

Severability

Applicable Law

The Plan and Other
Agreements

Prior to your death, only you may exercise thisi@ptYou cannot transfer or assign 1
Option. For instance, you may not sell this Optiwruse it as security for a loan. If y
attempt to do any of these things, this Option wilimediately become invalid. You m:
however, dispose of this Option in your will.

Regardless of any marital property settlement agee¢, the Company or a securii
broker, as applicable, is not obligated to hondiaiice of Exercise from your form
spouse, nor is the Company or the securities brok&gated to recognize your forn
spouse’s interest in your Option in any other way.

Neither your Option nor this Agreement gives yos tight to be retained by the Compi
or any Subsidiary in any capacity. The Company and itssilidries reserve the right
terminate your service at any time, with or withQatuse.

You, or your estate or heirs, have no rights asaaeholder of the Company until a pro
Notice of Exercise has been submitted and the eseemgrice has been tendered.
adjustments are made for dividends or other rightee applicable record date occ
before a proper Notice of Exercise has been subthiind the exercise price has &
tendered, except as described in the Plan.

In the event of a stock split, a stock dividendaasimilar change in Company stock,
number of Shares covered by this Option and theceseeprice per Share may be adju:
pursuant to the Plan. In the event where the Cosnpaa party to a merger, this Opt
will be handled in accordance with the Plan.

You agree to contract electronically regarding yparticipation in the Plan and to 1
receipt of electronic notifications, documents, ppants or other communications from
Company in connection with the Plan, to the noreiattronic mail address used by
for the purposes of your employment or such otliglress as may be from time to ti
notified for that purpose by you to the Company.

All the terms and provisions of this Agreement distinct and severable, and if any te
or provision is held unenforceable, illegal or vaid whole or in part by any cou
regulatory authority or other competent authoritghall to that extent be deemed nc
form part of this Agreement, and the enforceabiliggality and validity of the remainc
of this Agreement will not be affected; if any ifida unenforceable or illegal provisis
would be valid, enforceable or legal if some pdritovere deleted, the provision sh
apply with whatever modification is necessary tkend valid, enforceable and legal.

This Agreement will be interpreted and enforcedarrttie laws of Ireland.

The text of the Plan and any amendments theretanaogporated in this Agreement
reference.

This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entirdetstanding between you and
Company regarding this Option. Any prior agreememtsmmitments or negotiatio
concerning this Option are superseded.

By signing the cover sheet of this Agreement, yaree to all of the terms and conditions describdabae and in th
Plan and evidence your acceptance of the powershef Committee of the Board of Directors of the Coamy tha



administers the Plan.



Exhibit 21.1

List of Subsidiaries

Subsidiary Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization
Prothena Biosciences Limited (formerly Neotope Biesces Limited) Ireland
Prothena Therapeutics Limited (formerly Onclave rapeutics Limited) Ireland

Prothena Biosciences Inc Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Prothena Corporation plc:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrégstration statements (Nos. 333-196572 and 33346) on Form $- anc
the registration statements (Nos. 333-196965 arg193416) on Form S-of Prothena Corporation plc of our report d
March 12, 2015 , with respect to the consolidateldrice sheets of Prothena Corporation plc as oéfber 31, 2014 and 2013
and the related consolidated statements of opemt&giockholders’ equity and cash flows for eaclthefyears in the thregeal
period ended December 31, 2014 , which report appeathe December 31, 2014 annual report on FobAK bf Prothen
Corporation plc.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
March 12, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dale B. Schenk, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f Prothena Corporation p

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuncets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrnd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahmgorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangarding the reliability of financial reporting artle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséantbi report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfiburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr@ that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

() All significant deficiencies and material weakness®e the design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the registrarstinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2015 /s/ Dale B. Schenk
Dale B. Schenk
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Tran B. Nguyen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f Prothena Corporation p

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuncets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrnd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahmgorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangarding the reliability of financial reporting artle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséantbi report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfiburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr@ that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

() All significant deficiencies and material weakness®e the design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the registrarstinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2015 /sl Tran B. Nguyen
Tran B. Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”anc
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), Dale B. Scherdsident and Chief Executive Officer
Prothena Corporation plc (the “Compangi)d Tran B. Nguyen, Chief Financial Officer of tiempany, each hereby certify that, to the be

his knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 which this Certification is attached
Exhibit 32.1 (the “Report”) fully complies with threquirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(dhefExchange Act; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 12, 2015 /sl Dale B. Schenk
Dale B. Schenk
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Tran B. Nguyen
Tran B. Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdifgy Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities ExchangeoAt834 and 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 has been provided to the Registrashinlh be retained by the Registrant and furnishedhe Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Form KGe which it relates, is not deemed filed with 8ecurities and Exchange Commission
is not to be incorporated by reference into anpdilof the Registrant under the Securities Act383lor the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(whether made before or after the date of the Fb@iK), irrespective of any general incorporatiom¢gpuage contained in such filing.



